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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EEREEEEAERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. HUI Sai Chung, aged 74, is the Chairman and a co-founder of the Group.

He is responsible for formulating and overseeing the implementation of the
Group's business strategy. He is also responsible for the marketing and sales
functions of the Group. He has more than 51 years' experience in the plastics

industry.

Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong, aged 72, is the Deputy Chairman, Managing Director
and a co-founder of the Group. He is responsible for the overall operations
and administration of the Group. He has more than 51 years' experience in the
plastics industry and he was awarded the Associateship (Plastic Industry) by The

Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries.

Mr. NG Chi Ming, aged 56, is the Technology Development Director of Greater
China Department and Operations Director of Colorants Business of the Group.
He is responsible for developing of plastics colouration, compounding technology
and key accounts in the Greater China market. He holds a Higher Diploma in
Textile Chemistry from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University's predecessor). He also holds a Master of Engineering Management
degree from the University of Technology, Sydney. He joined the Group in 1988
and left in 1995. He re-joined the Group in early 1998 and has over 32 vears'

experience in plastic colouration and plastic injection moulding techniques.

Mr. HUI Yan Kuen, aged 44, is the Southern China General Manager of Ngai
Hing Hong Plastic Materials (Hong Kong) Limited, Guangzhou Ngai Hing Hong
Plastic Materials Ltd. and Chongging Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials Ltd. and is
responsible for sales and marketing of plastic materials in Hong Kong and other
cities in Southern China. He holds a Bachelor degree in Civil Engineering from
Queen's University, Ontario, Canada and also holds a Master degree of Business
and Administration from The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.
He joined the Group in 2004 and has over |16 years' experience in business
management, sales & marketing. Mr. HUI Yan Kuen is the son of Mr. HUI Sai
Chung (who is the Chairman of the Company) and the brother of Mr. HUI Yan
Kit (who is the senior management of the subsidiary of the Company) and Mr.

HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey (who is the Director of the Company).
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)
Mr. HUI Man Wai, aged 51, is the Business Development Manager of Dongguan

Coltec Plastic Trading Company Limited and is responsible for market
exploration and business development of Colour Masterbatches and Functional
Masterbatches for plastic industries in Southern and South Western China. He
holds a Master degree of Business and Administration (Executive) from City
University of Hong Kong. He joined the Group in 1997 and has over 24 years'
experience in business management, sales & marketing. Mr. HUl Man Wai is
the son of Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong (who is the Deputy Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company).

Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey, aged 47, is the General Manager of Dongguan
Ngai Hing Plastic Materials Limited and NHH Coltec Limited and is responsible
for sales and marketing of Colour Masterbatches and Functional Masterbatches
for plastic industries in Hong Kong, Guangdong and other cities in Southern
China. He holds a Bachelor degree with honors in Arts (Major in Economics)
from Queen'’s University, Ontario, Canada. He joined the Group in 2004 and has
over 2| years' experience in business management, sales & marketing. Mr. HUI
Yan Lung, Geoffrey is the son of Mr. HUI Sai Chung (who is the Chairman of the
Company) and the brother of Mr. HUI Yan Kit (who is the senior management
of the subsidiary of the Company) and Mr. HUI Yan Kuen (who is the Director
of the Company).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul, aged 70, is the managing partner of Paul W.C. Ho &
Company, Certified Public Accountants (Practising). He holds a Bachelor degree
in Social Sciences and is an associate member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, United Kingdom and a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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CUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHING Yu Lung, aged 51, has been an Independent Non-executive Director
since 9th February 2009. Mr. Ching currently serves as the Chief Financial Officer
of a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange"). Mr. CHING also serves as the Independent Non-executive Director
of each of Hopson Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 754), Shenzhen
Investment Holdings Bay Area Development Company Limited (formerly known
as Hopewell Highway Infrastructure Limited, stock code: 737) and Termbray
Industries International (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 93), all of them are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He obtained a Bachelor's degree
in Business Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and an
Executive Master degree in Business Administration from Tsinghua University
in 1992 and 2006, respectively. Mr. CHING is a fellow member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, and member of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He has more than 29 years of experience in auditing, corporate finance and
accounting. He is also a member of the Audit Committee, the Corporate
Governance Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination

Committee of the Company.

Mr. YU Chi Kwong, aged 53, is the Business Manager of an international
insurance company in Hong Kong. He holds a Bachelor degree of Science with
Honours in Applied Chemistry from Hong Kong Baptist University and a Master
degree of Business Administration from the University of South Australia. He is
also a Fellow Chartered Financial Practitioner of the Asia Pacific Financial Services
Association. He started the career in plastics industry and had accumulated more
than 20 years' experiences in the industry, which included holding managerial
positions in various multinational companies for plastic materials sales and

product marketing in Hong Kong and Mainland China.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Madam LIU Sau Lai, aged 63, is the assistant to Chairman and she is responsible
for credit control of the Group. She holds a Bachelor of Business Administration
degree from The Open University of Hong Kong. She joined the Group in 1977

and she has more than 36 years' experience in plastic materials trading.

Mr. NG Tat Ching, aged 66, is a Director and President of Ngai Hing
Engineering Plastic Materials Limited, Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic (Hong Kong)
Limited, Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic (Dongguan) Co., Ltd. and Ngai Hing
Engineering Plastic Materials (Shanghai) Co., Ltd,, and is responsible for the
overall business operations of the above mentioned group of companies. Mr.
NG holds a Bachelor degree in Chemistry (Major) and Statistics (Minor) from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He joined the Group as a co-founder and
an executive director of the above mentioned group of companies in 1997, and
has over 40 years' experience in plastic industries globally. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. NG has held several key positions in various multinational companies
for engineering plastic materials sales and product marketing in Asia Pacific

regions.

Mr. WONG Chi Hang, aged 50, is the Director and General Manager of Ngai
Hing Hong Plastic Materials (Hong Kong) Limited and is responsible for the sales
and marketing in the Group's trading business. He holds a Bachelor degree in
Chemistry from The University of Hong Kong and a Master degree in Business
Administration from the University of South Australia. He joined the Group in

1994 and has over 27 years' experience in sales & marketing.
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, is the Chief Financial Officer and Company
cretary of the Group. He holds a Bachelor degree in Business Administration
in Accounting and Finance from The University of Hong Kong. He also holds a
joint Master of Science degree in Mathematics for Finance and Actuarial Science
from City University of Hong Kong and University of Paris-Dauphine, France.
He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
(“FCCA") and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“FCPA’™).
He is also a Chartered Financial Analyst charterholder (“CFA") and a Certified
Financial Risk Manager (“FRM"). He has over 25 years' experience in auditing,
finance and accounting and is responsible for the financial, treasury, information

technology, administration and human resources management of the Group.

Mr. HUI Yan Kit, aged 48, is the General Manager of Shanghai Ngai Hing Plastic
Materials Co., Limited and is responsible for sales and marketing of Colour
Masterbatches and Functional Masterbatches for plastic industries in Shanghai
and other cities in Eastern China. He holds a Bachelor degree in Arts from
University of Toronto. He joined the Group in 1998 and has over 23 years'
experience in business management, sales & marketing. Mr. HUI Yan Kit is the
son of Mr. HUI Sai Chung (who is the Chairman of the Company) and the
brother of Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey and Mr. HUI Yan Kuen (both are the
Directors of the Company).
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by announce the audited results of Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
(“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively “the Group”) for the year
ended 30th June 2021. The Group recorded an audited consolidated turnover
of HK$1,971,074,000 (2020: HK$1,578,998,000) and profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company of HK$89,865,000 (2020: loss attributable to equity
holders of the Company of HK$6,212,000). Earnings per share for the year were
HK24.34 cents (2020: Loss per share HKI.68 cents).

The Board of Directors recommends the payment of a final dividend and
a special dividend of HKI.0 cent (2020: Nil) and HK3.0 cents per share
respectively. Together with the interim dividend and the special dividend of
HK1.0 cent (2020: Nil) and HKI.0 cent per share already paid, respectively, the
total dividend payment for the year under review is HK6.0 cents per share (2020:
Nil).

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business Review

The 2020/21 year was full of challenges. International oil prices rose from
a trough, which in turn drove the prices of plastic materials to continuously
higher levels. With respect to the COVID-19 pandemic, with vaccination drives
launched across different regions in the first quarter of this year, the impact of
the pandemic began to ease in the second quarter, and the global economy
gradually returned to normal. As a result, overseas orders rebounded and the
market demand for raw materials soared. Meanwhile, heavy snowstorms in the
US at the beginning of this year and the surge in international shipping freight

rates during the year under review further elevated the price of plastic materials.

An economic restart has stimulated the demand for raw materials from
customers from different regions, which has led to a sharp increase in orders
received by the Group. For the year ended 30 June 2021, the Group's total
turnover was HK$1,971,074,000 (2020: HK$1,578,998,000), an increase of

24.8% over the previous year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Business Review (Continued)

During the year under review, the Group continued to optimise its product
portfolio, endeavored to develop new customer sources and stepped up
efforts to minimise costs. Consequently, overall gross profit has increased
significantly since the fourth quarter of last year, rising by 84% year-on-year
to HK$347,217,000 (2020: HK$188,729,000). Gross profit margin grew by
5.7 percentage points to |7.6% over the same period last year. The Group
successfully achieved a turnaround in profit during the year. Profit attributable
to equity holders of the Company amounted to HK$89,865,000 (2020: loss
attributable to equity holders of the Company of HK$6,212,000). Basic earnings
per share were HK24.34 cents (2020: basic loss per share of HKI.68 cents).

To reward shareholders for their unwavering support of the Group, the Board of
Directors has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HKI.0 cent per
share (2020: Nil) and a special dividend of HK3.0 cents per share.

During the year, the pandemic was basically under control in Mainland China,
and the Group’s production lines and sales network were able to resume
full operation. Moreover, as the effects of the internal circulation policy were
gradually apparent, domestic demand gradually recovered, thus benefiting
domestic sales. The pandemic has raised public awareness of health and hygiene,
leading to a sharp rise in demand for post-pandemic products such as medical
equipment and air filtration systems. In addition, the automotive and certain
heavy industries have benefited from the economic recovery, which in turn has
led to demand soaring for plastic materials from various industries. The plastic
trading business has therefore recorded the most significant improvement
among the Group's three major businesses. During the year under review, the
turnover of the plastic trading business increased by 22.2% year-on-year to
HK$1,333,415,000 (2020: HK$1,090,886,000). Profit before taxation amounted
to HK$53,484,000 (2020: loss of HK$30,605,000). General consumer electronics
and traditional automobile manufacturer customers continued to submit a
steady stream of orders to the Group. The Group also broadened its clientele
and successfully secured new customers such as developers of smart products,
household goods and high-end kitchenware. Its revenue stream was expanded
accordingly. In addition, the price of plastic materials has continued to rise during
the year. As the Group was able to effectively utilise its inventory, the inventory
situation has improved significantly. Consequently, the gross profit margin has

risen by 4.9 percentage points when compared with last year.

Chairman’s Statement
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ON AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Business Review (Continued)
Owing to the sharp rise in the price of raw materials, instability in the plastics
supply market, and increased orders from new customers, the turnover of the
engineering plastic business grew by 48.5% year-on-year to HK$262,923,000
(2020: HK$177,051,000). Gross profit margin climbed by 5 percentage points.
Profit before taxation surged by 94.6% to HK$38,912,000 year-on-year (2020:
HK$20,000,000). The introduction of various anti-pandemic measures by
different countries according to their pandemic situation have caused dramatic
changes to people's work and life patterns. More companies have adopted
flexible work-at-home arrangements, greatly increasing the length of time
ordinary consumers stay at home, thus creating a series of “new” demands. The
demand for general home appliances, such as kitchenware, has continued to rise.
In light of this, the Group has flexibly adjusted its marketing strategy. It continues
to receive orders from internationally renowned brands, while providing suitable
plastic solutions to new customers from various industries. It will continue to
enrich its existing product portfolio and enter the engineering plastic markets for
high-end kitchenware products with higher margins to meet customers’ needs

for more and larger orders.

The colorant, pigment and compounded plastic resin business has also
recorded growth in performance. Turnover increased by 20.5% year-on-year
to HK$374,736,000 (2020: HK$311,061,000). Gross profit margin grew by 3.6
percentage points. Profit before taxation rose by 54.5% to HK$29,719,000 (2020:
HK$19,238,000). Customers of the Group's colorant, pigment and compounded
plastic resin business come from different industries and regions, and are
mainly engaged in the automobile application, food packaging and construction
materials sectors. Therefore, orders have been relatively stable and less affected
by external economic factors. The Group will continue to focus on producing
high-end sanitary products and electronic products. It will also constantly raise
the production capacity of its factories to secure high gross profit margin orders

and maintain stable business development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Con

Prospects

International oil prices have been persistently high and raw material shortages
have continued, and the global economy is expected to continue improving as
the vaccination rate rises. However, the traditional peak season for Christmas
orders is coming to an end. The Group expects overseas suppliers will become
more cautious and will take a wait-and-see attitude in accordance with the
trends in raw material prices and international shipping rates. Hence, the number

of orders and the prices of products may fall modestly at the end of this year.

Given that domestic circulation will be the main theme of development in
Mainland China, the tremendous domestic market demand will help drive the
recovery. However, the dark cloud of the COVID-19 pandemic still hangs
heavily over the European and American markets, and some regions are even
facing different virus variants. Therefore, the outlook for global economic growth
remains uncertain. Barring any large-scale COVID-19 outbreak, the Group's
businesses are expected to sustain stable development in the first half of 2022.
And the management is cautiously optimistic about the long-term development
of its businesses in the future. In view of the generally uncertain conditions,
however, the Group will adopt a more prudent strategy in relation to the receipt
of orders and the management of inventory, so as to reduce risks associated

with rising inventory, accounts receivable and number of related turnover days.

In the long run, the Group will direct greater resources toward exploring and
attracting new customers while continuing to keep abreast of the needs of
existing customers. At the same time, it will make good use of its advantages and
years of industry experience, and continue to invest resources in enhancing its
product quality and strengthening high-end production technologies, as well as in

improving the overall gross profit margin and further optimising the product mix.
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ANALYSIS (Continued)

In the future, the Group will continue to implement stringent cost control
measures, actively improve overall administrative and operational efficiency, and
pragmatically manage its financial position in order to promote the sustainable

and steady development of the Company.

The Group's success in reducing the impact of the pandemic on its business
and achieving good results during the year under review is attributable to the
support of the management team and customers, as well as the diligence of all
employees. | would therefore like to express my sincere gratitude to all of the
aforementioned parties. The Group, as always, will continue to make every effort
to achieve lasting and sustainable growth as well as deliver long-term returns to

shareholders.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated cashflow
and banking facilities provided by its principal bankers. As at 30th June 2021 the
Group has available aggregate banking facilities of approximately HK$553,548,000
of which approximately HK$312,141,000 have been utilised and were secured
by corporate guarantees issued by the Company and legal charges on certain
leasehold land and buildings, investment properties and restricted bank deposits
in Mainland China and Hong Kong owned by the Group (see Notes |5, 16, 17,
and 24 to the consolidated financial statements). The Group's cash and cash
equivalents as at 30th June 2021 amounted to approximately HK$206,579,000.
The Group's gearing ratio as at 30th June 2021 was approximately 54.3%,
based on the total bank borrowings of approximately HK$319,708,000 and the
shareholders’ funds of approximately HK$588,417,000.

Details of the Group's capital commitments and the Company's contingent
liabilities are disclosed in Notes 31 and 3.1(d) to the consolidated financial

statements respectively.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group's borrowings and cash balances are primarily denominated i
Kong dollars, Renminbi and US dollars. The Group's purchases were principally
denominated in US dollars. The Group closely monitors currency fluctuations
and manages its exchange risk by entering into forward exchange contracts from

time to time.

At 30th June 2021,

settlement committed by the Group in respect of forward contracts in order

the maximum notional amount for the outstanding

to manage the Group's exposure in foreign currencies from its operations as

follows:
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EMPLOYEE INFORMATION
As at 30th June 2021, the Group had approximately 626 full-time employees.

The Group's emolument policies are formulated on the performance of
individual employees and are reviewed annually. The Group has an incentive
scheme which is geared to the profit of the Group and the performance of
its employees, as an incentive to motivate its employees to increase their
contribution to the Group. The Group also provides social or medical insurance
coverage, and provident fund scheme (as the case may be) to its employees

depending on the location of such employees.

APPRECIATION

I, on behalf of the Board, would like to take this opportunity to express my
gratitude to the Group'’s customers, suppliers and shareholders for their unfailing
support, my fellow directors, executives and staff for their hard work in the past
year. The Group will, as always, with prudence use its best endeavour to strive
for its long-term development and the best interest of the shareholders aiming

at attaining more promising results in the coming year.

HUI Sai Chung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28th September 2021
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REPORT OF
THE DIRECTORS

EEEHE




The Directors submit their report together with the audited fina
for the year ended 30th June 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 34 to the consolidated

financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by segment is set out in

Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group's business and the analysis of the Group's
performance for the year ended 30th June 2021 as well as prospects of the
Group's business are provided in the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 9 to 15
of this Annual Report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
There are a number of factors affecting the results and business operations of
the Group, some of which are inherent in the market and some are due to

external environment. Major risks and uncertainties are summarised as follows:

(i) Volatility of economic climate in Mainland China and Hong Kong, which is

closely related to consumption thereto.

In order to mitigate the impact of a weakening economy of Mainland
China, the Group is continuing to expand the overseas markets; and
continues to take a cautious approach in steering the Group forward, and

recognises the need to sustain sales momentum.

(i) Credit risk in the event of the counterparties’ failure to perform their

obligations.

The Group maintains a defined credit policy. An ageing analysis of trade
debtors is prepared on a regular basis and is closely monitored to minimise

any credit risk associated with receivables.

The Group's other financial risks and uncertainties are set out in Note 3 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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o important events affecting the Group have occurred since the end of the

financial year.

Financial Key Performance Indicators

Certain financial key performance indicators which complement and supplement
the financial disclosures are set out in the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Notes
to the Consolidated Financial Statements” on pages 9 to 15 and 69 to 190,
respectively, of this Annual Report.

Environmental Policies and Performance, and Compliance with Relevant Laws
and Regulations

The Group takes its corporate social responsibility to heart, and is fully
committed to making a difference for its staff, the community and the common
good. During the year there are a wide range of activities and campaigns held to

treasure the staff, community and the environment.

The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the Company's subsidiaries in
Hong Kong and Mainland China while the Company itself was incorporated in
Bermuda and is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). During the year ended 30th June 2021 and up to the date of this
Directors’ Report, the Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations

in the above-mentioned jurisdictions.

Relationships with its Key Stakeholders Including Employees, Customers and
Suppliers
() Employees
Recognising that human resources are one of the greatest assets of the
Group, the Group provides a variety of benefits, talent trainings and

development for employees.

(i) Customers
It is the Group's mission to satisfy different customers’ needs and
continues to contribute to the wellbeing of the public by providing plastic
materials which suit the customers’ requirements, which include their

social responsibility and sustainability.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Relationships with its Key Stakeholders Including Employees, Customers a
Suppliers (Continued)

(i) Key suppliers

The Group has developed long-standing relationships with a number of
suppliers and taken great care to ensure that they share our belief in good
quality and ethics. The Group prudently select suppliers and requires all of

them to comply with our social and environmental responsibility guidelines.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income

statement on page 61.

The Directors have declared an interim dividend and a special dividend of HKI.0
cent and HKI.0 cent per ordinary share respectively, totalling HK$7,384,000,
which was paid on 12th April 2021.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend and a special
dividend of HKI.0 cent and HK3.0 cents per ordinary share respectively, totalling
HK$14,768,000.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the
year are set out in Notes 27 and 37 to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are set

out in Note |5 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in Note

26 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Company available for distribution,
contributed surplus and retained earnings, amounted to
approximately HK$83,193,000 (2020: HK68,851,000).

Under The Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), a company may
not declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus,
if there are reasonable grounds for believing that (i) the company is, or would
after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; (i) the
realisable value of the company's assets would thereby be less than the aggregate

of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium account.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Bye-laws and
there was no restrictions against such rights under the laws of Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing

shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out on page 191.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company's

listed securities during the year.
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SHARE OPTIONS

On 22nd November 2012, the Company has adopted a share option scheme

(the “Scheme”) and terminated the share option scheme adopted by the

Company on 5th December 2002. Under the terms of the Scheme, the

Directors may, at their discretion, invite eligible participants to take up Share

Options to subscribe for the shares of the Company subject to the terms and

conditions stipulated therein.

Details of the Scheme are as follows:

()

(ii)

(i)

Purpose
The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Group to grant Share Options
to eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to

the Group.

Eligible participants

Any employee (whether full time or part time, including any executive
director but excluding any non-executive director) of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries; and the persons to whom the Directors may extend an
offer to take up Share Options as referred to in paragraph (2) of Appendix
Il of the circular issued by the Company on [8th October 2012.

Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of shares, which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding Share Options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not
exceed 30% of the total number of shares in issue from time to time. No
Share Option may be granted under the Scheme if such limit is exceeded.
The total number of shares available for issue under the Scheme as at the
date of the annual report is 36,920,000, which is 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as of that date.

The maximum entitlement for any one qualifying participant is that the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the Share
Options granted to each qualifying participant under the Scheme and any
other option schemes (including exercised and outstanding Share Options)
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares

in issue.
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pect of any particular Share Option, such period the Board of
Directors (the “Board”) may in its absolute discretion determine, save that
such period shall not expire more than |0 years from the date on which a

Share Option is granted and accepted by the grantee.

(v)  Amount payable on application or acceptance
An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance for
a period of 21 days from the date of grant. A nominal consideration of

HK$ | is payable on acceptance of the grant of a Share Option.

(vi)  Subscription price
The exercise price in respect of any particular option shall be (i) the
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange
daily quotations sheet on the date of offer for the grant of a Share Option,
(i) the average price of the shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer for the grant of a Share Option or (iii) the

nominal value of the share (whichever is the greater).

(vii)  The remaining life of the Scheme
The Board of Directors shall be entitled at any time within 10 years
between 22nd November 2012 and 21st November 2022 to offer the
grant of an option to any qualifying participants.

No Share Options have been granted since the adoption of the Scheme.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2021 are set out

in Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

No interest has been capitalised by the Group during the year.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year were:

Mr. HUI Sai Chung (Chairman)

Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong (Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. NG Chi Ming

Mr. HUI Yan Kuen

Mr. HUI Man Wai

Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey

Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul*

Mr. CHING Yu Lung*

Mr. YU Chi Kwong*

* Independent Non-executive Directors

All of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the

Company's Bye-laws.

Mr. NG Chi Ming, Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey and Mr. CHING Yu Lung retire
by rotation in accordance with clause 87 of the Company's Bye-laws and, being

eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

In order to comply with the code provision A.4.3 as set out in Appendix 4 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules"), separate resolution should be set out for shareholders of the Company
to approve the further appointment of Mr. CHING Yu Lung as Independent

Non-executive Directors at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term

subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.
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undamental policy of the Group’s remuneration and incentive scheme
is to link total compensation for senior management with the achievement of
annual and long-term performance goals. By providing total compensation at
competitive industry levels, the Group seeks to attract, motivate and retain
key executives essential to its long-term success. Senior management incentive
scheme includes an equity component that is designed to align the long-term
interest of management with those of shareholders. The remuneration package
comprises of annual directorship fees, salaries, discretionary bonuses and

incentive scheme.

The Independent Non-executive Directors are compensated with the aim
to fairly represent their efforts and time dedicated to the Board and various
committee meetings. The remuneration package represents annual directorship

fees.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the employer within one year without

payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to which the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION
Subject to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), every Director

is entitled under the Company's Articles of Association to be indemnified out
of the assets of the Company against all costs, charges, expenses, losses and
liabilities which he or she may sustain or incur in or about the execution or
discharge of his or her duties. To the extent permitted by such Ordinance, the
Company has taken out insurance against the liability and costs associated with
defending any proceedings which may be brought against directors of companies

in the Group.
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AND/OR SHORT PO
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTUR
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 30th June 2021, the interest and short positions of each Director and
chief executive in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance ('SFO")), as recorded in the register maintained by
the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) contained in

the Listing Rules were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company at 30th June 2021

RZE_—FA=+H"

REBITHRABRAR R REEREBE
B(EERBEr kBB GRAI(TESDRERK
BIFEXVED) BRARAB ARz ERKE
BRERNRBEESHERIFIDEFELZ
& fitz Bty - AR RAE 7 2 #Eam ok
B BIRBETRAZ EMARERELT
ERXZHRETAU(FRETIDERARR
BN PR AT -

R-ZBE-Z—FXA=Z+HAXQXATAEREE
0.1I0BTZEER

Mr. HUI Sai Chung FHIREE Long Positions {2 17,625,600
Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong TR KA Long Positions 7 & 19,850,400
Mr. HUI Yan Kuen FARLE Long Positions 47 A& -
Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey TAEEE Long Positions 478 —
Mr. HUI Man Wai XEEE Long Positions & 250,000

202,721,500 () - —

198,803,500 (b) - -

—
=
&
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SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION
(Continued)

Notes:

(a) 196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit Limited (“Good Benefit”), a
company in which Ever Win Limited (“Ever Win") holds a 45.1% interest (note (e)).
In addition, 6,000,000 shares are held by Ever Win directly.

50,001 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Ever Win are held by Mr.
HUI Sai Chung. Mr. HUI Sai Chung and his spouse further own 33,957 and 5
class A non-convertible redeemable preferred shares of no par value in Ever Win
respectively.

(b) 196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit, a company in which
Evergrow Company Limited (“Evergrow’) holds a 45.1% interest (note (e)). In
addition, 2,082,000 shares are held by Evergrow directly.

50,000 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Evergrow are held by
Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong. Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong further owns 30,823 class A non-
convertible redeemable preferred shares of no par value in Evergrow.

(c) 196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit, a company in which Ever
Win holds a 45.1% interest (note (e)). In addition, 6,000,000 shares are held by
Ever Win directly. 333 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Ever Win are
held by Mr. HUI Yan Kuen.

(d) 196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit, a company in which Ever
Win holds a 45.1% interest (note (e)). In addition, 6,000,000 shares are held by
Ever Win directly. 333 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Ever Win are
held by Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey.
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AND/OR SH

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBEN

COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

(Continued)

(e)  The beneficial interests of the Directors in the share capital of Good Benefit, which (e) EHBTEGood Benefit (R=ZE=—F /XA
held 196,721,500 shares of the Company as at 30th June 2021, are as follows: =+ HEHBFEARQF 196,721,500 %7 ) ik

Rz BafEmmT

Mr. HUI Sai Chung Eiguabtaa 4510 45.1%
Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong FFEIR S A 4510 45.1%
Mr. HUI Man Wai FFNIE A 360 3.6%
Others EAth 620 6.2%

10,000 100.0%

As at 30th June 2021, the following Directors owned interests in non-voting RZEZ—FA=+H  TESH
deferred shares in Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials Limited, which are subject to ERHEBBRERMERAFERERERL
an option granted to Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited to acquire the f& D HE% - Maz A A2 &% T Ngai Hing

said non-voting deferred shares.

(International) Company Limited AJ 88 £
MR RRERIE AR D < BBARKE -

Mr. HUI Sai Chung R A 200,000 50,000 (i)
Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong T S A 200,000 50,000 (ii)
Notes: 5T

() These shares are held by Ever Win.

(i)~ These shares are held by Evergrow.

()  FZERMEEver WinFF A ©

(i) FZEMR{D B Evergrow FF A ©
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UN DERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION
(Continued)

Save as disclosed above and other than certain nominee shares in the
subsidiaries of the Company held by certain Directors of the Company in trust
for the Group as at 30th June 2021, none of the Directors and chief executives
have any beneficial or non-beneficial interests in the share capital of the
Company and associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Options” above:

(a)  at no time during the year was the Company, its holding company or any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
or chief executives of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body

corporate; and

(b) none of the Directors, chief executives, their spouses or children under
the age of 18 had been granted any right to subscribe for shares in or

debentures of the Company, or exercised any such right.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

At 30th June 2021, the register of substantial shareholders required to be kept
under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that the Company had not
been notified of any substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions, being
5% or more of the Company's issued share capital, other than those of the

Directors and chief executives as disclosed above.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or

existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the Group's major

suppliers are as follows:

29%
65%

The largest supplier

Five largest suppliers combined

The aggregate percentage of sales attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers is less than 30% of the Group’s total sales for the year ended 30th
June 2021 and therefore no additional disclosure with regard to the major

customers is made.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company's share capital)

had an interest in the major suppliers noted above.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee provides an important link between the Board of
Directors and the Company's auditor in matters coming within the scope of the
group audit. It also reviews the effectiveness of the external audit and of internal
controls and risk evaluation. The Audit Committee comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul, Mr. CHING Yu Lung
and Mr. YU Chi Kwong. The Audit Committee has reviewed with management
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed
internal controls and financial reporting matters including a review of the annual

financial statements for the year ended 30th June 2021 with the Directors.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the total issued share capital of the

Company was held by the public as at the date of this report.
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REBREEFKBSTREBA
B RRBMERSRETEEREER

fEREHE o
On behalf of the Board RERESTE
HUI Sai Chung FrE
Chairman HrtEE
Hong Kong, 28th September 2021 B8 —E—FhAAZF+NH
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate governance
practices and procedures which serve as an important element of risk
management throughout the growth and expansion of the Company. The
Company emphasises on maintaining and carrying out sound, solid and effective

corporate governance principles and structures.

The Company has complied with all the applicable code provisions as set out
in Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report to the
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules (the “"CG Code") throughout the year ended

30th June 2021, except for the deviation as mentioned below.

According to the code provision A2.l1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer (chief executive for CG Code) should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. Up to the date of this
annual report, the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the
Company has not appointed any individual to be the chief executive. The roles
of the chief executive have been performed collectively by all the executive
Directors, including the chairman, of the Company. The Board considers that
this arrangement allows contributions from all executive Directors with different
expertise and is beneficial to the continuity of the Company's policies and
strategies. Going forward, the Board will periodically review the effectiveness of
this arrangement and considers appointing an individual as chief executive when

it thinks appropriate.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of

the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transaction. The Company has made specific enquiries to all Directors and all
Directors confirmed they have complied with the required standard of dealings

set out therein during the year.

Corporate Governance Report
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Corporate Governance Report

EEREAHRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board, number of Board meetings and Directors’
attendance

The Company's Board has a balance of skills and experience and a balanced
composition of executive and non-executive Directors. Save as disclosed in the
biographies of the Directors on pages 4 to 6 to the annual report, there is no
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship between Board
members. The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and on an ad-hoc
basis, as required by business needs. During the year, the Board held a total

of three regular board meetings, two ad-hoc board meetings and one general

B
ESRAR EFRRRRESHREAR

ARANESF S EEHENRITMER
MEFRITEFTHEIFRNTEZNEA TR
FOE BRARFREIZCANERRE
BErREEEIN  EFENE 2HIEEM
s m% - RESHMEKR MEH 2
& §$@DAEHHE}2E¥F%£H%DA¢#%|J
eBLABRTER NFRN EFgaH

meeting. The composition of the Board and attendance of the Directors are set BIIZREHESTEER MAKINES
out below: 28l —KXBRRAG - F=gENLE
EHFEFBOT
No. of No. of
No. of ad-hoc general
regular meetings meetings
meetings Attendance #7l  Attendance B3R Attendance
Attendants el flER® HRAH SFRE HLREAE KRERY HERR
Executive Directors: HITEE
Mr. HUI Sai Chung (Chairman) THIEE(EE) 3 3 2 2
Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong (Deputy Chairman — FEIX 4
and Managing Director) (BIZEREERLIE) 3 3 2 2 I \
Mr. NG Chi Ming RERLE 3 3 2 2 | \
Mr. HUI Yan Kuen BN i 3 3 2 2 | \
Mr. HUI Man Wai AAXERE 3 3 2 2 | \
Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey FAELE 3 3 2 2 | |
Independent Non-executive Directors: BYHEHTEE:
Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul fEstE 3 3 2 0 | \
Mr. CHING Yu Lung Bkt 3 3 2 0 | \
Mr. YU Chi Kwong RERTE 3 3 2 0 | \
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Composition of the Board, number of Board meetings and Directors’
attendance (Continued)

The balanced board composition ensured strong independence exists across
the Board and has met Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules to have at least one-
third of its members comprising independent non-executive Directors. At least
one of the independent non-executive Directors has appropriate professional
qualifications, accounting or financial management expertise. The biographies
of the Directors are set out on pages 4 to 6 to the annual report, which

demonstrates a diversity of skills, expertise, experience and qualifications.

The independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term

subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from the three
independent non-executive Directors in according with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Board has assessed their independence and concluded that all the
independent non-executive Directors are independent within the definition of

the Listing Rules.

Role and Function
The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to the executive
Directors and senior management, while reserve certain key matters for its

approval. The principal functions of the Board are:

®  to establish the strategic direction for the development of the Company

and set the objectives of the management;

® to approve annual budgets, major funding proposal and investment

proposals;
®  to decide on matters such as annual and interim results, major transactions,

directors appointment, and dividend and accounting policies; and

®  to oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy of internal controls,

risk management, financial reporting and compliance.
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Corporate Governance Report
EEREAHRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The members of the Board are responsible for preparing the financial statements
of the Company and of the Group. The financial statements are prepared on
a going concern basis and give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 30th June 2021, and of the Group’s profit
and cash flows for the year then ended. In preparing the financial statements
for the year ended 30th June 2021, the members of the Board have selected
appropriate accounting policies and, apart from those new and amended
accounting policies as disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30th June 2021, have applied them consistently
with previous financial periods. Judgments and estimates that have been made

are prudent and reasonable.

During the year ended 30th June 2021, the management provided all members
of the Board with monthly updates in accordance with the code provision C.1.2
of the CG Code.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditor are set out on pages 58 to
60.

Continuing Professional Development

All Directors, namely, Mr. HUI Sai Chung, Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong,, Mr. NG
Chi Ming, Mr. HUI Yan Kuen, Mr. HUI Man Wai, Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey,
Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul, Mr. CHING Yu Lung and Mr. YU Chi Kwong have
participated in continuous professional development by engaging in business
activities beneficial to the Company in their respective fields, including attending
seminar, workshops, conference and courses offered by professional bodies and
self-studying, to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills so as to ensure

that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Continuing Professional Development (Continued)

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable training to all
Directors for their continuous professional development. During the year
ended 30th June 2021 and up to the date of this annual report, the Company
has arranged to provide the Directors with briefing on the amendments to the

Listing Rules and self-studying materials.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering the liabilities
of the Directors that may arise out the corporate activities, which has been
complied with the CG Code. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual

basis.

Director’s Nomination Policy
The Director's nomination policy of the Company was adopted by the Board
and became effective on [st January 2019 and the nomination committee of the

Company (the “Nomination Committee”) is responsible for execution.

Director Nomination Process

The Nomination Committee utilises various methods for identifying director
candidates, including recommendations from Board members, management,
and headhunters. The Nomination Committee may also put forward director
candidates who are not nominated by Board members. In addition, the
Nomination Committee will consider director candidates properly submitted
by shareholders of the Company through formal procedures set out in the
Company’s Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election as a

Director.

For filling a casual vacancy, the Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations for the Board's consideration and approval. For proposing
director candidates to stand for election at a general meeting, the Nomination
Committee shall make nominations to the Board for its consideration and

recommendation.

All director candidates, including incumbents and candidates nominated by
shareholders of the Company are evaluated by the Nomination Committee
based upon the Director's qualifications. While director candidates will be
evaluated on the same criteria, the Nomination Committee retains the discretion
to establish the relative weighting of such criteria, which may vary based on the
composition, skill sets, and experiences of the collective Board rather than on

the individual candidate.
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Corporate Governance Report
EEREAHRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Director Nomination Process (Continued)

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to the
recommendation of director candidates by the Nomination Committee to stand
for election at any general meeting. The Board will take such recommendations
under advisement and is responsible for designating the director candidates to
be elected at the annual general meeting of the Company and electing Directors

to fill Board vacancies.

Procedure for Appointment of New Director

Director candidates will be asked to submit the necessary personal information
in a prescribed form, together with their written consent to be appointed as a
Director and to the public disclosure of their personal data on any documents
or the relevant websites for the purpose of or in relation to their standing for

election as a Director.

The Nomination Committee shall, upon receipt of the proposal on appointment
of new Director and the biographical information (or relevant details) of the
director candidate, evaluate such director candidate based on the criteria as
set out below to determine whether such director candidate is qualified for

directorship.

If the process yields one or more desirable director candidates, the Nomination
Committee shall rank them by order of preference based on the needs of the

Company and reference check of each director candidate (where applicable).

For any person that is nominated by a shareholder of the Company for
election as a Director at the general meeting of the Company, the Nomination
Committee shall evaluate such director candidate based on the criteria as set out
below to determine whether such director candidate is qualified for directorship
and where appropriate, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall make
recommendation to shareholders of the Company in respect of the proposed

election of Director at the general meeting (where applicable).

A director candidate is allowed to withdraw his/her candidature at any time
before the general meeting by serving a notice in writing to the company

secretary of the Company.

Until the issue of the shareholder circular, the nominated persons shall not
assume that they have been proposed by the Board to stand for election at the

general meeting.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Procedure for Re-appointment of Director at General Meeting

The Nomination Committee shall review the overall contribution and service
to the Company of the retiring Directors including their attendance of Board
meetings and, where applicable, general meetings, and the level of participation

and performance on the Board.

The Nomination Committee shall also review and determine whether the

retiring Directors continue to meet the criteria as set out below.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall then make recommendation
to the shareholders of the Company in respect of the proposed re-election of

Directors at the general meeting.

Director Selection Criteria
The Nomination Committee considers the following qualifications are at a
minimum to be required of a director candidate in recommending to the Board

potential new Director, or the continued service of existing Director:
(@) the highest personal and professional ethics and integrity;

(b)  proven achievement and competence in the nominee's field and the ability

to exercise sound business judgment;

(c) qualifications including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and

experience that are complementary to those of the existing Board;

(d) the ability to assist and support management and make significant

contributions to the Company's success;

(e) the contribution on diversity of the Board and any measurable objectives
adopted by the Nomination Committee for achieving diversity on the
Board:

() an understanding of the fiduciary responsibilities that is required of a
member of the Board and the commitment of time and energy necessary

to diligently carry out those responsibilities; and

(g) meet the “independence” criteria as required under the Listing Rules and
the composition of the Board is in conformity with the provisions of the

Listing Rules from time to time (where applicable).
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Director Selection Criteria (Continued)

Other than the foregoing, there are no stated minimum criteria for director
candidate, although the Nomination Committee may also consider such other
factors as it may deem to be in the best interests of the Company and the

shareholders of the Company.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Composition

The Nomination Committee was established on 26th March 2012 with written
terms of reference in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange.
The Nomination Committee consists of all independent non-executive Directors
and an executive Director. The composition and attendance record of the

Nomination Committee are as follows:

EE2H)

EETRENA)

BREXFraEI  BERBREGIAIEE
ZRAAERATEARARARARR
REMNGZ HEBEE  ERERAXREE
SREATEI 2REFTE -

REZEE

AR
REEEEN T —FE=A=+ AR
IR SR P E R E K - R EEA
FHEEBYFNTEFR —ARTES
AL AR R FREMT

Number of

meetings
attended/Total Attendance
HESBRE percentage
Attendants HEE S BRE H =
Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) MELEEE(ZEEFE) 2/2 100%
Mr. CHING Yu Lung TEIARE S A 212 100%
Mr. YU Chi Kwong RETE 22 100%
Mr. HUI Sai Chung FTH IR & 202 100%

Role and Function HERBE

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board (including the skills, knowledge and experience) on a
regular basis and make recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes; identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of, individuals
nominated for directorships; assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors; and making recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors. The Nomination Committee would review
the Board’s composition from time to time where Board diversity would be
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and education background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,

knowledge and length of services.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Role and Function (Continued)

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year to assess the structure,
size and composition of the Board. The Nomination Committee held two
meetings during the year ended 30th June 2021 to review the structure, size and

composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board.

Board Diversity Policy
The Board has updated a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) in

January 2019 which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the Company
sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of

diversity on the Board.

In designing the Board's composition, Board diversity has been considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of

service.

Independence

The Board includes a balanced composition of executive, non-executive and
independent non-executive Directors so that there is a strong element of
independence in the Board. The independent non-executive Directors shall be

of sufficient caliber and stature for their views to carry weight.

Gender and age

The Company is committed to maintaining an environment of respect for people
regardless of their gender in all business dealings and achieving a workplace
environment free of harassment and discrimination on the basis of gender,
physical or mental state, race, nationality, religion, age or family status. The same
principle is applied to the selection of potential candidates for appointment to
the Board.
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EEREAHRE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Skills and experience

The Board members should possess a balance of skills appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Group, including the independent non-
executive Directors possessing professional accounting and other qualifications.
The Directors have a mix of finance, academic and management backgrounds
that taken together provide the Group with considerable experience in a range
of activities including varied industries, education, government, investment and

the professions.

Measurable Objectives
[ The Company should comply with the requirements on board composition

under the Listing Rules from time to time.

2. The number of independent non-executive Directors should be not less
than three and one-third of the Board.

3. At least one of the independent non-executive Directors must have
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial

management expertise.

4. At least one Director should be the professional or have intensive

experience of the industry on which the business of the Group is.

Having reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and the Board's composition, the
Nomination Committee considered that the requirements of the Board Diversity

Policy had been met.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Composition

The Company has formulated written terms of reference which were revised
on Ist January 2019 for the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee™) in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange. The

Audit Committee consists of all independent non-executive Directors. The
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composition and attendance record of the Audit Committee are as follows: KR ELEOT
Number of
meetings
attended/Total Attendance
HEERRH percentage
Attendants HE & SR HE =
Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) — AEESLE(ZEESEE) 3/3 100%
Mr. CHING Yu Lung Bkt 33 100%
Mr. YU Chi Kwong REHTE 3/3 100%
Role and Function AERBE

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to ensure the objectivity and
credibility of financial reporting, risk management and internal control procedures
as well as to maintain an appropriate relationship with the external auditor of

the Company.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are aligned with the
recommendations set out in “A Guide for Effective Audit Committees” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Listing Rules. Given

below are the main duties of the Audit Committee:

(@) to consider the appointment of the external auditor and any questions of

its resignation or dismissal;

(b) to discuss with the external auditor before the audit commences, the

nature and scope of the audit;
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EEREAHRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

Role and Function (Continued)
(c) to review the half-year and annual financial statements before submission
to the Board, focusing particularly on:
(i)  any changes in accounting policies and practices;
(i) major judgmental areas;
(iii)  significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv) the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(v)  compliance with accounting standards;

(vi) compliance with Listing Rules and legal requirements in relation to

financial reporting; and
(d) to discuss problems and reservations arising from the audits, and any

matters the external auditor may wish to discuss (in the absence of

management where necessary).

For the year ended 30th June 2021, the Audit Committee met three times, in
particular, to review and discuss the followings:

®  the auditing and financial reporting matters;

®  the appointment of external auditor;

° the establishment of internal control system; and

®  the interim results and the annual financial statements.

Each member of the Audit Committee has unrestricted access to the auditors

and all senior staff of the Group.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Composition

The Company has formulated written terms of reference which were revised
on 26th March 2012 for the remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee™) in accordance with the requirements of the Stock
Exchange. The Remuneration Committee consists of three independent non-
executive Directors and an executive Director. The composition and attendance

record of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:
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Number of

meetings
attended/Total Attendance
Hjﬁg%;ﬂﬁ Percentage
Attendants HEE /S BRE HE=
Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) AREEEE(ZESFE) 3/3 100%
Mr. CHING Yu Lung ke 3/3 100%
Mr. YU Chi Kwong RENRFEE 3/3 100%
Mr. HUI Sai Chung RS A 33 100%

Role and Function

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal and transparent
procedures for developing remuneration policies and making recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration packages of the individual executive
Directors and senior management. This includes benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation payable for loss
or termination of their offices or appointment. It takes into consideration on
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and

responsibilities of Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year to assess the
performance and review the annual salaries and bonus of the senior executives.
The Remuneration Committee held three meetings during the year ended 30th
June 2021 to review the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
and the remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior management of

the Group.
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EEREAHRE

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the nature of the audit and non-audit services provided by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, and the relevant fee paid

and payable by the Company for such services are as follows:

BB &

RER - NA BB 2 KB K8 & 5D
SHAREZERZMIEFERRYE - MAR
ARZERGENMENZEBERD
T~

HK$’000
TR
Audit services for the Group RAEERE  EZRB 2,046
Non-audit services including: IEEZIRTEBIE -
— review of interim results —EMPEES 276
— taxation services for the Group —RAEBRMH ZHIBRS 288
— agreed upon procedures on the Group's —AEETFEEAMIETER
annual results announcement 24
Total e 2,634
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE TEEREES
Composition EER2
A corporate governance committee of the Company (the “Corporate AARINEEERLZEG([EEREZE
Governance Committee”) was established on 26th March 2012 with written R E-—-F=AZ+XBRETH
terms of reference in accordance with the CG Code. The Corporate RENBEGENY - DEXBERLZEEH
Governance Committee consists of all independent non-executive Directors. DB IFNITESRMEN - HAKKRLER
The composition and attendance record of the Corporate Governance eI
Committee are as follows:
Number of
meetings
attended/Total Attendance
HESBRE percentage
Attendants HEE S BRE HE=
Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) MEEE*E(ZEEEEE) 2/2 100%
Mr. CHING Yu Lung RINBESL & 212 100%
Mr. YU Chi Kwong RENTE 212 100%
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE (Continued)

Role and Function

The Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for developing and
reviewing the policies and practices on corporate governance of the Group and
making recommendations to the Board; reviewing and monitoring the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior management;
reviewing and monitoring the Group's policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; developing, reviewing and monitoring
the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors; and reviewing the Group's compliance with the CG Code and

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report of the Company.

The Corporate Governance Committee meets at least once a year to review the
corporate governance functions. The Corporate Governance Committee held
two meetings during the year ended 30th June 2021 to review the corporate
governance policy in the Group and recommend the training arrangement on

corporate governance to the employees of the Group.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and reviewing their effectiveness. The Group
has formulated and adopted a risk management process which includes risk
identification, risk evaluation, risk mitigation, risk monitoring and reporting. At
least on an annual basis, the management of the Company identifies risks that
would adversely affect the achievement of the Group's objectives, and assesses
and prioritises the identified risks according to a set of standard criteria. Risk
mitigation plans are then established for those risks considered to be significant,

which include regular reporting to the Audit Committee and the Board.

The management of the Company has established a set of comprehensive policies,
standards and procedures in areas of operational, financial and risk controls
for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition; for maintaining
proper accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial information
to achieve a satisfactory level of assurance against the likelihood of the
occurrence of fraud and errors. In addition, the Group has established internal
control protocols and control self-assessment process on major operations.

Assessment results are submitted to the Board for ongoing monitoring purpose.
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EEREAHRE

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

For the purpose of enhancing the risk management and internal control systems,
the Company has engaged an external consultant to assist the Board and
the Audit Committee in ongoing monitoring and in performing the internal
audit functions for the Group. Deficiencies in the design and implementation
of internal controls are identified and recommendations are proposed for
improvement. Significant internal control deficiencies are reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board on a timely basis to ensure prompt remediation

actions are taken.

The Board has reviewed and considered the Group's risk management and
internal control systems were effective and adequate during the year. The
risk management and internal control systems of the Group are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material

misstatement or loss.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHAN Ka Ho (“Mr. Chan") was appointed as the company secretary of the
Company on Ist January 2007. In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Chan possesses
the necessary qualifications and experience, and is capable of performing the
functions of a company secretary. Mr. Chan is the secretary of the Board and
various Board committees including audit committee, remuneration committee,

Corporate Governance Committee and nomination committee.

During the year ended 30th June 2021, Mr. Chan has complied with Rule 3.29 of

the Listing Rules by taking no less than |5 hours of relevant professional training.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair disclosure and
comprehensive and transparent reporting of its performance and activities.
Enquiries and suggestions from shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) or investors are welcomed, and enquiries from Shareholders
may be put to the Board through the following channels to the company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary"):

by mail to the Company’s head office at Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory
Center, 10 Wo Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong;

2. by telephone at telephone number +852 2693 1663;

3. by fax at fax number +852 2694 0877; or

4. by email at info@nhh.com.hk.

Annual and interim reports are printed and sent to all shareholders.
Announcements are posted on the Company's corporate website http://www.
nhh.com.hk. Constantly being updated in a timely manner, the website also

contains additional information on the Group's business activities.

The Company encourages its shareholders to attend general meetings to ensure
a high level of accountability and to stay informed of the Group's strategy and

goals.

The Company keeps shareholders informed of the procedure for voting by
poll in all circulars to shareholders which are from time to time despatched to
shareholders together with notices of general meetings of the Company. The
Company has taken steps to ensure compliance with the requirements about
voting by poll contained in the Listing Rules and the constitutional documents
of the Company. The Board attends the Annual General Meetings to answer
shareholders’ questions. Poll results are published on the website of the Stock
Exchange and are posted on the Company’s corporate website shortly after the

meetings.
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EEREAHRE

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT (Continued)

According to the Company's bye-laws, members holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty- one
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions of
Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person (the “Candidate”) for election as a
Director at a general meeting, he/she shall deposit a written notice (the “Notice”)
at the Company's head office in Hong Kong at Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory
Centre, 10 Wo Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong. The
Notice (i) must include the personal information of the Candidate as required
by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and his/her contact details; and (i) must be
signed by the Shareholder concerned including the information/documents to
verify the identity of the Shareholder and signed by the Candidate indicating his/
her willingness to be elected and consent of publication of his/her personal data.
The period for lodgement of the Notice shall commence on the day after the
dispatch of the notice of general meeting and end no later than seven days prior
to the date of such general meeting. In order to ensure the Shareholders have
sufficient time to receive and consider the proposal of election of the Candidate
as a Director without adjourning the general meeting, Shareholders are urged to
submit and lodge the Notice as soon as practicable, say at least fifteen business

days prior to the date of the general meeting appointed for such election.

The Board has established a shareholders communication policy on 26th March
2012 and will review it on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness to comply
with the code provision E.|.4 of the CG Code.
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DIVIDEND POLICY
The dividend policy of the Company (the “Dividend Policy”") was adopted by the

Board and became effective on |st January 2019.

The Dividend Policy is to ensure that the Board maintains an appropriate
procedure on declaring and recommending the dividend payment of the
Company. The Board endeavors to strike a balance between the Company's
shareholders’ interests and prudent capital management with a sustainable
dividend policy.

The declaration and recommendation of dividends is subject to the decision of
the Board after considering the Company's ability to pay dividends, which will
depend upon, among other things:

° the Group's financial results;

® the Group's cashflow, liquidity and capital requirements;

* the Group's debt to equity ratios and the debt level;

®  the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Group;

° the Group's shareholders’ interests;

* the Group's current and future business operations, conditions, cycle and

strategies;

®  the general market conditions;

®  the shareholders’ and the investors' expectation and industry's norm;

® any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by the

Group's lenders;

. statutory and regulatory restrictions;

. past dividend record; and

. any other factors the Board may deem relevant.
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EEREAHRE

DIVIDEND POLICY (Continued) RE R (&)

The Board has complete discretion on whether to pay a dividend and the form EZ20 2 ENBERAEETIERMNRE RIK
to pay, subject to any restrictions under the Companies Act of Bermuda and the N2z WEBTREREARDERER
Bye-laws of the Company. Any final dividends declared by the Company must AAABERAB 2 ERBRE - XARE M
be approved by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the Company at ERRAREMNBELERENREBAFRE
an annual general meeting and must not exceed the amount recommended by FUAEBABRRTUAIE - B NS @BBRE
the Board. The Board may also consider declaring special dividends from time to EEMERIST - BRPEE SREK
time, in addition to the interim and/or final dividends. There is no assurance that BoN EEGIA AR ZE B E IR AR
dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any given period. B o RARI P ERBEEEMEEHREIR
MEMFESE IS °

The Company shall review and reassess the Dividend Policy and its effectiveness PIN/NEIF SN RN DN R R L SN 12 65
from time to time. Any revisions to the Dividend Policy shall be considered and HAR - REBEMEHESTIBERES
approved by the Board. eEIRBA -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 6! to 190,

which comprise:

® the consolidated balance sheet as at 30 June 2021;

®  the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

® the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then
ended;

®  the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

®  the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a

summary of significant accounting policies.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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OPINION (Continued)

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30th June 2021, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“"HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other

ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,

and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is provision for inventories and valuation

of investment properties.

’ NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | RREITHERLQF
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
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FEEENTEE®)

Key Audit Matter BRETEE

Provision for inventories FREEE

Refer to Notes 2.1/, 4(e) and 21 of the consolidated financial statements BRRGFE AN Z2.11 - 4(e) K21
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value, being BTRK A #IRFERER 2BE
estimated selling price less estimated selling costs. As at 30th June 2021, the %@JEE AR FEDREGHERS

Group's balance of net inventories was HK$238,324,000.

The estimation of provision for inventories involves significant management
judgement which is determined with reference to the price per latest sales
transaction, ageing analysis and the estimated net realisable value for obsolete

and/or slow-moving inventories.

We focused on the evaluation of management’s assessment on the provision
for inventories because this assessment is subject to estimate uncertainty. The
inherent risk in relation to the assessment relates to the complexity of the
methods and subjectivity of significant assumptions used, significant judgements
involved in selecting data, and the carrying values of these inventories are

financially significant to the Group.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

EEETEE @)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BN ENTEERARENEE

Provision for inventories (Continued)

In assessing the reasonableness of management's provision for inventories, we

performed the following procedures:

U We obtained an understanding on the management's internal control and
assessment process of estimating the provision allowance of obsolete and
slow-moving inventories, net realisable values, including how management
gathered source of inventory data and adopted the assumption for
provision allowance. We evaluated the Group's inventory provision
policy with reference to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards. We assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and level of other

inherent risk factors;

. We assessed the reasonableness of methodology and assumptions
applied to estimate inventories provision for obsolete and slow-moving
inventories by inquiring management and other relevant employees
and comparing against historical sales, reviewing utilisation pattern and

historical inventory ratios (e.g. inventory turnover days) and data;

. We reviewed the inventories ageing report and tested inventories
movements to validate the accuracy of the inventories ageing report,
which was the key report used by management to determine the

provision for slow-moving inventories;

. In relation to management's assessment of inventories’ provision for net
realisable values, we compared the selling prices used in the assessment

to actual selling prices subsequent to year end; and

®  We tested the accuracy of provision calculation by performing

mathematical recalculation of the provision.

We found the assumptions adopted and judgement applied by management

were supported by the available evidence.
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FEEENTEE®)

Key Audit Matter

HEETEE

Valuation of investment properties

Refer to Notes 2.6, 4(c), 7 and |7 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group's investment properties were carried at HK$ 155,013,000 as at
30th June 2021 with a revaluation loss of HK$2,677,000 recorded in the

consolidated income statement for the year ended 30th June 2021.

The fair values of the investment properties held by the Group were derived
using the income capitalisation method. An independent professional valuer
was engaged by management to assist in estimating the fair values of the
investment properties. Due to the unique nature of each investment property,
the assumptions applied in the valuations were determined having regard to
each property's characteristics. These valuations are dependent on certain
key assumptions that require significant judgement, such as capitalisation rates
including outgoings, passing rentals of the current leases and comparable

market transactions.

We focused on the evaluation of management's assessment on the valuations
of the Group's investment properties because this assessment is subject to
some degree of estimation uncertainty. The inherent risk in relation to the
assessment is considered elevated due to the complexity of the methods and
subjectivity of significant assumption used, significant judgements involved
in selecting data and the carrying values of these investment properties are

financially significant to the Group.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FEREFITSH®

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BN ENTEERARENEE

Valuation of investment properties (Continued)

In assessing the reasonableness of management’s valuations of investment

properties, we performed the following procedures:

U We obtained an understanding of the management's internal control and
assessment process of valuation of investment properties and assessed
the inherent risk of material misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors such as

subjectivity.

. We obtained and reviewed the valuation reports prepared by the
independent professional valuer. We evaluated the independent

professional valuer's competence, capabilities and objectivity.

. We involved our in-house valuation experts in assessing the valuation
methodology used and the appropriateness of the key assumptions
adopted such as the passing rentals of current leases (“Yields") by
comparing them to publicly available data and their knowledge of the

property industry.

L We have also checked the Yields adopted by the independent
professional valuer by comparing them to latest lease agreements of the
Group as at 30th June 2021 and independent data based on our own

market research.

o We assessed the reasonableness of the fair value of the investment
properties valued by independent professional valuer by comparing

against the market transactions based on our own market research.

We found the valuation methodology and key assumptions used by
management were supported by the available evidence obtained and

procedures performed.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual report
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be

materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We

have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting

process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic

decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional

judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group's internal control.

’ NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | RREITHERLQF
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions

and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats

or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh

the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s

report is Chan Hin Gay Gabriel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28th September 202 |
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Consolidated Income Statement
e e

For the year ended 30th June 2021
BE—F-——FNA=1HIFE

2021 2020
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
ifzs FERT TAET
Revenue from contracts with customers BEP ez Es 5 1,971,074 1,578,998
Cost of sales SHE BN 8 (1,623,857) (1,390,269)
Gross profit EF 347,217 188,729
Rental income HE WA 6 7,219 7,509
Other losses, net Hith &8 — 558 7 (2,279) (1,668)
Distribution costs DA 8 (86,125) (70,799)
Administrative expenses TH X H 8 (135,620) (103,368)
Operating profit Epingl 130,412 20,403
Finance income A 75 ek 1,137 1,109
Finance costs MBER (9,952) (18,122)
Finance costs, net MBER—FH 9 (8,815) (17,013)
Profit before income tax b 5 A1 121,597 3,390
Income tax expense BHIEX 10 (25,178) (5.814)
Profit/(loss) for the year RERF,(FE) 96,419 (2,424)
Attributable to: AT AT
Equity holders of the Company NAEIRRE 89,865 (6,212)
Non-controlling interests FEIEHIRER 6,554 3,788
96,419 (2,424)
Earnings/(loss) per share for profit attributable to  ZNF /& 2 BIAR 3R FE 16 & F
equity holders of the Company during the year ZEREF(BE)
(expressed in HK cent per share) (AR AET)
— Basic and diluted —HEARREE 12 24.34 (1.68)
The above consolidated income statement should be read in conjunction with AR S W R 7 R B B BT BT 5 — DF BB o

the accompanying notes.

¢
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

aaftilsEx

For the year ended 30th June 2021
BE—E-—FNA=FTHIFE

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
THxT FAT
Profit/(loss) for the year REHHN,(EEE) 96,419 (2,424)
Other comprehensive income/(loss): Hibh 2w (Ei8) :
[tem that will not be reclassified subsequently to RETSHETHEE
income statement: Wk sIBEE -
Fair value gain of financial asset at fair value BANEBEBET AHM
through other comprehensive income PHERENMEEE 2
(“FVOCI™) NABEKS 363 186
[tem that may be reclassified subsequently to R wER EE

income statement: Wesk 2 IEE -

Currency translation differences M =R 41,242 (17,625)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year AEHMEERE(EE) 41,605 (17,439)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year AEZEME(BIE) B8 138,024 (19,863)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to: 2ENE (BB REEERN

— Equity holders of the Company —RAEIRE 130,479 (23,397)
— Non-controlling interests — IR 7,545 3,534
138,024 (19,863)

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
ReBEEAER

As at 30th June 2021

REZF=Z—F N NA=1H

2021 2020
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
{iFsd THET TAET
ASSETS aE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Wz - BE kA I5 113,126 105,307
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16 27,107 25,167
Investment properties WEME 17 155,013 155,292
Intangible assets mEEE 18 = —
Financial asset at fair value through BRAREETAEM
other comprehensive income ZHRGEHNMIEEE 19 2,226 1,863
Deferred income tax assets REBIEEE 29 8,132 13,841
Deposits and prepayments for property, ME - BB RREEEE
plant and equipment and renovation costs BRRRZ® 3,458 7,951
309,062 309,421
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 21 238,324 292,804
Trade and bills receivables BN N EREE 22 276,823 195,245
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits HAth R - TBITR
s 32,240 36,005
Income tax recoverable EIRLEETRE 784 372
Restricted bank deposits R B IRITIE R 24 38,344 34,898
Cash and cash equivalents ReRFeEHE 24 206,579 126,094
793,094 685,418
Total assets naE 1,102,156 994,839
EQUITY S
Capital and reserves attributable to AR RREGRAE K B
the Company’s equity holders
Share capital A% AN 26 36,920 36,920
Share premium AR B 26 62,466 62,466
Other reserves H b 27 60,731 20,117
Retained earnings RE & A 27 428,300 345819
588,417 465,322
Non-controlling interests FEfEEI R 31,727 25,199
Total equity QB 620,144 490,521

ANNUAL REPORT FEIRE 20/ 21 ‘ -
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
HRoEEAER

As at 30th June 2021

REFEZ—FNNA=1+H

2021 2020
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
s FET T T
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFRIBEE 29 4,496 6,559
Lease liabilities HEBE 16 4,014 3216
Provision for reinstatement costs 1E1E R AN B 23 884
8,533 10,659
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and bills payables B RNRRENZR 25 78,252 87,257
Other payables, deposits received and accruals Hinfe s - 2EET 2
LFEREH 57,655 27,656
Lease liabilities HEAE 16 4,784 3,803
Bank borrowings RITEE 28 319,708 365,377
Derivative financial instruments TEsMI A 23 23 1,246
Income tax payable JEfI B8 13,057 8,320
473,479 493,659
Total liabilities HwWEE 482,012 504,318
Total equity and liabilities BEZREE 1,102,156 994,839

H

AR & B E B B R R EBE MY i — 5F50

o

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the

i

accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 69 to 190 were approved by the FOEIVENMBHRREHETE N

Board of Directors on 28th September 2021 and were signed on its behalf T —FRAAZFTNAB#E  YRKES
BRE

HUI Sai Chung HUI Kwok Kwong

B it B FFE K

Chairman Deputy Chairman and Managing Director

e BIFEFEFLETE
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At IstJuy 2019 WZZ-NEtR-R

Comprehensive income 2ENE
(Loss)lproft for the year KE(E8) /&
Other comprehensive income Efb2EdE
Currency transaton diferences EizE
Fair value gain of fnancia asset at VOO A BEST AR M2 ENE
WEEE DA ERNG
Total comprehensive income 2ANEEE
Transactions with owners EFEEZRE
Capital injecton from anon-controlling ~~ FHERIREZEE
sharcholder (Note 35) (H33s)

Dividends paid to non-cortrollng nterests % F3kA5IER 2R &

704 10| B 512593
- (621 378 (044
(17319) - (306) (17625)
- - 5 186
(17319) (621) 354 (19863)
- - %0 %0

Total transactions with owners HfiREz X588

At 30th une 2020 WZZZEF7A=TH

12,385 345819 1% 490521
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Attributable to the Company's equity holders

AFRRERR
Other reserves
AfER
Financial
assets at
fair value
through
other
comprehensive
income reserve
‘AR Exchange
EEHA fluctuation
Share Share Capital ~ Revaluation Afp2E reserve Retained
capital premium reserve reserve KEHEH Eil earnings
Bx BxaR ERRE EfRE KERE  RERE  RERA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
Thn T Thn T T TR T

At 15ty 2020

RZE-ZE+A-A

Comprehensive income 2ENE
Proft for the year HERT
Other comprehensive income Efb2EdE
Currency translation differences EizE
Fair value gan of financial asset at VOCI - RAREREFF AL 2 ENE
mEEE M BRRE
Total comprehensive income 2ANEEE
Transactions with owners BFEEZRE
Capital injection from non-controling FiblRTE
shareholders (Note 35) (M3t39)

2020721 interim dividend paid
RS

Dividends paid to non-controling interests - R HERT RS

Rfi=32%/23--%§

BfRELRA4E

Total transactions with owners

At 30th june 2021

RIE--FAAZ1A

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED |

RETHRDF

Non-
controlling
interests
FEHRR
HK$'000
TR

Total
]
HK$'000
T

AR A o 2 B AR R LB P Y R — B

=,
i1



2021 2020
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
k53 THET THET
Cash flows from operating activities REEB BB
Cash generated from operations REXBIESXZR® 30(a) 121,257
Hong Kong profits tax paid EHERENEH (2,155)
Mainland China income tax paid B8R B R PSR (6,660)
Interest received =R &N 198
Net cash generated from operating activites ~ &&&EEBFMEELEZFHRE 112,640
Cash flows from investing activities REEBZREN
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE HERERE (8,646)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  BERR
plant and equipment FRiS3K 30(b) 133
Prepayments for property, ME - BE RERETEAR
plant and equipment (7,720)
Restricted bank deposits X EIERITER (177)
Net cash used in investing activities KEXKMER 2 FHE (16,410)

ANNUAL REPORT EEIRE 20/ 21
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FERERER

For the year ended 30th June 2021
BE T —FNA=1THIFEF

2021 2020
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
ifzs FERT TAET
Cash flows from financing activities MEEXBREN
Proceeds from bank loans FrigIR1TE K 591,701 211,045
Repayment of bank loans BERITEXK (636,246) (222,478)
Decrease in trust receipt loans EFEUUIR B TR (6,771) (26,118)
Capital injections from EEdER 2T E
non-controlling interests 85 2,696 980
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests XA T ISR 2 R E (3,713) (3,189)
Dividends paid XARE (7,261) —
Interest paid ERFLE (9,952) (17,382)
Repayment of principal elements of BREHEEAGBRSE D
lease liabilities (4,734) (3,869)
Net cash used in financing activities BMEXBAERAZFRE (74,280) 61011)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents B RIBSEEE7EM 72,376 35219
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of FUzRERREEFHE
the year 24 126,094 93,601
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEEXRBHTE 8,109 (2,726)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year ~FARZIRERIRNEEFR 24 206,579 126,094

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction

with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited (the “Company’) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacturing and
trading of plastic materials, pigments, colorants, compounded plastic resins

and engineering plastic products.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 1|, Bermuda.

The Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars ("HK$"), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on
28th September 2021.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issues by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment properties,
available-for-sale financial asset, financial asset at fair value through
other comprehensive income and financial liabilities (including
derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss, which are

carried at fair value.

FEMIBHRRMEE

—REH
BRETERDA(AAA]) REM
BARA(RBIAEE])EER TS
BEH 25 S8 BHRT
REHZBEREE -

ARRRRABREEMZz —HAA
REME DA A Al s
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM I |, Bermuda °

ARABZBMECRBBBARXSM
BRARZERLET -

BRIEE SINFIER - RERE Bk
ThAB IR « RigE M B®wEKE
RZE-_—FAA-+\BHHEES
PR -

TESTHRME

TR 6 B 5 R SR AR
ZEBRHBE - BIEDEAIE
EERRENEIZHAEEEEMN
A -

2. HmEREE
RARKGZE VB REERE
BERGTMASHBAENE S
5 R R B ACR AMEHD
(BNE)NRTERE - 586
SRR BIRRBRE £ R AE R
8 WRIZRAAEBEIIENKL
BHEEME RAABER
AEMEZARSENTHEER
BRANEBEERBRYIEZH
BEEEETETIR)MESL

CHIN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B A Rk aE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESTHREBE@®
POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2. HRREE(E)
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs RETE BN B RELERDN
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also MHEREFTECRE THEEs
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of AEE - ENTEERERLR
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher AREEN ST BERBIEPIT
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and B E HIE o P R E R H e sk
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are SEEEENERE P RY
disclosed in Note 4. A MR B EAREMME
Boghs - AT RE -
(a) Effect of adopting new standards, amendments to standards (a) FRANFTZER| - #2ER) a9
and interpretation B2 FE 2 2225
The Group has applied the following new standards and AEEERBEZZEZF
amendments to standards for the first time for the annual F+ A —HRKF R
period beginning on st July 2020: MEXERNLTHER
MEAERIEER] -
Amendments to Hong Kong Accounting Definition of Material
Standard (“HKAS") | and HKAS 8
HBEBGFERE I K RBFE G BERNESE
AR 8 SRHIER]
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business
BEBIM B HREERE 3RNER] EHHER
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Hedge Accounting
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
HEBMBREERNFE IR - mestmE
R GRTERE 39K NEE
BT ERE RIS 7 SREVER]
Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions
HBEBMBREERNE |6 SRNER] 2019 AV E AR SR B EME SRR
Conceptual Framework for Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

Financial Reporting 2018

R \FHBEREOBER BB RE OB SAER

4
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

Y

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

POLICIES (Continued)

2.1
@

)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Effect of adopting new standards, amendments to standards

and interpretation (Continued)

The adoption of the above new standards and amendments to
standards did not have any impact on the amounts recognised
in prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect the

current or future periods.

The following new standards and amendments to standards
have been issued but are not effective for the annual
period beginning Ist July 2020 and have not been early

adopted:

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 4,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 6

HEBGAERE 395K -
BBV HMEERE 455

BEMBREEAF 7R
BBMBREERE 95N
BEMBHREERF |6 SRANER]

Amendments to HKFRS 6
HEBVBMERERZE 6 5RMIERT

Amendments to HKFRS 3
BRBMEEwEERE IRAEE]

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020
BAMBHRERN-_F-—N\FE
— T TERHCFERENE

Amendments to HKAS |6
HEBGHERSE 16 RABE]

Amendments to HKAS 37
HEAGHERSE 37 RAEET

Amendments to Accounting Guideline 5

HEETE5IFE S RAERT

Amendments to HKAS | and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2
HEAGHENS | KREBMERE
LR B RNEE 2HRMIER]

FEMIBHRRMEE

FESTHREME@®)
21 REEEE)
() ERANZTER) - HEAIH

EA2RZE (E)

R 4 _E SR 51) B # 2 Al
A0S R e 2 5] H R 8
EHHEERANCBLE
TRAxE BEHTE
HHARREBEES
EXFE-

KU T BE XA IER
BEE—FE-—FFELH
— H #E 79 81 B F JE £ 3%
#2728 Bl % 212 Rl 1 15
i AEE I EIE R IR
ﬁi] :

()

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2!

MREENE —E R

COVID- 19 Related Rent Concessions beyond 30th June 20212
R -FRAZTHR09FEERESRBEEBESRE?

Reference to the Conceptual Framework?

B SRR B A

Amendments to HKFRS |, HKFRS 9, HKFRS 16 and HKAS 413

HBEBMBHRELERNE |5 - BEMBREERNF IR -
BAMBHRELERE 16 R RBBGAENE 41 RAERT

Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use?
ME  WRRRE - ERERGEI ZAFHIR®

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract®

BHEEAH -BITANZKA?

Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations?
KRZEH Az A EHR’

Disclouse of Accounting Policies*

SRR ABE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B A Rk aE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESTHTHEEEm@)

POLICIES (Continued)
2. Basis of preparation (Continued) 2./

(b) The following new standards and amendments to standards
have been issued but are not effective for the annual
period beginning st July 2020 and have not been early
adopted: (Continued)

HKFRS 17 and Amendments to HKFRS |7 Insurance Contracts*
BENBRELENE 179K R & R
HEBPBMEERZE 1 75ROERT

WREEE)

(b) UTHE AR
BEZ-_FE_FTF+AH
— AR B FEEH

72T R K 212 Rl 1 &
i AEE AR R
A (&)

Amendments to HKAS | Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current*

HBEBGTELE | ROERT HEESBERRBDAIFRY"

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates®

HEBGERNE S RAER] SR fAETESR"

Amendments to HKAS 12 Preferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities Arising from
a Single Transaction®

HEBGTERNE 125RHEFT RPELEZEENBEHEBELRE!

Amendments to Hong Kong Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by

Interpretation 5 the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment

on Demand Clause*

HEBREBESTOER MBHERZ2Y) - ERAHEERBREEGERZ EHER
Z/'\;FE 4

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sales or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and

its Associate or Joint Venture®

HEBYBRELNE 105 R REEREBENRNEEARZBzEELESTE "

BEGFHERISE 28 RAEET

) Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist January

2021

@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after |st April 2021

@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist January
2022

@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist January
2023

© To be determined

F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1/

2.2

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The Group has completed an assessment of the impact of the new
standards and amendments to standards on its results of operations
and financial position. However, none of the above new standards
and amendments to standards is expected to have a significant effect

on the financial statements.

Consolidation

(a) Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the

date that control ceases.

FEMIBHRRMEE

2 FEEHBERBE@)

2./

2.2

mREE(E)

AR T TERRL I FHTE R R
HERNMETHANEE 2 RE
R BARR R BEITRE -
B E R R EERMER] TR
HTeHAKENE G 5]R
RERBERTE -

HERE

(a) HIEBALA]
MEBAREASEHH
BEEEGIEOME X8
(EREEBEEEE)-
EASERALHEZE
BE T A E AT & [ 2R /) &
% 5% F A 0] & 0] R 1) 4
m O YERIEBEY
ZEIRNBIZELS
[B] 3R BF - 72N 5 [ A 4%
LT WEBAREER
HEESBEEAEE A
REGAR- HBRQA
FEERIERILEZBREE
LEEBEAER -

4

Y
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B A Rk aE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESTHTHEEEm@)

POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(@)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction

provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.

22 #HEHH(&E)

(@)

KB a] (&)
SERNARMZRS
FTEAZEBRAER
Wzt T LAE 8 - BRIER
SNIRECEEEEER

Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where BzEE SAKRER

necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by BTN T LA 85 o BT 2B

the Group. Al B HEKRERSE
EEHNE - ARERE
AEBERBZBRRTE
— o

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated income
statement, statement of comprehensive income, statement of

changes in equity and balance sheet respectively.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration

transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

o fair values of the assets transferred:

RE 7 IR ER KM
BArREmEDBREE

W=k k=R
REEHRLEERE
KB o

ThwetlEERTA
S EMEE AKEF
RAestWEEEmA %
BEHAR - WE—=X
MEARIFEZE ZRE
B

s FEBEBEEZAN
B8 :

° liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired o EWEEBAIER
business; AFTEEZ GG
. equity interests issued by the Group; o REBBETZRAE
s

® fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a

‘o NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | RREITHERLQF

e HAREBLRHME

contingent consideration arrangement; and ZIEMEENXAE
ZREE: &
®  fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the e MEABEMRE
subsidiary. A 2 RAE
F Y =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(@)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with limited
exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable

assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the:

° consideration transferred,

. amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired

entity, and

. acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest

in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain

purchase.

FEMIBHRRMEE

2 FESHBE#SE@)

22 #HEHH(&E)

(@)

W& 2 7] (&)

K156 OF P ICEE A] B
BB E AR PTAAE 2
BERIREGE X
BERERKERZAR
EE 2D BB RK
Sh) o REBIAREE
sk IF 22 P HE a6 PR M5 U BB
EREAURMNEEFEZ

LE B - sk I8 4R R R
o] W B 3 B2 FE 4 AR
BEMHBEXNANEEER
X o

fis

.« FEERE -

I {] 5T A 5 15 UL 48
BRI

BERKBAZARE
B & R PR AT R
BEZEIANBEZE
BUBMEAKR WS
CRERMKEXE 2
AHEANEEFEAN
= E‘JEZ%%EEATE&\EP
EERRARZEBHE -

\

¢
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B A Rk aE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(@)

®)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to
their present value as at the date of exchange. The discount
rate used is the entity's incremental borrowing rate, being the
rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and conditions.
Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability are
subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair

value recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interest
that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with
equity owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest
results in an adjustment between the carrying amounts of
the controlling and no-controlling interests to reflect their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests and
any consideration paid or received is recognised in a separate

reserve within equity attributable to owners of the Company.

‘o NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | RREITHERLQF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

®)

Changes in ownership interests (Continued)

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account
for an investment because of a loss of control, joint control
or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity
is remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category

of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is
reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained,
only a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to

profit or loss where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B A Rk aE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,

has been identified as the Executive Directors of the Company that

make strategic decisions.

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a)  Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the

Company's functional and the Group's presentation currency.

(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-
measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities

denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the

consolidated profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
are presented in the consolidated income statement within
“finance income” or “finance costs". All other foreign exchange

gains and losses are presented in the consolidated income

statement within “other losses, net”".
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(b)  Transactions and balances (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was determined. Translation
differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example,
translation differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities
such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss
and translation differences on non-monetary assets such as
equities classified as fair value through other comprehensive

income are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B A Rk aE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the group entities (none
of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation

currency are translated into the presentation currency as

follows:

(i)  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance

sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each profit or loss account are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at the

rate on the dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in

consolidated other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. Exchange

differences arising are recognised in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of joint
control over a jointly controlled entity that includes a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant influence
over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the equity holders of the Company

are reclassified to consolidated profit and loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the
Group losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are reattributed to non-controlling interests and

are not recognised in consolidated profit and loss.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to

the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income

statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B A Rk aE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate their costs to their residual

values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

- Buildings 40 to 50 years

- Leasehold improvements Shorter of
the unexpired

lease term or 5 years

- Machinery and equipment 8 years
- Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 5 years
- Motor vehicles 5 years
- Tools and moulds 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. An asset's
carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated

recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount of the relevant assets and are

recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.

If an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property
carried at fair value, it is reclassified as investment property. The
difference between the fair value and the carrying amount of the
property at the date of transfer is recognised in revaluation reserve.
Subsequent changes in the fair value of the investment property are
recognised in the income statement as part of other gains/losses. If
an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as property, plant and equipment, and its fair value at the date of

reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group. It
also includes properties that are being constructed or developed
for future use as investment properties. Land held under operating
leases are accounted for as investment properties when the rest of
the definition of an investment property is met. In such cases, the
operating leases concerned are accounted for as if they were finance
leases. Investment property is initially measured at cost, including

related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs.

After initial recognition, investment properties are carried at fair
value, representing open market value determined at each reporting
date by external valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices,
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or
condition of the specific asset. If the information is not available, the
Group uses alternative valuation methods such as recent prices on
less active markets or discounted cash flow projections. Changes in
fair values are recorded in the consolidated profit or loss as part of a

valuation gain or loss in “other losses, net'.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B A Rk aE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

2.7

2.8

Investment properties (Continued)

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset's carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated profit or loss during the financial

period in which they are incurred.

Gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is determined by
comparing the proceeds and the carrying amount of the investment

property and is recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.

Intangible assets - Technical know-how

Technical know-how comprises the acquired rights to use certain
technologies for the manufacture of plastic products. Acquired
technical know-how is capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred
to acquire and bring to use. These costs are amortised over their

estimated useful lives of five years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet available
for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the

impairment at each reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMIBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESTHEBE@®
POLICIES (Continued)
2.9 Financial assets 29 HIBEE
(a)  Classification (a) |
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following AEBERETKEES
measurement categories: HE T 285 -

— those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through other comprehensive income or through profit

or loss); and

- those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity's business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash

flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be
recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this
will depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election
at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment

at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its

business model for managing those assets changes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B A Rk aE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(b) Recognition and derecogntion

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the

Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership.

(c) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction

costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or

loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are

solely payment of principal and interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMIBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESTHHEEEm@)

POLICIES (Continued)
2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

29 HMBEEEE)

(c) Measurement (Continued) (c) FE(E)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group's business model for managing the asset and the cash

flow characteristics of the asset.

= Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss
and presented in other gains/(losses) together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses
are presented as separate line item in the consolidated

income statement.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at
fair value. Where the Group's management has elected to
present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in
OCl, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains
and losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of
the investment. Dividends from such investments continue
to be recognised in consolidated income statement as “other
losses, net” when the Group's right to receive payments is
established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B A Rk aE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)
(c) Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in “other losses,
net” in consolidated income statement as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on
equity investments measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not reported separately from other

changes in fair value.

(d)  Impairment
The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk. For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the

receivables.

2.10 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at their fair values. The method of recognising the resulting gains or
losses depends on whether the derivative is designated and qualified
as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being
hedged. Assets and liabilities are classified as current if expected to
be settled within |2 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-

current.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10

2.11

2.12

Derivative financial instruments (Continued)

As the Group's derivative financial instruments do not qualify for
hedge accounting, changes in the fair value of these derivative
financial instruments are recognised immediately in the consolidated

profit or loss within “other losses, net”.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost
of finished goods comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on normal
operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less

applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-

current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method, less loss allowance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B A Rk aE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks
and bank overdrafts, if any. In the consolidated balance sheet, bank

overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities.

2.14 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.

Financial liabilities (including trade and bills payables) are initially
measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised

cost, using the effective interest method.

2.15 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs, net of tax,
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown

in equity as a deduction from the proceeds.

2.16 Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has

an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least

|2 months after the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMIBHRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESTHHEEEm@)

POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Borrowings and borrowing costs (Continued)

216 BEFREEHK (E

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss

in the period in which they are incurred.

2.17 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable
on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable
income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred
tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to

unused tax losses.

(a)  Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis

of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
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balance sheet date in the countries where the Company KEREEBBRBMKA
and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income. WERRNEEBERAB

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation and considers whether
it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain
tax treatment. The Group measures its tax balances either
based on the most likely amount or the expected value,
depending on which method provides a better prediction of

the resolution of the uncertainty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B A Rk aE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

®)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the

deferred income tax liability is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment property
that is measured at fair value is determined assuming the

property will be recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those

temporary differences and losses.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available

against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

®)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax
bases of investments in foreign operations where the company
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and where the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise

the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case,
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B A Rk aE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
2.18 Employee benefits

(@)

Pension obligations

The Group participates in several defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes. A defined contribution scheme
is a pension plan under which the Group pays contributions
to publicly or privately administered pension plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has
no further legal or constructive obligations to pay further

contributions once the contributions have been paid.

The Group participates in the mandatory provident fund
scheme (the “"MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong. Under the
MPF Scheme, the Group and its relevant employees makes
monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employee’s
relevant income with a maximum of HK$ 1,500 per month,
as appropriate, as defined in the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Ordinance. The contributions are fully and

immediately vested in the employees.

The Group also contributes to certain defined contribution
schemes for its employees in Mainland China. Contributions
are made by the Group on a monthly basis to those state-
sponsored retirement plans based on a percentage of the
relevant income of the relevant employees. The Group has no
further obligations for the actual payment of pensions beyond
its contributions. The state-sponsored retirement plans are
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to

retired employees.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

(@)

®)

(©

Pension obligations (Continued)

Contributions made are recognised as employee benefits
expenses when they are due and are not reduced by
contribution forfeited by those relevant employees who leave
the scheme prsssssior to vesting fully in the contributions.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent
that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is

available.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leaves are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liabilities for annual leaves as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are

not recognised until the time of leave.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan (the “Share Option Scheme”). The fair
value of the employee services received in exchange for
the grant of the options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to
the fair value of the options granted, including any market
performance conditions; excluding the impact of any service
and non-market performance vesting conditions; and including

the impact of any non-vesting conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B A Rk aE

4

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)
(c) Share-based compensation (Continued)

Non-market performance and service conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options that are expected
to vest. The total expense is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the specified
performance and service conditions are to be satisfied. At
each balance sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to vest based on the
non-market vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision of original estimates, if any, in the income statement,

with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)

and share premium when the options are exercised.

Under the terms of the existing Share Option Scheme of the
Group, the Directors may, at their discretion, invite eligible
participants to take up share options to subscribe for the
shares of the Company subject to the terms and conditions
stipulated therein. No share options were granted or exercised
during the year. As at 30th June 2021 and 2020, there is no

share option outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMIBHRRMEE

"

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEEHBERBIE@®
POLICIES (Continued)
2.18 Employee benefits (Continued) 2.18 IESEF(#E)
(d) Bonus entitlements (d) TEAL###z
The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a EAEEREECDIRMH
liability when the Group has a present legal or constructive Z R EEREETE
obligation as a result of services rendered by employees and ST EME MZEME
a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Liabilities of THEASGER  BS
bonus plan are expected to be settled within twelve months B 2 TEAL 2 TEEF R
and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when BHEEZIARBE - BB
they are settled. BRI 2 BETRED

Et-EARKN ¥
MBS BN 2 2 E -

2.19 Provisions 2.19 BfE
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or BERNAEERABEEHME
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that ﬁiﬁﬁ—irZ%&@ﬁfEEﬁ 2
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; BEEMERMEAFEZIE
and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not E{ s B % E
recognised for future operating losses. BEEEELH AT EME - HRK

LEZEBRY TEELEME -

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood WHEREE THEURE  EES
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by BEERFEZERR L8
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is M DEERETBEERE
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any B ER—BEENZE
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small. ] — @18 B 2 &R mlaet

T\K ’ 1)32,5\{@ u/u%é1%

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures BERATRA A RIZRBIBEARF
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate BENEEEANFAINBER
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 2 RMNERBERMSHES
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision BEREENEHETEABRR
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense. BIETd o BEZE RSB A Mg hn
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B A Rk aE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESTHTHEEEm@)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.20 Leases 220 HE

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by

the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.
However, for leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee,
it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and

instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do
not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the
leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be

used as security for borrowing purposes.

As a lessee

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of

the following lease payments:

* fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less

any lease incentives receivable;

. variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate;

®  amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual

value guarantees;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Leases (Continued)
As a lessee (Continued)

® the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is

reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

. payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease

term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension

options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be determined, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value

in a similar economic environment with similar terms and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

. where possible, uses recent third-party financing received
by the individual lease as s starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third party financing was

received;

. uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest
rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group,

which does not have recent third party financing; and

. makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country,

currency and security.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B A Rk aE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESTHTHEEEm@)

POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Leases (Continued) 220 #HE (&)

As a lessee (Continued)

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost.
The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining

balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following;

®  the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

® any lease payments made at or before the commencement

date less any lease incentives received;

. any initial direct costs; and

° restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-

of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset's useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit
or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months
or less. Low-value assets comprise [T-equipment and small items of

office furniture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20

221

2.22

Leases (Continued)
As a lessor

Lease income from operating leases where the group is a lessor is
recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised as
expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The
respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on
their nature. The group did not need to make any adjustments to
the accounting for assets held as lessor as a result of adopting the

new leasing standard.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions. Government
grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the

costs that they are intended to compensate.

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring a promised good to a customer, which
is when the customer obtains control of a good, has the ability
to direct the use of, and obtain substantially all of the remaining
benefits from that good. If the control of the goods and services is
transferred over a period of time, the Group recognises revenue by
reference to the extent of progress toward completion in fulfilling its

performance obligations during the entire contract period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B A Rk aE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22

2.23

Revenue recognition (Continued)

For the amounts of revenue recognised for goods transferred
and services provided, the Group recognises any unconditional
rights to consideration separately as a receivable and the rest as a
contract asset, and recognises provision for loss allowance of the
receivable and the contract asset based on expected credit loss;
if the consideration received or receivable exceeds the obligation
performed by the Group, a contract liability is recognised. The
Group presents a net contract asset or a net contract liability under

each contract.

The Group recognises revenue from sales of goods in the

consolidated income statement in accordance with below policies:

Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity has transferred
control over products to the customer, the customer has accepted
the products, there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customer’s acceptance of the products, the amount of sales can be
reliably measured and it is probable that future economic benefits
will flow to the entity. Revenue from sales is based on the price
specified in the sales contracts. Accumulated experience is used to
estimate the likelihood and provide for sales return for the goods
sold at the time of sale. A receivable is recognised when the goods
are delivered as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is required before

the payment is due.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the
effective interest method. When a receivable is impaired, the Group
reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount
as interest income. Interest income on impaired loans is recognised

using the original effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group's and the Company's financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders for final dividend and Board of Directors for interim
dividend.

2.25 Earnings/(loss) per share
(1) Basic earnings/(loss) per share

Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing:

®  The profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the
Company, excluding any costs of servicing equity other

than ordinary shares; and

. by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares issued during the year and

excluding treasury shares.

(i) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share adjusts the figures used in
determination of basic earnings/(loss) per share to take into

account:

® the after-income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary

shares; and

. the weighted average number of additional ordinary
shares that would have been outstanding assuming the

conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B A Rk aE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3./

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's
overall risk management policy focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on

the Group's financial performance.

Management regularly monitors the financial risks of the Group.
The use of financial derivatives to hedge certain risk exposures
is governed by the Group's policies approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company in order to manage those risks. The
Group does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative

purposes.

(a)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and Mainland China
with transactions mainly settled in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"),
Renminbi (“RMB") and US dollar (“USD"). Foreign exchange
risk arises when future commercial transactions or recognised
assets or liabilities are denominated in a currency that is
not the entity's functional currency. The Group is exposed
to foreign exchange risk from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to USD and RMB.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Management has a policy to require group companies to
manage their foreign exchange risk against functional currency.
[t mainly includes managing the exposures arise from sales
and purchases made by the relevant group companies in
currencies other than their own functional currencies. The
Group also manages its foreign exchange risk by performing
regular reviews of the Group's net foreign exchange exposures
and has entered into certain foreign exchange contracts to
manage foreign exchange risks. As at 30th June 2021, the
Group had certain outstanding forward foreign currency
contracts to purchase USD (2020: purchase USD), details of
which have been disclosed in Note 23. Certain of the Group's
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade and bills payables
and borrowings were also denominated in foreign currencies,
details of which have been disclosed in Notes 22, 24, 25 and
28. Since the HK$ is pegged to USD, management are of the
opinion that the exchange rate risk exposure arising from USD

is relatively insignificant.

At 30th June 2021, if HK$ had weakened/strengthened by
5% against RMB, with all other variables held constant, post-
tax profit (2020: post-tax loss) for the year would have been
HK$1,261,000 (2020: HK$1,253,000) lower/higher (2020:
higher/lower), mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses/
gains on translation of foreign currency-denominated non-

derivative financial assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B A Rk aE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

4

The Group's income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. The Group
has no significant interest-bearing assets except for the cash
at bank. The Group's exposure to changes in interest rates
is mainly attributable to its borrowings. Borrowings carry at
floating rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk
whereas those carry at fixed rates expose the Group to fair

value interest rate risk.

The Group will review whether bank borrowings bearing
fixed or floating rates should be drawn from time to time with

reference to the trend of changes in interest rates.

As at 30th June 2021, if the interest rates had been 50 basis
points higher/lower, with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit (2020: post-tax loss) for the year would have
been HK$836,000 (2020: HK$628,000) lower/higher (2020:
lower/higher), mainly as a result of higher/lower interest
income on cash at bank net off with higher/lower interest

expense on floating rate borrowings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(©

(@

Price risk

The Group is exposed to commodity price risk in relation to
its plastic materials which is dependent on the oil price. The
Group closely monitors the price of its raw materials in order

to determine its pricing strategies.

Credit risk

Credit risk of the Group mainly arises from cash and cash
equivalents and security investments with banks and financial
institutions, as well as credit exposures to customers such as
trade receivables and other counterparty. The carrying amount
of these balances in the consolidated balance sheet represents
the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its

financial assets.

The Group has two types of financial assets that are subject to

the expected credit loss model:

— Trade receivables: and

- Other financial assets at amortised cost.

Substantially all of the Group’s cash at bank and the restricted
bank deposits are deposited in major financial institutions
located in Hong Kong and Mainland China, which management
believes are of high credit quality. The Group has a policy to
limit the amount of credit exposure to any financial institution
and management does not expect any losses arising from non-

performance by these counterparties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B A Rk aE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3./

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d)  Credit risk (Continued)

()

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and

shared credit risk characteristics.

Trade receivables are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Impairment losses
on trade receivables are presented as impairment losses
within other operating expenses. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against

the same line item.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment
profiles of customers and the corresponding historical
credit losses experienced. The historical loss rates
are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the receivables. With
the increased risk from the volatility of economic climate
in Mainland China and Hong Kong, the Group has
maintained a defined credit policy with tightened risk
profile and applied prudent policies to manage its credit
risk with its trade receivables that includes an ageing
analysis of trade receivables is prepared on a regular
basis and is closely monitored to minimise any credit risk

associated with receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR BBRRNE
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MEBEBREE@®
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 B EEREEE)
(d)  Credit risk (Continued) (d) EERE(E)

() Trade receivables (Continued) () EZELAR)
On that basis, the loss allowance as at 30th June 202 TRELEE K=
and 30th June 2020 was determined as follows for trade T —FXA=+
receivables: Bk - -_ZFX

A=+BEHZE SR
WHREBEEBEET
mF :
Gross Expected
carrying credit loss rate Loss
amount FEHIEE allowance
IREAE BEX BiERE
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER THET
As at 30th June 2021 R=Z=—F
RA=+H
Current BAE 122,331 0.0%-  0.7% 85
Within 30 days 30 82,532 0.0% - 2.1% 145
31 to 60 days 31-60 H 27,892 0.0% - 7.7% 63
61 to 90 days 61-90H 10,150 0.0% - 182% 243
91 to 180 days 91-180 H 791 0.0% - 36.0% I
Over 180 days iBid 180 H 4,445 0.0% - 100.0% 4,233
248,141 4,770
Gross Expected
carrying credit loss rate Loss
amount JEHAZE allowance
FRmAeE BRE EEREE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAET
As at 30th June 2020 R-BZZEHF
~A=+H
Current ) 138699  0.0%-  1.1% 320
Within 30 days 308 21,903 0.0% - 3.2% 80
31 to 60 days 31-60 H 8,658 0.0%- 16.5% 66
61 to 90 days 61-90 H 1,665 0.0% - 37.9% 40
91 to 180 days 91-180 H 818 0.0% - 81.2% 134
Over 180 days iBid 180 H 4,201 0.0% - 100.0% 4,157
175,944 4,797
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B A Rk aE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MBERREE@®
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3. HBEEREZEE)
(d) Credit risk (Continued) (@) 1EEmE(E)
(1) Trade receivables (Continued) () EBZERH(E)
The closing loss allowances for trade receivables as at R-ZZE_—%FXH
30th June 2021 reconcile to the opening loss allowances =THMNEZEW
as follows: R R IE 18 B
FEERENY
FREAE ¢
Loss allowance for
trade receivables
BESEWREERE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Opening loss allowance as at |st July REtA—HBH
FYIBERME (4,797) (4,760)
Reversal of/(loss allowance) 2 S EBGREE
on trade receivables Bm, () 430 (2,002)
Receivables written off 1 4 FE LT — 1,865
Currency translation differences b H =5 (403) 100
Closing loss allowance as at 30th jJune HRNA=+HHK
FREEBRE (4,770) (#797)
Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented H 5 W R EE
as net impairment losses within operating profit. BEN/KERN
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off W R R E BB R
are credited against the same line item. # o H & Y8l 5 Bl
B 3K B SRIB R
—JHEAARK-

4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(d)  Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include cash and
cash equivalent, bills and other receivables. Management
considered that these have a low credit risk and did
not make any provision for these other financial assets
at amortised cost based on the historical settlement
pattern of these other financial assets and the forward-

looking recoverability analysis of the counterparties.

As at 30th June 2021, the Company had provided guarantees
in respect of banking facilities made available to its subsidiaries
amounting to HK$312,141,000 (2020: HK$364,608,000).
Credit risk in connection with such guarantees is considered

to be minimal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B A Rk aE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(e

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient
cash and cash equivalents and the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities.
Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses,
the Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping

committed credit lines available.

The Group's primary cash requirements have been for
additions of and upgrades on property, plant and equipment,
settlement of borrowings, payment for trade and other
payables, and payment for operating expenses. The Group
mainly finances its working capital requirements through a

combination of internal resources and bank borrowings.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure it maintains
sufficient cash balances and adequate credit facilities to meet

its liquidity requirements in the short and long-term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(e)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The Group measures and monitors its liquidity through the
maintenance of prudent ratio regarding the liquidity structure
of the overall assets, liabilities, loans and commitments of
the Group. The Group also maintains a prudent level of
liquid assets and committed banking facilities to ensure the
availability of sufficient cash flows to meet any unexpected
and material cash requirements in the ordinary course of
business. As at 30th June 2021, the total banking facilities
made available to the Group amounting to HK$553,548,000
(2020: HK$633,530,000) of which HK$312,141,000 (2020:
HK$364,608,000) was being utilised by the Group.

The tables below analyses the Group's financial liabilities and
net-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the balance
sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flow, including interest payments computed using contractual
rates, based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. For the purpose of maturity analysis, the
maturity date of bank borrowings with a repayable on demand
clause is based on agreed schedule repayment set out in the
loan agreements, disregarding the repayment on demand
clauses. Taking into account the Group's financial position, the
Directors do not consider that it is probable that the banks
will exercise their discretion to demand immediate repayment.
The Directors believe that such bank borrowings will be repaid
in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in

the loan agreements.

3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B EHRRMEE
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BBEREER@)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3. HBEEREZEE)
(e) Liguidity risk (Continued) (e) THEEZERE(E)
Within Between | Between 2
| year and 2 years and 5 years Total
—FR —ZWERN WELFR k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TER TERT
At 30th June 2021 RZZE-_—FA=1+H
Trade and bills payables ~ Z HEMN R RENEE 78,252 = = 78,252
Other payables HithER R RTERER
and accruals 23,522 — — 23,522
Lease liabilities HEEE 5217 4,157 200 9,574
Bank borrowings RITEE 320,777 = — 320,777
Total ks 427,768 4,157 200 432,125
Within Between | Between 2
| year and 2 years and 5 years Total
—FN —EWMFA WMERFA k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FHT FHET
At 30th June 2020 RZZEZZTF A=+H
Trade and bills payables ~ B S ENARENRE 87257 — — 87,257
Other payables HitnEr s kiaRER
and accruals 14,021 . = 14,021
Lease liabilities HEBE 3941 3,295 — 7,236
Bank borrowings RITEE 367,480 = = 367,480
Total e 472,699 3,295 — 475994

4

‘9 NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | RREITHERLQF



O

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI ImRMIEE
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MBERREE@
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HEBEBEZEE)
(e)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (e) HEEZEE(E)
The table below analyses the Group's derivative financial TRETASEE AR
liabilities that will be settled on a gross basis into relevant EEFENTTESRE
maturity groupings based on the remaining period from & RREBNIHAE
the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. Bl BEBEHEEABER
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual BZE4REH A A FE &
undiscounted cash flows, based on exchange rates prevailing at HEETHN ERA
the balance sheet date. BENSBR/RKAUR

MARRE R LIRS
REAEBREAERY
ERIBE -

Within Between | Between 2
| year and 2 years and 5 years Total
-1 -EMFA WEIFR Y]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TR THERT THERT
At 30th June 202 RZE-_—F,A=+H
Currency forward EBRBEH
contract
— Outflow —5NR 38,740 — — 38,740
— Inflow —mA (38,750) — — (38,750)
Total FEEt] (10) = = (10)
At 30th June 2020 RZZEZZEFA=1H
Currency forward S¥EHEN
contract
— Outflow —MR 158,026 75,153 — 233,179
— Inflow —mA (158,100) (75,175) — (233,275)
Total fket] 74) (22) — (96)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B A Rk aE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MBEBREE@®
3.2 Capital risk management 32 EBEXEBERE
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the AEENESEBEEEK @ Z&
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide PEAREEREEEZE URRKR
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to RiftomMAHMERTE
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. ARERE - ARSERS&ED

BEAGERBIABIEE S KA

The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to AEEBTEEARERE  LRE
it in the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain KEBERSHNEIELRE - B
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend THFNABRELRER K&
payments to shareholders, issue new shares or obtain new bank Er e g AR XN TREAR
borrowings. BB BITHRESTY

RITER -

The Group also monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. This rEBNRAEGELEEEREE
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is PN ﬁttt%?ﬁﬁgﬁi‘%%%ﬁ%%
calculated as total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. Total BERE o EBFEAEE
capital is calculated as “equity”, as shown in the consolidated balance /\ﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁfﬁiﬁ%gﬁ o HBE
sheet, plus net debt. AEIERI(NEEEEARE

RS DMETSHRE o

The table below analyses the Group’s capital structure as at 30th RZEZ—FR=F=

—EFER
June 2021 and 2020: A=+H AX&EBEzBELX
mF
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FET
Total borrowings (Note 28) wEE (FizE28) 319,708 365,377
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 24) /fax e RREFE(ME24) (206,579) (126,094)
Net debt ELr Y] 113,129 239,283
Total equity HarEm 620,144 490,521
Total capital 1B R A 733,273 729,804
Gearing ratio BERBELE 15% 33%

4

& , NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | RREITHERLQF



O

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2

3.3

Capital risk management (Continued)

There was no material change of the gearing ratio during the year as

the Group closely monitors the overall capital structure.

Fair value estimation

According to HKFRS 7, financial instruments measured in the
balance sheet at fair value are required to disclose the fair value
measurements by level of the following fair value measurement

hierarchy:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities (level 1)

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is,

as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2)

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on

observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3)

The carrying amounts of the Group's current financial assets,
including cash and cash equivalents, trade and bills receivable and
deposits and other receivables, and the Group’s current financial
liabilities including current borrowings, trade and bills payables, other
payables and accruals approximate their fair values due to their short

maturities.

FEMIBHRRMEE

3 HRRERER®)

3.2

3.3

EFAREE ()
AREENEREBE AL
B BURAEEREARE
b 3 B AT -

R EE G
REFBMBHRSEAFT
% FRemIAEEEER
RO AREBEFEFTETIA
ARBEFSRERE

. MREELAMEEE
e LETIEY &1
(%1 /8)

s KBTF IEBEMERENRE
S HEBEEMAERA
BEENEMBA IR
HEANBI (B4R ) 5k A
E(BRBER)(F2E)

s EBEEMABRYIFKEA
BRmSEENE A K
FABRBA)(E3IE)

AEERBEMEEZREE
BRRASERSEFE BEHE
WHEEREE  EEREAM
FEMR - AR KB IR E S
BEREINHEER E5EN
RN ENEE - R R R
BIRER  AREREAZH
mEE R EERSE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B A Rk aE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at balance sheet date. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or
regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the

current bid price. These instruments are included in level |.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined
by using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise
the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as
little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is

included in level 2.

If one or more of the inputs is not based on observable market data,

the instrument is included in level 3.

There were no transfers of financial assets between level | and level

2 fair value hierarchy classifications.

& :’ NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | RREITHERLQF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

As at 30th June 2021, the Group's financial asset at FVOCI and
derivative financial instruments are categorised as level 3 financial
instruments. Disclosures relating to investment properties that
are measured at fair value are set out in Note 7. As at 30th June
2021, the fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market is determined by using valuation techniques. The
Group performed the valuation of the available-for-sales financial
asset by the use of discounted cash flow model based on the market
conditions existed at balance sheet date and business forecast
provided by management. Specific valuation technique used to value
the derivative financial instruments includes using forward exchange
rates at the balance sheet date to discount back to the present
value. The key unobservable data includes the interbank forward

exchange rate and the volatility of forward exchange rate.

FEMIBHRRMEE

3 BEREREE)

)

RAEEG (F)

R—ZZE-_—F,A=+H &
SEEARBEFAEMS
BR=OVBEERITES
ﬂlﬂeﬂﬁ¢%3ﬁﬁﬁl
B - BENURAABEFENE
BYHEED R 17 REE - B
T —FXA=+TRH: %A
EERMBEENSRITADN
AREBEEFABERTEE -
AEEBXZREGERSHR
ERATHEBRREEERME
ZEBBMEEDRRE - AR
REREDTENERAAE
BEif AHM2EREHTBEE
EZEE - BUGETESR
TAMBFEHERMTEEFNR

EEABRAPNRIERE
E MASEEREZERE-
BAETABRBREERTHE
REE R KR HIE R 2 F &
Moo

¢
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B A Rk aE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

3 BEKREREE)
33 ARBEEEE)

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for TRETEHE_ZT_—FH
the year ended 30th June 2021. —t+tHIEFEEIESRITA
Financial
asset at
FVOCI Derivative
RAREE financial
sFAEAE  instruments
ZHEKED PTHE Total
MgEE SRMIA B
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT TR FER
Opening balance BRI 45 R 1,863 (1,246) 617
Settlements wE = (253) (253)
Gains recognised in other TEE M 2 E W E
comprehensive income HRAEE 363 — 363
Gains recognised in profit and loss HEIEFERH N — 1,476 1,476
Closing balance HRER A5 6R 2,226 (23) 2,203
Total gains for the year included in FRFTEMNBEMNFE
profit or loss for liabilities held B BREEBRRRD
at the end of the year, [ EfhE518 — F 58 |
under “other losses, net” — 1,476 1,476
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for
the year ended 30th June 2020.

FEMIBHRRMEE

BEEREE®)

AR EEE (F)
UTARBE-_T_TF A
ZSTALFEARAFIEERT

Financial
asset at
FVOCI Derivative
BRANERE financial
ST AEAM instruments
2 E W g Total
MBEE eHMIA o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET FET
Opening balance HA Y A5 o4 1,677 (74) 1,603
Settlements wE — (505) (505)
Gains recognised in other £ Bt 2 HE 28 FER A i a8
comprehensive income 186 — 186
Losses recognised in profit £ 18z R A &5 18
and loss — (667) (667)
Closing balance IR aE A 1,863 (1,246) 617
Total losses for the year FEBBNEBENFE
included in profit or HEE PREBERRY
loss for liabilities held at [ E A& —F& +H
the end of the year,
under “other losse, net” — (667) (667)
3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 34 BHHBEENER

As at 30th June 2021 and 2020, there were no financial assets or
financial liabilities which were subject to offsetting, enforceable

master netting or similar agreements.

RZEBEZ—FR-ZTFEFERX
A=+H " UEEAHEEE
S BEEEE  AIMTAE
B2 BEMBURERRR o

4

Y
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B A Rk aE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgement used in preparing financial statements are
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a) Useful lives, residual values and depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

The Group's management determines the estimated useful lives,
residual values and related depreciation charges for its property,
plant and equipment with reference to the estimated periods that
the Group intends to derive future economic benefits from use of
these assets. This estimate is based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. Management will adjust the depreciation
charge where useful lives or residual values vary with previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or

non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives and
actual residual values may differ from estimated residual values.
Periodic review could result in a change in depreciable lives and
residual values and therefore depreciation expense in the future

periods.

(b) Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets including property, plant and equipment,
leasehold land and land use rights and intangible assets are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The
recoverable amounts have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations or fair value less costs to sell. These calculations require
the use of judgements and estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMIBHRRMEE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 ERGEETRAB@®

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b) Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued) (b) FHBEEHREE)
Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment AEEREEREBEREAEL
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that HE - FRIRE () BEHR
may indicate that the related asset values may not be recoverable; Al ge B EEERAR EH 25
(ii) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the R () EEREESSESHA
recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less costs to sell WOl &R AARBERA
and net present value of future cash flows which are estimated BEXARARREREBREF
based upon the continued use of the asset in the business; and (iii) BUARSEARE  mMBAERS
the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash MERBEFEREET G &
flow projections including whether these cash flow projections are (iVERBSREEANMASE
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions HXIEZRIBERESNEEA
selected by management in assessing impairment, including the BENGHELERE - EBE
discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow FrERJUATERESERE
projections, could materially affect the net present value used in MEEAMAFTERGIERE
the impairment test and as a result affect the Group's financial ARt - e ERE A FT
position and results of operations. If there is a significant adverse ABEBEFETRENTLE |
change in the projected performance and resulting future cash flow My BAREBP B REE
projections, it may be necessary to take an impairment charge to the BXAE - MTRRAIRR KRB ERE
consolidated income statement. BAIBERFENE - ZRE

FREE AR -

(c) Estimate of fair value of investment properties (c) WitREYFZLEE
The fair value of each investment property individually is determined EREVMEZARBEING
at each balance sheet date by an independent professional valuer by — A% E B @RI BB FEET
reference to comparable market transactions and where appropriate HHEZ2EZETLRzTHER
on the basis of capitalisation of the passing rentals of the current 5 EEEBATKEANES
leases based on the capitalisation rates including the outgoings. This MIRNESZECBEEBEAX
methodology is based upon estimates of future results and a set of MERMEEERERNBET °
assumptions as to income and expenses of the property and future W ETRERERKERZ
economic conditions. Details of the judgement and assumptions CRPEEL SIS
have been disclosed in Note 17. BERZRE - BEAHE RERE

2 BB 17 R RE -

(d) Impairment of receivables (d) BERHEE
The loss allowances for receivables are based on assumption about JEWR 2 G IERE T ER B
risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement in BEARRREREEEZRK
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment Fo AKEFAAEBIELHZS
calculation, based on the Group's past collection history of each BRRIEBREE AR
customer, existing market conditions as well as forward looking B DREBESREARPBAT W
estimates at the end of each reporting period. Details of the key MRtk BEMBSRRAARE
assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in Note 3.1(d). MEMROBAIEE-RE - FE

BT EREBMG ANFBER
BEE3.1(d) PR EE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B A Rk aE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(e)

®

Werite-down of inventories to net realisable value

The Group writes down inventories to their net realisable value
based on an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Net
realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and
variable selling expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of manufacturing
and selling products of similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of changes in customer taste and competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycle. Write-downs on inventories are
recognised where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the value of the inventories may not be realised. The identification
of write-downs requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of inventories and write-
downs of inventories is recognised in the period in which such

estimate has been changed.

Income taxes and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes
in each of these jurisdictions. There are transactions and calculations
during the ordinary course of business for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax

provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers it is
likely that future taxable profits will be available against which
the temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. When
the expectations are different from the original estimates, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred income tax assets
and income tax charges in the period in which such estimates have

been changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

FEMIBHRRMEE

5 BFEHNZBWAR

AND SEGMENT INFORMATION o EEHR
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
TExT FBT
Revenue from contracts with customers EEEHZHA
Sales of goods HEE® 1,971,074 1,578,998

The Group derived revenue from the sales of goods at a point in time.

AEERE-—KEHBZEREHEE
B A HA

Liabilities related to contract with customers BREFEHNZEE
The Group has recognised the following liabilities related to contracts with AEECHERUATERERPGOZ
customers: afE:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Contract liabilities, included in other EIAEMERNFKTERE R
payables and accruals ZERNAE 8,355 3,880

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the

current reporting period relates to carried-forward contract liabilities.

TRETRAREHEAREESLD
%%ﬁ@wﬁ?%)\u E°

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
Revenue recognised that was included SFAFENAEER
in the contract liabilities balance Z ERERUA
at the beginning of the year 3,880 4,053

There are no unsatisfied nor partially unsatisfied performance obligation

that has an original expected duration of one year or more.

B E—-FIA e RTEE HARE
AT KB D RTKBENEE -

Y
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B A Rk aE

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of
plastic materials, pigments, colorants, compounded plastic resins and

engineering plastic products.

The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM") has been identified as
the Executive Directors of the Company. Management has determined
the operating segments based on the reports reviewed by the CODM
that are used to assess performance and allocate resources. The CODM
considers the business from the operations nature and the type of
products perspective, including the trading of plastic materials (“Trading”),
manufacturing and sale of colorants, pigments and compounded plastic
resins (“Colorants”), manufacturing and sale of engineering plastic products
(“Engineering plastics”) and other corporate and business activities
(“Others").

Each of the Group's operating segments represents a strategic business
unit that is managed by different business unit leaders. Inter-segment
transactions are entered into under the normal commercial terms
and conditions that would also be available to unrelated third parties.
Information provided to the CODM is measured in a manner consistent

with that in the consolidated financial statements.

The CODM assesses the performance of the operating segments based on
a measure of revenue and operating profit including corporate expenses,
which is in a manner consistent with that of the consolidated financial

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMIBHRRMEE

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 5 ZEFESHAZWAR

AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7 EBE R ()
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable HE_ZT-_—FXXA=THILFE
segments for the year ended 30th June 2021 is as follows: RUEGEELERKEZ 25K
SN EERMT
Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group

B% Eel IREZEH Hih  AKHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TE#xT FTExR TER TERT TER

Turnover B

— Gross revenue — D EPARSHE 1,402,379 376,556 263,048 — 2,041,983

— Inter-segment revenue — D EREHE (68,964) (1,820) (125) —  (70,909)
Revenue from external HNER R P UK 7

customers 1,333,415 374,736 262,923 — 1,971,074
Operating profit/(loss) g wF(B18) 61,250 30,102 39,578 (518) 130,412
Finance income B 5 5 178 804 155 = 1,137
Finance costs MEER (7,944) (1,187) (821) = (9,952)
Profit/(loss) BREADE T (&E)

before income tax 53,484 29,719 38,912 (518) 121,597
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TRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS BEFEHZWAR

D SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7 EER ()
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable HE_ZT-_—F-A=1+HLFE
segments for the year ended 30th June 2021 is as follows: (Continued) REGERKERREZIZIR®

ESBERLT : (&)

Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
8% EGHE IREH Htt AKM
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET TR FHERT FERx FERT

Other information: Hin & H} -

Additions to non-current JEMENE ELG N
assets (other than financial (FremI AR
instruments and deferred RIEFRIBEEIN)
tax assets)

Depreciation of property, mE - BER
plant and equipment BT E

Depreciation of right-of-use FERAEEENE
assets

(Reversal of)/provision for FEREERE(ER)
impairment of Vg -t

inventories, net

Loss allowance/(reversal of Z S rEWRER
loss allowance) on B (BE)
trade receivables

Fair value gains on derivative TESBIA

financial instruments AR 6
Fair value losses/(gains) KREWERNAEE
on investment properties Ea, ()
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EAR MR
REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 5 ZEBFEFEHZWAR
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) D EER &)
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable RZEZ—FNA=tHREHGE
segments as at 30th June 2021 is as follows: BRERREZAZIREDEE
BT
Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
g5 E0BE IRBER Hith AEE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FERT FER FTER FET
Segment assets DERE E 396,127 367,330 196,950 141,749 1,102,156
Segment liabilities SEEE (88,863)  (37,487)  (32,256) (3,698) (162,304)
Borrowings DEEE (272,504) (9,524)  (37,680) —  (319,708)
(361,367)  (47,011)  (69,936) (3,698) (482,012)
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable HE-_ZT-_TFA=THLFE
segments for the year ended 30th June 2020 is as follows: RHELEFREREE 225
EHHBERMAT
Engineering
Trading  Colorants plastics Others Group
B9 E0H TEBH Hfth ZANCE]
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
FHIT FHEIT FHET FAT FAT
Turnover S
— Gross revenue — D EHEIHE 1,141,834 312,562 177,237 — 1,631,633
— Inter-segment revenue — D EREHE (50,948) (1,501) (186) —  (52,635)
Revenue from external HANERE P Uk
customers 1,090,886 311,06l 177,05 — 1,578,998
Operating (loss)/profit K& (EBER),mF (15,039) 19,765 20,920 (5,243) 20,403
Finance income B 75 W 5k 16 268 25 — 1,109
Finance costs MEER (15,682) (1,495) (945) —  (18,122)
(Loss)/profit before income tax K Fi AT (E538 ), % FI (30,605) 19,238 20,000 (5,243) 3,390
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B A Rk aE

5 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 5 ZEF&EW8U2Z2WAR

AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7 EBE R ()
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable HE_ZT_TFA=THILFE
segments for the year ended 30th June 2020 is as follows: (Continued) RELERELEARE 225K

EDHWERMT : (&)

Engineering
Trading  Colorants plastics Others Group
g5 EEH IRZEH Ht REE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
THATT TAETT THETT THET TR

Other information: Hin & #} -

Additions to non-current JEMENE ELG N

assets (other than financial (eI AR

instruments and deferred EEBIBEEIN)

tax assets) 1,172 15,190 3,522 4 19,888
Depreciation of property, Mm% - BB R

plant and equipment R E 821 7,952 7,399 390 16,562
Depreciation of right-of-use ERREERE

assets 315 4,094 196 206 4811
Provision for impairment of FEREZEE

inventories, net — 558 1,914 928 300 — 3,142
Loss allowance/(reversal of B S RKFER

loss allowance) BB, (BE)

on trade receivables 1,977 17 (92) — 2,002
Fair value losses on derivative T4 &I T &

financial instruments ~AaBEKE 667 — = = 667
Fair value losses on KREWMEAABE

investment properties BB 612 612 — 2,340 3,564

4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMIBHRRMEE

ol !

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 5 ZEFESHAZWAR

AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬂ(@)
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable RZZEZEFANA=tTHREHGE
segments as at 30th June 2020 is as follows: ERERKEZ 2 MEDBE
BT
Engineering
Trading  Colorants plastics Others Group

2% H6f ITiRZBH i, AKHE
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
TExT  FTExT  TArT TERT  TAER

P
ot
=
Y
ik

Segment assets 424,868 296,882 132,536 140,553 994,839

Segment liabilities DEHEE (91,706) (29,958) (13,530) (3,747)  (138941)
Borrowings DEEE (327,445)  (22.907)  (15,025) —  (365377)
(419,151 (52,865) (28,555) (3,747)  (504,318)
The entity is domiciled in Hong Kong. The revenue from external RERBUNEAREM HE
customers from Hong Kong for the year ended 30th June 2021 is Z—&%XA=+ EJtiJ*XQ%S\/E
approximately HK$923,925,000 (2020: HK$698,213,000), and the total of 2 INER R PR &= 49 8 923,925,000
its revenue from external customers from other locations (mainly Mainland B or(Z T Z T 698,213,000
China) is approximately HK$1,047,149,000 (2020: HK$880,785,000). B) MEABEMMEB(EER
TEAM)ZIIBEFRENDR
1,047,149,0007%8 (= & = T F :
880,785,000 7T °
At 30th June 2021, the total of non-current assets other than financial RZE_—FA=1+H Ketr
instruments and deferred tax assets located in Hong Kong is approximately TEARBEEBEEEINMINESEZ
HK$ 176,983,000 (2020: HK$175,586,000), and the total of these non- IE R @J & E X A176983,000% JT
current assets located in other locations (mainly Mainland China) is (ZEZF4F :175586,0008 L) -
approximately HK$121,721,000 (2020: HK$118,131,000). Az B[R (FERFEAM)

ZWEIEREBEELE121,721,000
BI(ZZE ZFF ¢ 118,131,0005
JC) °

ANNUAL REPORT FEIRE 20/ 21 c



g

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B I ER R aE
6 RENTAL INCOME 6 MHEEWA
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THET
Rental income GEEAON 7,219 7,509
Outgoings in respect of investment properties that generate rental income AEAESKANKREYE 2 HE
amounted to approximately HK$520,000 (2020: HK$179,000). & 45200008 L(ZFE=F
% 179,00087T) °
7 OTHER LOSSES, NET 7 HEE-F8
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
Fair value losses on investment REMHENRAEEESE
properties (Note 17) (PEE17) (2,677) (3,564)
Fair value gains/(losses) on forward foreign BIEEERSB ZINEERBREH
exchange contracts held for trading ARBERE(EE)
— Realised —-2ER 186 507
— Unrealised —XER 1,290 (1,174)
Government grant (Note) T 48 B (B 5E) 451 1,631
Net exchange (losses)/gains SVE (BB, Wz F 58 (1,529) 724
Others Hity — 208
(2,279) (1,668)
Note: BT -
Pursuant to Mainland China local government policies, the Group received RIR A B i & BT R - R E g
government grant amounted to RMB379,000, equivalent to approximately REFTHRBEAMMEZ & L1EH RN
HK$451,000 (2020: RMB1,493,000, equivalent to approximately HK$1,631,000), B IR # A UER & #£379,000 A R ¥
from Mainland China local government authorities to support the operations in (ZEH4510008 TN B T F:
certain Mainland China regions with no special conditions attached. 1,493,000 A R# (5 E47 1,631,000 7T))

I 458 B A A AT MR A 2 3R & TRUIT 4 B DA 32

BT -

4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR MR
8 EXPENSES BY NATURE 8 BMEETZHAX
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THET
Cost of inventories sold excluding HEGFERA(TEIEEERA)

manufacturing costs 1,538,983 1,310,278
Auditor's remuneration ZERT <

— Audit services — ZERH 2,742 2,870

— Non-audit services — IEZE R 359 267
Depreciation of property, plant and M BERRENE

equipment (Note |5) (PfFE 15) 18,041 16,562
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 16) EREEERE (M 16) 5,641 4811
(Reversal of)/loss allowance on B S REWGREE (BE),/

trade receivables (Note 3.1) BE(MHEE30) (430) 2,002
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment of FEREER(BE),

inventories, net BE 58 (6,793) 3,142
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEWME  WERREKHEZ

plant and equipment &ia (W) | (72)
Employee benefit expenses, including BERAMXEH(BEEZME)

Directors” emoluments (Note |3) (FzE13) 159,148 120,935
Operating lease rentals in respect of buildings BFLLHERS 6,125 6,814
Provision for claim related to a legal case B AEFANRREE

(Note () GEI0) 3,802 —
Repairs and maintenance expenses HIERRERX 6,451 3411
Transportation and packaging expenses B RBERAY 31,300 25,298
Travelling and office expenses EREPFAERET 7,473 7,119
Utility expenses IKEMRZ 16,061 12,653
Other expenses HithE A 56,698 48,346
Total cost of sales, distribution costs and HEBAR « DA R

administrative expenses TR L& 1,845,602 |,564,436
Representing: (A3

Cost of sales HERA 1,623,857 1,390,269

Distribution costs 7 SHARAR 86,125 70,799

Administrative expenses T X H 135,620 103,368

1,845,602 1,564,436
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B A Rk aE

8 EXPENSES BY NATURE (Continued) 8 BRMHEHSDZHX@)

Notes: B e -

@) In accordance with a judgement dated 29th January 2021 from Wenling () BB IEBRETARERRZ
City People's Court of Zhejiang Province, the Group was held liable to E-—F—-A=-TNEBHR-
pay a customer compensation amounted to RMB3,193,000 (equivalent to HEAEBERELBEIMGH
approximately HK$3,802,000). Full provision against such amount has been 3,193,000 A & # (% 8 49 3,802,000
made. BIL) c AEBEHLEEELS

M -

(i) During the year ended 30th June 2021, the Hong Kong Special Administrative iy MREBE_ZT_—FXA=THIF
Region Government has launched the “Employment Support Scheme” (ESS) & - BB R RIAT R R BT HE TR
providing wage subsidies to eligible subsidiaries of the Group. Government HEIHERHIEFUTEAEER
grants amounted to HK$4,043,000 are deducted in the employee benefit ZEEBERK B AR - BT K
expenses. There are no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attached 4,043,0007& 7T AR R B B A8 FI S
to the grants. HH - S R 4R B P 5 B R A AR

FREMKAEIEH -
9 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 9 HBUR=mNEM
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TAET
Finance income: B FS U 25 -
— Interest income from bank deposits —RITFHAEHA 1,087 [,109
— Net exchange gains on financing activities — BB R 2 INEU G F R 50 —
1,137 [,109
Finance costs: MBER :
— Interest on lease liabilities (Note |6) —HEABZME (M 16) (439) (334)
— Interest on bank borrowings —RITEEZFE (9,513) (17,048)
— Net exchange losses on financing activities —BEEBINER R FHE — (740)
(9,952) (18,122)
Finance costs, net EER—F5 (8,815) (17,013)

4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMIBHRRMEE

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10 BEH
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2020: BENGH T REEFE R ERN
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on the HNBERERS 2 T ABA(ZEC
Group's subsidiaries established and operate in Mainland China have been TFE BOZTAREBR)GFERE -
calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rate of FEANMBIE DR EAREER A
25% (2020: 25%), other than a subsidiary in Dongguan which was certified WK RS & 2 B R R 2 AN EF
as High and New Technology Enterprises and is entitled to a concessionary ERfAERRABENRESZ - T1H
tax rate of 15% for three consecutive years from 2020 to 2023. This (ZE2E=ZTF:\@o2=_TH)ZH
subsidiary is entitled to re-apply for the preferential tax treatment when 8 BRAKEE -—FURRSE
the preferential tax period expires. MEARIERIZ AT MAEEN
AZE_ZT_TFE_T_=FEE

ZFANZTHZBERE - it
BARAIRNEBRE AR BH
AUHBEER L

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated income statement FEalmRHAXHR
represents:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
Current income tax: REZHRA :
Hong Kong profits tax BENEH 3,970 1,519
Mainland China corporate income tax FEIAM RS 18,504 8,946
Over-provision in prior years FEEBEEE (1,506) (578)
20,968 9,887
Deferred income tax (Note 29) REHITE (M5 29) 4,210 (4,073)
25,178 5814
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B A Rk aE

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 10

BIEBXH#E)

The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the

theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong profits tax rate

as follows:

A& B B B BR AT & A 2 T IR EAR
ERBAENGHR ZREMAAEZ

HEmi BRI

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET TAET

Profit before income tax R 56 AT A 121,597 3,390
Tax charged at a rate of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) &K 165% (T T4 :

16.5%) 5t 8 2 1A 20,064 559

Effect of different tax rates in Mainland China B A TR R 2 & 6,321 667

Income not subject to tax BARDZ WA (160) —

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes TAINBE 2 T 1,494 1,420

Tax losses not recognised RERZ BB ER 907 4,037

Tax reduction (Note) B EE(ME) (879) (581)

Over-provision in prior years LEERERE (1,506) (578)

Unrecognised temporary difference RIERE R Z5E (1,063) 290

25,178 5814

Note:

The Hong Kong Government has lowered the profits tax rate for the first
HK$2,000,000 assessable profit of one of the subsidiaries to 8.25%. Profits above
that amount will continue to be subject to the tax rate of 16.5%. In addition,
certain subsidiaries in Mainland China were subject a lower profit tax rate at 5% on
taxable income below RMB1,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,190,000),
and 10% on taxable income on taxable income over RMB,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,190,000) but below RMB3,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$3,571,000), and thereafter at a fixed rate at 25%.

‘v NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | RREITHERLQF
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B 165% B o L oh - 265 B A Ho BT
B R B FERR T U = LA SR 38 1,000,000 A
RE(EE4) 1,190,000 T ) B 281032 5%
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3,000,000 A R # (£ {E £93,571,000% 7T )
O EB 19 42 10% B R B - 1 1t 2 A9 2B 15
BIl#Z 25% B &l & B B UK o



&N
"

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMIBHRRMEE

Il DIVIDENDS R E
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET T
Interim, paid, of HK1.0 cent BIRFHREFRE®ER .08
(2020: Nil) per ordinary share (=2 =-FF  &\) 3,692 —
Special, paid, of HKI.0 cent EIRE AR SR E AR 1.0
(2020: Nil) per ordinary share (ZZ2=-2TF  &|) 3,692 —
Final, proposed, of HKI1.0 cent B R B B B A B AR 1.0 78 (1L
(2020: Nil) per ordinary share (ZZ2-ZF ﬂ) 3,692 —
Special, proposed, of HK3.0 cents BT RI AR B B AR @ AR 3.0 (1L
(2020: Nil) per ordinary share —E-TF ?ﬁi\) 11,076 =
22,152 —
Notes: BisE

(@)

(d)

O

On 27th February 2020, the Directors resolved not to declare any interim
dividend for the six months ended 3 st December 2019.

On 29th September 2020, the Directors resolved not to declare any final
dividend for the year ended 30th June 2020.

On 25th February 2021, the Directors declared an interim dividend of
HK1.0 cent per share, totalling HK$3,692,000 for the six months ended 31st
December 2020.

On 25th February 2021, the Directors declared a special dividend of HKI.0
cent per share, totalling HK$3,692,000 for the six months ended 31st
December 2020.

On 28th September 2021, the Directors proposed a final dividend of HKI.0
cent per share, totalling HK$3,692,000. This proposed dividend was not
reflected as a dividend payable in these financial statements and will be

reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings for the year ending 30th
June 2022.

On 28th September 2021, the Directors proposed a special dividend of
HK3.0 cents per share, totalling HK$ | 1,076,000. This proposed dividend was
not reflected as a dividend payable in these financial statements and will be
reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings for the year ending 30th
June 2022.

(@ RZZEZTF-_A=-+tBHBMTZ
Q%L EERRTHREE=Z
—NWE+—A=Z+—BLEAEAE
IR R EARR S -

by RZZEZTFALAZTHhBHEfTZ
R ETHATREE=ZC=
TFERNA=ZTHEFESTIREMRK
HARR 8. ©

(0 RZTEZ—F=ZRA=+HA " =#
EEMRBE_T_TF+=A
= +—HUENEAREFHRES
A% 1.0+ #£3,692,0007%8 7T ©

(d RZTEZ—F=-—A=+HA =&
EEHhpRE—_ET-_TE+-A
=t+—HUEANEARBERNRES
&% 1.0l - ££3,692,000 7T ©

(&) RIZE_—HFhA-+/N\H #=
BRREARBRETR 0B
$£3,692,0007 7T © It T8 # R iR B
j’[ﬂﬁf‘$ﬁﬁ&$&i’%qﬂ§wﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁ

1E| H#ﬁ/\@@ E/\
f+E|JJ:¢EZ{%EE/ﬁﬁ$”¢' >R -

) EA—%—fihﬂ—Jr)\El THEE
HRIRERFREGR30ABM -
11,076,000 /%75 ttzéﬁi?ﬂiﬂﬁ,%
A 4 5 AN B 7S SR 2 R B 1E RE AR
S EBEERBE-_T-_—F,XA
=+ HRIEFEZRBEFFDE -
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A RRM T
12 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 12 BREF, (&HE)
Basic B

Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the profit/(loss)
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average

number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

FRERRF(BE) HEQEK
REMERM/(BE)BRUAFRAE
TEBRZNEFOHE -

2021 2020
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of RAER R A E R,
the Company (HK$'000) (E#8)(FHmT) 89,865 (6,212)
Weighted average number of ordinary FRAEETERRKRZ
shares in issue InFEF 8L 369,200,000 369,200,000
Basic earnings/(loss) per share BREXRRAF,
(HK cents per share) (E18) (BB 24.34 (1.68)
Diluted #5

Dilutive earnings/(loss) per share for the years ended 30th June 2021
and 2020 equal basic earnings/(loss) per share as there was no dilutive

potential ordinary share as at the years ended 30th June 2021 and 2020.

RZZEZ—FR-ZZTEZZFFRA
=+H ARRUEEBEEFTE 2
TaEk - Bt REBE-T=-—%F
F—E_ZEFNA=Z+HLEMEF
- SR#EFRMN(BR)EER
BREAREF(E8) -

I3 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 13 EERAZH(BHE
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) EEME)

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET THET

Wages, salaries and other allowances - SN ih= 154,919 117,161
Pension costs RIKE KA 4,229 3,774
159,148 120,935
There were no forfeited contributions of mandatory provident funds REBEE_ZE_—FA=THILF

utilised during the year ended 30th June 2021 (2020: Nil) to reduce future
contributions. As at 30th June 2021, contribution of mandatory provident
funds totalling HK$ 150,000 (2020: HK$142,000) were payable.

4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R SRR MR
14 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND 14 EE2NENEERSE
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS EEAEBZME
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEMHE
The remuneration of each of the Directors of the Company for the HE_ZT-_—FA=THL
year ended 30th June 2021 is set out below: FEBUNEEZME0T ¢
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a Director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
FRES(FERANAIHNELH)
RUBEMXASERHHE
Other
emoluments paid
or receivable
in respect
of Director’s
other services
in connection
with the
management of
the affairs of
the company or
Salaries, its subsidiary
other undertaking
allowances Employers  HEEAAF
and benefits contribution ~ FHKEAR
inkind  Discretionary to pension ES 3
£ bonuses Housing scheme  EftEZHB
Fees A2 BRI allowance [ £2) [BIE] Total
Name of Director Esftg e RENAIE fied EERE BAEZHR e 3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Tén - Tin TEn TEn T Tén

Executive Directors yEs -

Mr. HUI Sai Chung (Chairman) ~ #FEBBS A (£5) 2,040 2,205 = = 8 = 4263
Mr. HUI Kok Kwong SRR 2040 2,205 = = 18 = 4263
Mr. NG Chi Ming REBEE = 1922 = = 8 = 1940
Mr. HUI Yan Kuen STAERE = 1311 = 8 = 1,330
Mr. HUI Man Wai TREE = 756 = = 8 = 774
Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey TAELE = 1,101 = = 8 = 119
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RS B A Rk aE

|4 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

14 EEZBNEEZREE
EEBAE S #)

() EFEM<(E)

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a Director,

whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

FRES(FERALAFENELR)

REEBMZAIERHHE

Other

emoluments paid

or receivable

in respect

of Director’s

other services

in connection

with the

management of

the affairs of

the company or

Salaries, its subsidiary

other undertaking

allowances Employers ~ REEAAR

and benefits contribution ~ AEMEAR

inkind  Discretionary to pension HEHRM

£ bonuses Housing scheme  EftEZHH
Fees Rftrze BTME allowance £33 [BGE] Total
Name of Director EEHS ik RENAE g EEEH  BASLHR Ehine L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThR THR ThR Thx ThT ThR ThR

Independent BIFHTES
Non-Executive Directors

Mr, HO Wai Ch, Paul Q%% 250 - - - - = 250
Mr. CHING Yu Lung BingERE 200 = = = = = 200
Mr. YU Chi Kwong REAEE 200 = = = = = 200
Total &% 4730 9,500 [ - 108 - 14339
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4

R SRR MR
14 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND 14 EEZNENEERSE
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued) EEAECZHE®)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) () EFEM<Z(E)
The remuneration of each of the Directors of the Company for the BE_Z-_ZTFAA=TAHIE
year ended 30th June 2020 is set out below: FEBUNEEZME0T ¢
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a Director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
FREZ(PMERARAFENBAR)
RERER AR EROHE

Other
emoluments paid
or receivable
in respect
of Director's
other services
in connection
with the
management of
the affairs of
the company or
Salaries, its subsidiary
other undertaking
allowances Fmployers ~ HERARH
and benefits contribution ~ SEMBA
in kind Discretionary to pension HEBRE
i bonuses Housing scheme  EHEZHRE

Fees Efhe BITEE allowance By fsefisk Total

Name of Director ESY ik RENHE H)EAL FEES BAkecHR  EhoMe &8

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$000

TER TER TER THRL TR THRL TER

Executive Directors yES

Mr. HUI Sai Chung (Chairman) ~ FFIEEBSE4 (£ ) 1 860 2,384 = = 18 = 4262
Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong TEREE 1,860 2384 = = 18 = 426)
Mr. NG Chi Ming RERTE = 1,907 = = 18 = 1925
Mr. HUI Yan Kuen STAEEE = 1,300 = = 18 = 1318
Mr. HUI Man Wai TXREE = 750 = = 18 = 768
Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey TAREE = 1092 = = 18 = 1,110

o b
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RS B A Rk aE

|4 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(2) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

EEBAE S #)
() EFEM<(E)

(

14 ESEZNENEERSE

Emoluments paid or receivable i respect of a person's services as a Director,

whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

{FREZ(TERAATRANBAR)

RERBN AR EROHE

Other

emoluments paid

or receivable

in respect

of Director's

other services

in connection

with the

management of

the affairs of

the company or

Salaries, its subsidiary

other undertaking

allowances Employers ~ SEBART

and benefits contribution  FHEMBAR

inkind  Discretionary to pension HZHRE

ZH bonuses Housing scheme  EMEERB
Fees Hft 20 BITRE allowance ExY [iB3E] Total
Name of Director e we  REDHE e FERN RAEZ  EhHEHE 2%
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$000
ThL T T ThL L L ThL

Independent BUFHES
Non-Executive Directors

Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul ffsEs 250 - - - - - 250
Mr. CHAN Dit Lung (Note) kL) 150 = = = = = 150
Mr. CHING Yu Lung BinELE 200 = = = = = 200
Mr. YU Chi Kwong (Note) RERLE(HE) 50 = = = = = 50
Total 8% 4370 9817 - - 108 - 14295

o~
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|4 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Note:

Mr. CHAN Dit Lung retired as a director of the Company on 3lst March
2020. Mr. YU Chi Kwong was appointed as a director of the Company on st
April 2020.

No Director waived any emoluments during the year (2020: Nil). No
emoluments have been paid by the Group to any Director as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office
during the year (2020: Nil).

Directors’ retirement benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any Directors
during the year (2020: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

No payment was made to Directors as compensation for the

termination of the appointment during the year (2020: Nil).

Consideration provided to or received by third parties for
making available directors’ services

No payment was made to any third parties making available the

services of them as a Director of the Company (2020: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in
favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such Directors

There were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of
Directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such Directors during the year (2020: Nil).

FEMIBHRRMEE

14 EEZNENEERSE

EEBAEZHNE (®)
() EEHE ()
fisE -

(b)
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(e)
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RS B A Rk aE

|4 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

®

)

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements
or contracts

Saved as disclosed in Note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements, no significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group's business to which the Company was a party
and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year (2020: Nil).

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include three (2020: three) Directors whose
emoluments are disclosed in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments paid and payable to the remaining individuals during the

year were as follows:

14 ESZNENEERSE

EEBAEZHNE ®)
(N EEEXE ZTHBLEH

©

BAER
BTSSR RERM I
BREIRZN  AFERNSF
B ARRNEBEA S
RAEBZEBMARAZE
EEHESHEEBETEREREX
BH2EEZRS - RE¥EXER
ZETF E) o
BERBHMAL
KEEFR - EREMZEHIHA
T ZN(ZEZFF: =
f)RES EMeBE R EX
EIZ2oMHPHEE B TR
AT EFE 2 HMFES
R

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TFAT

Salaries, other allowances and benefits in kind F B ~ 28 K EWF| 4,577 4,522
Discretionary bonus IFTEAL 471 200
Pension costs BARE AR 20 36
5,068 4,758

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

HEHFMETIAEHER

Number of individuals

A%
2021 2020

Emolument bands (in HK dollar) B E(ET)
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 - HK$3,000,000

HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000

1,500,001 7T - 2,000,000 7% 7T
2,000,001 7T - 2,500,000 % 7T
2,500,001 7T - 3,000,000 % 7T
3,000,001 7T - 3,500,000 7% 7T

‘9 NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | RREITHERLQF



|4 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(g) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

No emoluments have been paid to the five highest paid individuals

(including Directors and other employees) as an inducement to join

or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of any office

in connection with the management of the affair of the Company

and its subsidiaries during the year (2020: same).

I5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

FEMIBHRRMEE

14 BEE2HNBZNERZRSE

EEBEAEBZME @)

(e BEREBFMAL(E)
AEBYEA LA L(BE
EEREMES)INBEE
BREMARIERKERMNZ
BEE(ZE-—24F : [) -

15 Y% - BERRE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
and and Leasehold Machinery and office
buildings  improvements and equipment Motor Tools and
BELH HE equipment KER vehicles moulds Total
kgF WERE  BERRE  BAERE AE IAREAR 2%
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TAL TAL TAx TAL TAL TAL TAL
At Ist July 2019 R=B-hEtE-A
Cost BA 116,37 65,61 203532 20848 8902 2628 417768
Accumulated depreciation ZitE (48621) (49.041) (174297) (18,190) (7.158) (1782) (299,289)
Accumulated impairment RitHE = = (01 = = = (201
Net book amount REFE 67616 16,380 29,034 2658 1744 846 118278
Year ended 30th June 2020 BE-2-%F
AAZTHLEE
Opening net book amount HOREE 67616 16,380 29,034 2658 1744 846 118,278
Adjustment for change in St HRAE
accounting policy (3.587) - - - - - (3587)
Restated opening net book amount S 1 REFEES 64029 16,380 29,034 2658 1744 846 114691
Additions #m = 2,190 7252 5 15 50 10039
Disposals e - = (54) U] = = (61)
Depreciation e 47) (5.561) (6781) (1033) (604) (D) (16,562)
Currency translation differences ERER (1499) (351) (849) (40) (50) (1) (2,800
Closing net book amount BREREE 60058 12,658 28,602 2110 1,105 774 105,307
At 30th June 2020 R=B-BEXA=1H
Cost KA 106,351 67,065 184,750 20881 8728 2617 390392
Accumulated depreciation 2iiTE (46,293) (54:407) (156,148) (18771) (7623) (1843) (285,085)
Net book amount FEFE 60,058 12,658 28602 2110 1,105 774 105,307

Y
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Eea= iy E e

I5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

15 Y% BERRE®R)

Furniture,

Leasehold fixtures

land and Leasehold Machinery and office

buildings  improvements and equipment Motor Tools and
HELH HE equipment EER vehicles moulds Total
REgF NEEE  BERRE  BHOERE RE  IAREA ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TR TER TER TER TER TER TER
Year ended 30th June 2021 BE-3--f%
ARZTRLEE
Opening net book amount BOREEE 60,058 12,658 28,602 2,110 1,105 774 105,307
Additions Em — 2523 15,789 780 2 734 19,847
Disposals e - - (26) - - — (26)
Depreciation e (2599) (5,647) 8171) (950) (503) (171) (18,041)
Currency translation differences ~ EREE 3,239 617 2018 73 B 19 6,039
Closing net book amount HREmE 60,698 10,151 38212 2003 696 1,356 113,126
At 30th June 2021 R=B--£XA=1H

Cost % 112,245 71,334 207,073 19,950 8531 3,380 msi3
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (51,547) (61,183) (168861) (17,937) (7,835) (2,024) (309,387)
Net book amount REEFE 60,698 10,151 38212 2013 696 1,356 113,126

Depreciation expense of HK$ 14,702,000 (2020: HK$13,001,000) has been
included in cost of sales, HK$ 103,000 (2020: HK$133,000) in distribution
costs and HK$3,236,000 (2020: HK$3,428,000) in administrative expenses.

As at 30th June 2021, the net book amount of property, plant and
equipment pledged as security for the Group’s banking facilities amounted
to approximately HK$34,776,000 (2020: HK$34,992,000).

€ , NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | RREITHERLQF
-

r & & 14,702,000 T(Z T —
T 4F 13,001,008 L) EREE
HEMRA 1030008 T(ZE=F
% : 133,000 7T ) B BIEE D HK
7 J23,236,0008 L (ZF Z T F -
3,428,000 7T) B BRI T ©

RZBEZ—FXNA=1+H £5E
BRI F (B A8 58 49 34,776,000 %8 7T( =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4

FE B I ERRMIRE
16 LEASES l6 HE
This note provides information for leases where the Group is a lessee. A FREAEBARBEAZEE
2 HER
(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet () RESEEEEHZXERZ
ME

As at 30th June As at st July

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TAET
Right of use assets FREEE
Leasehold land and land use rights THE 1 3h N £ b (F B A 18,653 18,359
Properties SUES 8,454 6,808
27,107 25,167
As at 30th June 2021, the net book amount of leasehold land and RZEZ—FA=+H HE+1i
land use rights pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities Kot 3 {50 R #E BR TEDJ$ (B4 4,398,000 78
amounted to approximately HK$4,398,000 (2020: HK$4,406,000). TL(ZEZEF 1 44060008 7L) 21K
BTRIT - REAEERSFRITEE -
As at 30th June As at st July
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THET
Lease liabilities HERE
Non-current IEmE) 4014 3216
Current TmED 4,784 3,803
8,798 7,019
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RS B A Rk aE

16 LEASES (Continued)

(i)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement

l6 HE @)
(i) REANREBEZHE

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TAET
Depreciation e
Included in cost of sales BREEHEEXAR 3,729 3,786
Included in administrative expenses BRETHEEH 1,912 1,025
5,641 4811
Interest expenses included in STAMBERD
finance cost (Note 9) FEFZ(MEE9) 439 334
Expense relating to leases of FHEHEBECEE
short-term and low-value leases MEA 6,125 6,814

(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are accounted

(iv)

for

The Group leases various offices and factory. Rental contracts are
typically made for fixed periods of | year to 5 years, but may have
extension options as described in (v) below. Addition to right-of-use
assets during the year ended 30th June 2021 were approximately
HK$6,452,000 (2020: HK$3,522,000).

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do
not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the
leased assets that are held by the lessor. Certain leased assets may

not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Variable lease payments

Leases of the Group do not contain variable payment terms that are

linked to an index or a rate.

‘v NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | RREITHERLQF

(i) FEBZHEZBRAAK
B
AEBHEZERAERRK
B -HEAR-—MAE—ZERF
BWETEHR  HhEEERE
EEMANEEE  RTX(V
NIFE - REE_ZT-—FX
A=+BLEFEZFEREEE
# N4 56,452,000/8 T (==
— T4 1 3,522,00087T) °

B ARNBEERKEG EBD
E W B BERE TR ERR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AW RRM T
16 LEASES (Continued) l6 H&E@
(v) Extension and termination options (v) ZERRHILEER

Extension and termination options are included in a number of EREEIDEEREMAALREE
property leases across the Group. These options are used to THEMELRREEE - ZFE
maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used EREREEACEASEED
in the Group's operations. The extension and termination options FrRZEEZRKEEEMN - /T
held, if any, are exercisable only by the Group and not by the RERREIDEEE(WA)E
respective lessor. ATERZAEETE - mAAE LM

ATAIATE o

(vi) Residual value guarantees (vi) FIEFEEER
The Group did not provide residual value guarantees in relation to REBEZT=-—FA=1+H
leases during the year ended 30th June 2021 (2020: same). FEFE AEEYEGEHEE
RHFNHKEEER(ZZE-F
F AR e
17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17 REWE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
T THETT
At beginning of the year F79) 155,292 159,973
Fair value losses investment KEWMEZ AAEE
properties (Note 7) BR(ME7) (2,677) (3.564)
Currency translation differences bE 5, = 5 2,398 (1,117)
At end of the year FAR 155,013 155,292
As at 30th June 2021, the Group had no unprovided contractual obligation BE_T-_—FXA=+H X%
for future repair and maintenance (2020: Nil). EEpE - T RENRERBHD

ARER(ZE_ZTF : &)
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Eea= iy E e

|7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17
(a) Fair value hierarchy

The following table analyses the investment properties carried at fair

value, by valuation method.

REWME &)

()

RAAEEEE
TRAMBBEEINERARE
BEARNREDE

Fair value measurements at
30th June using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)

RAB=1THRFAEARH

THBEBAELD
NABEE(EIE)
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
Recurring fair value measurements KEHRAABAERE
Investment properties: KEME -
— Industrial building units — Hong Kong —IEKRESN—FE 126,000 125,290
— Car park units — Hong Kong —BHEMN-FE 3,150 3,150
— Commercial office units and —HENANEEN
apartment — Mainland China — B A 8,095 10,744
— Industrial building units — Mainland China ~ — L ¥ KX/E &A1
—HhE A 17,768 16,108
155,013 155,292

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers in/(out) of fair
value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in

circumstances that caused the transfer.

There was no transfer between Levels |, 2 and 3 during the year.

The following table presents the changes in investment properties
with fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs
(Level 3) for the years ended 30th June 2021 and 2020.

' 1 ’ NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | RREITHERLQF

AR ENHHE AR B
L VTR
DA BEBRZ 0B -

RNERWTESE | - FoNFEIB
el Hy B 38 o
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FE B I ERRMIRE
17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17 REWHE (@)
(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (a) RAEEZREE)
2021
Mainland China Hong Kong Total
RE At BE R
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FER FERx FER
Opening balance Hi 45 6 26,852 128,440 155,292
Net (loss)/gain from fair ARBEAR(ER)/
value adjustment e 558 (3,387) 710 (2,677)
Currency translation differences i 3 =5 2,398 — 2,398
Closing balance HigR &t 6h 25,863 129,150 155,013
Total (losses)/gains for the year FER(ER)aeE -
included in the consolidated income B IEE AR & W &k HY
statement, under other losses, net [ FL {518 — 558 | (3,387) 710 (2,677)
2020
Mainland China Hong Kong Total
B A3 o Gk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TET
Opening balance H 48R 29,193 130,780 159,973
Net loss from fair value adjustment AR EEFE K= FE (1224) (2,340) (3,564)
Currency translation differences M N, 2 5 (1L117) — (1,117)
Closing balance HY SR A5 80 26,852 128,440 155292
Total losses for the year included in  FNESIERRE + BIEE
the consolidated income statement, 4R & Uiz & &)
under other losses, net [EtbEE — F5E ] F (1,224) (2,340) (3,564)
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17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b)

Valuation process of the Group

The Group's investment properties were revalued at
HK$ 155,013,000 (2020: HK$155,292,000) as at 30th June
2021 and 2020 by Chung, Chan & Associates, an independent
professionally qualified valuer who holds a recognised relevant
professional qualification and has recent experience in the locations
and segments of the investment properties valued. Certain of the
investment properties are leased to third parties under operating
lease arrangements, further summary details of which are included in

Note |7(e) to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group's finance department reviews the valuations performed
by the independent valuer for financial reporting purposes. The
finance department reports directly to the CODM. Discussions
of valuation processes and results are held between the CODM,

finance department and the independent valuer annually.

At each financial year end the finance department:

° Verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation report;

° Assesses property valuations movements when compared to
the prior year valuation report; and
. Holds discussions with the independent valuer.

Changes in Level 3 fair values are analysed at each reporting date

between the CODM, finance team and the independent valuer.

‘v NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | RREITHERLQF

17 REME#)

(b)

A E B 1518 7
AEBWREMFERBLEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMIBHRRMEE

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17 REWE @)
(c) Valuation techniques (c) 1WEEKEMN
Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs MAEARM T B R AEL
R EEFE
Fair values of investment properties of the Group are generally AEENRENEALEE—
determined using the income capitalisation method which largely MBI S EEE - WA E
involves the use of unobservable inputs and taking into account ZHATAERHA - WER
the significant adjustments on passing rentals of the current leases EREHENEREEEEE
and capitalisation rates including the outgoings (“Yields"). These HEARXHBERLELER(ESR
significant unobservable inputs include: EONERRAE - LEEBRR
AERBARE
Fair value at
30th June Relationship of
2021 unobservable inputs
R=B=-f Valuation Unobservable Range of to fair value
Description ~A=1H technique inputs unobservable inputs FABEEA
g 2Dl fhER FUBERA TUBEAAEE HARBENBE
HK$'000
TER
Industrial building units — Hong Kong 126,000 Income Unit passing rents HK$9.32 - HK$11.66 The higher the rental value,
I¥REEf &S capitalisation Bf/REHEE  per month per square feet the higher the fair value,
method BYAREAINET and vice versa
Yeghik Elleepr  WESR ArEEES:
RZ TR
Yields 294% - 3.67% The higher the Yields,
ZEX the lower the fair value,

and vice versa

ZRXHR AAEEME-

SN

Car park units - Hong Kong 3,150 Income Unit passing rents HK$6,000 — HK$9,225 The higher the rental value,
[FEf-F% capitalisation BURKHEE per month per unit the higher the fair value,
method FEB{EA 6000ET and vice versa

Wk 29058 BEES AAEEES

R 2

Yields 7.28% - 9.66% The higher the Yields,

Zgx% the lower the fair value,

and vice versa
ZEXRYE  AABEME
RZ
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17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(c) Valuation techniques (Continued)

17 REME#)

(c) 1EEHM (&)

Fair value at
30th June Relationship of
2021 unobservable inputs
RZB--% Valuation Unobservable Range of to fair value
Description ~A=TH technique inputs unobservable inputs RUREH A
i ZRAEE fERHE  FTRRRA FIERRAEE HAABENEE
HK$'000
A7
Commercial office units and 8,095 Income  Unit passing rents RMB22.48 per month The higher the rental value,
apartment — Mainland China capitalisation ENABHEE per square meter the higher the fair value,
HERREEN —RERM method SYIKEA and vice versa
oo NBARE  BESE DAEEES
RZ A
Yields 1.68% The higher the Yields,
ZBX% the lower the fair value,
and vice versa
Y0%HR  DABEME
RZ T
Industrial building units — Mainland China 17,768 Income  Unit passing rents RMB9.64 per month The higher the rental value,
IEREER-PERY capitalisation  ERFREHE per square meter the higher the fair value,
method GIHKEA and vice versa
W E IAARE  HEES DAEEES
R A
Yields 790% The higher the Yields,
ZE XK the lower the fair value,

F

“J NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | RREITHERLQF

and vice versa

R



(c¢) Valuation techniques

Industrial building units — Hong Kong

TXAEEf-BB

Car park units - Hong Kong
{FEf-EE

125,290 Income

capitalisation
method

Wak

3,150 Income
capitalisation
method

Witk

Unit passing rents

HK$9.32 - HK$11.66 The higher the rental value,

EAIREMAE  per month per square feet the higher the fair value,
FYARBAINAET and vice versa
El6ET HEER AAEBEYS:
R 2 A
Yields 2.71% - 3.50% The higher the Yields,
ERX the lower the fair value,

Unit passing rents

EfRERE
Yields

and vice versa

ZRRES  RABEWE

R4

HK$6,000 — HK$9,225 The higher the rental value,

per month per unit the higher the fair value,

BEBA6000ET and vice versa
B9NSEL  HESS ArEEER
R2 A

6.90% - 9.16% The higher the Yields,

the lower the fair value,
and vice versa

ERREE  RABEME -
Rz A
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|7
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(c) Valuation techniques (Continued)

17 BREWE(#)
(c) 1EERM )

Fair value at
30th June Relationship of
2020 unobservable inputs
W-E-ZE Valuation Unobservable Range of to fair value
Description ~NAZTH technique inputs unobservable inputs TABRGA
fit PN ERG  ATERGA PABEGALE HAREEMEE
HK$'000
TATL
Commercial office units and 10,744 Income  Unit passing rents RMB61.74 - RMB65.2 | The higher the rental value,
apartment — Mainland China capitalisation BAFEMAE per month per square meter the higher the fair value,
HERREEN —RERM method SYIKEA and vice versa
Iz 6174- 6521 AR HEER AABEMES
RZ A
Yields 290% - 3.45% The higher the Yields,
ZBX% the lower the fair value,
and vice versa
Y0%HR  DABEME
RZ T
Industrial building units — Mainland China 16,108 Income  Unit passing rents RMB9.64 per month The higher the rental value,
IEREER-PERY capitalisation  ERFREHE per square meter the higher the fair value,
method GIHKEA and vice versa
W E IAARE  HEES DAEEES
R A
Yields 8.00% The higher the Yields,
5% the lower the fair value,

Q NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | RREITHERLQF

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the year.

and vice versa

ZRXHE DABEME.
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17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(d) As at 30th June 2021, the fair value of investment properties
pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities amounted to
approximately HK$39,395,000 (2020: HK$39,163,000).

(e) The future aggregate minimum rentals receivables under non-

cancellable operating leases are as follows:

FEMIBHRRMEE

17 REWE®)
(d M-ZT-_—FXA=1+H %
& 1) 3 BR T F 8 49 39,395,000
BIT(ZEZFF : 39,163,000
BIT)EERTRT  BREAE
BEERSRITIEE -

(e) WRETAMENEZERE K
KB EWHEREMNT

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
TExT T T
Not later than one year —FR 3,631 5,436
Later than one year and not later than five years —F BB NMER A F 1,682 6,686
5313 12,122
18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18 B|IL&EE

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T

Technical know-how 0T A0
Cost BXAR 4,000 4,000
Accumulated amortisation Rt (2,000) (2,000)
Accumulated impairment ZERE (2,000) (2,000)
Net book amount BRTEFE — —

During the years ended 30th June 2021 and 2020, the Directors assessed
the recoverability of the technical know-how and considered that the
carrying value of the technical know-how cannot be recovered through its

future use and full provision was made.

REBEZZE-_—RZ_ZT_FTFA
“TRLEFEAN  EFDMAEM
Mz WEEBETRASEERAE
DA EHARKREAPKE - AE
EH 2 RRRE -
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19 FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

20

19 BAREFAHMER

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (“FVOCI”) WENIKEE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#x F#T
Financial asset at FVOCI: BARBEFAEMEEK S
M B EE
Equity securities, unlisted JELTESER 2,226 1,863

Financial asset at FVOCI represents a 3.6% (2020: 3.6%) equity interest in
an unlisted company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The amount

is denominated in HK dollar.

SUBSIDIARIES

The details of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2021 are disclosed
in Note 35.

Material non-controlling interests

The total non-controlling interest as at 30th June 2021 was HK$
31,727,000 (2020: HK$25,199,000), of which HK$31,857,000 (2020:
HK$25,250,000) was attributable to Ngai Hing Engineering Plastics
Materials Limited (“NHEPML"). The non-controlling interests in respect of

other subsidiaries were not material.

Significant restrictions

Cash and bank deposits of NHEPML of RMBI15,774,000 (2020:
RMB10,393,000), equivalent to approximately HK$18,779,000 (2020:
HK$11,359,000), were held in Mainland China and were subject to local
exchange control regulations. These local exchange control regulations
provided for restrictions on exporting capital from the region, other
than through normal dividends or remittance of revenue income through

import/export companies.
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BRER AR D E W5
BERRNERBEBRESEM
ZHEETRRZBENZ=FN(ZF
TEF - BOZZEHNEE D
BUABTREL -

Ehg NG
R-B=—EXA=+AMEEN
B R R R I 35 SRR -

BEAR I FI
RZEBEZ—FNAZ+HRNEE
Hil 4 3 A8 R A31,727,000% T(=
T~ T 4F 25199000 T )0 H
31,857,000 (= T = T F:
25,250,000 7 7T ) B 7 5% B T A2 2B
ARAR([ZRETRER]) - BH
o BB A BB R IEEFI ST T &
j( o

EARSH
RETREBRNASRENTRE
15774000 R B(Z T = &
F:10393000A R ¥ (%5 E 4
18,779,000/ (= T = & % :
11,359,000 7T ) ) 7 BUE + B A i, -
REMBINEE BIFTAE o LLEI
P & il PR ) 7% & & [ 1 BB ANCGE
BIEFRANEBEAEHOQRES
Wz RIBRAI) o



20 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Material non-controlling interests (Continued)

Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with material non-

controlling interests

Set out below are the summarised financial information for the subsidiary

that has non-controlling interests that are material to the Group.

FEMIBHRRMEE

20 KMiEAE &)
BARyF ()
ABEAIFE# e ) I B 2 A]AY
THEYBEER
PN RS PN E 22 L
SN BARNREREER -

Summarised balance sheet HEEEREX
NHEPML
BETRER
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T T
Current )
Assets BE 152,471 89,237
Liabilities af&E (67,184) (29,007)
Current net assets FEREBEE 85,287 60,230
Non-current ERE
Assets BE 45,113 44,096
Liabilities af&E (3,569) (995)
Non-current net assets FIEREBEE 41,544 43,101
Net assets FEE 126,831 103,331
REHIEE R 31,857 25,250

Accumulated non-controlling interests
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EARH 12 (F)
ent of comprehensive income HEW B FRE W

Revenue Wz 179,159
Profit before income tax B 35 AT A 19,545
Income tax expense MIEXZ (3.218)
Post-tax profit B A5 18 0% A 16,327
Other comprehensive income Hih 2R (1,286)
Total comprehensive income 2HEW R AT 15,041
Total comprehensive income allocated to el EEE

non-controlling interests IR R 2 3491
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest AT T ISR 2 RE (3,189)

@ NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | FHRETERLT
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FE B I ERRMIRE
20 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 20 BB A F ()
Material non-controlling interests (Continued) By (A
Summarised cash flows HER T REFR
NHEPML
REIREHR
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THET
Cash flows from operating activities REEXBZRER
Cash generated from operations WEEBMEELEZRE 20,233 43,217
Income tax paid P (4,953) (3,269)
Net cash generated from operating activities REEBMEEZFRE 15,280 39,948
Net cash used in investing activities REFXBERZFRE (4,463) (3,495)
Net cash used in from financing activities BMEXBAERAZEFRE 8,159 (25,416)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents BeERBREEHE LM 18,976 [1,037
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FHIZIRE R EEER 18,252 7,314
Currency translation differences M H Z R0 1,014 (99)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRZEERBESER 38,242 18,252
The information above is the amount before inter-company eliminations. LA &R R ETE A F) ¥ i AT A 2

B o
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R M ERRMFE
21 INVENTORIES 21 B8
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T T
BHEBFE Trading stocks 111,614 196,842
=% Raw materials 91,628 65,318
BUPK R Finished goods 35,082 30,644
238,324 292,804
The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included in cost of RERE W= R A E KA D g
sales in the consolidated income statement amounted to approximately RERIZHFEREGERDNB
HK$1,538,983,000 (2020: HK$1,310,278,000). 1,538,983,000/8 (= & — & F :
310,278,000 7T ) °
Reversal of provision for impairment of inventories amounted to 7N & B K F E # [E6,793,000% T
HK$6,793,000 (2020: provision of HK$3,142,000) for the year was (ZZTZF 5 - #453,142,00047T)
included in cost of sales in the consolidated income statement. ZIEERBEEE  TREAERER
WEHERARF AR -
22 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 22 BESEBRERERERE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T T
Trade receivables E 5 EBGK 248,141 175,944
Less: loss allowance B ERGEURE R (4,770) (4.797)
243,371 171,147
Bills receivables W ERE 33,452 24,098
276,823 195,245

4
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FEMIBHRRMEE

¢

22 BEFEWRREWREE &)

BHRUFOEEENTIEES

22 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The carrying amount of trade receivables are denominated in the following

B

currencies:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
HK$ BT 98,843 42,546
RMB AR 117,296 109,515
usD ETT 32,002 23,883
248,141 175,944

BHRWHzERERERAEE
EROI

The carrying value of trade receivables approximates their fair values.

HRAKEHRAEREZEFE M
NEZRWRLEEEBNETZ
[\ -

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables

as the Group has a large number of customers.

AEERBOBEENEER/=T

The majority of the Group's sales were made with credit terms of 30 to 90

days. The remaining amounts are on letter of credit or bank’s acceptance ZEATH - HBRUEARIRTA
bill HIERT LT ©

UWEBRZIBHBEETER—ANT
BA - WA ERESEL

Bills receivable are mainly with maturity period of within 180 days and are

denominated in the following currencies:

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T T

HK$ BT 573 —
usD ETT 4,138 1,078
RMB AREE 28,741 23,020
33,452 24,098

RUREZFEEEEQAEER
#) M B 0 R W R IR 2 HE R AR 8% o

The carrying value of bills receivable approximates their fair values and

there is no recent history of default on bills receivable.
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RS B A Rk aE

22

23

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Certain subsidiaries of the Group transferred certain bank's acceptance
bills amounting to approximately HK$ 1,031,000 (2020: HK$16,584,000)
with recourse in exchange for cash as at 30th June 202 1. The transactions

have been accounted for as collateralised bank advances (Note 28).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is
the carrying values of the receivables (2020: same). Other than the bank's
acceptance bills collateralised as bank advances, the Group does not hold

any collateral as security.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

As at 30th June 2021, the Group had | (2020: 3) outstanding forward
foreign exchange contracts of HK$23,000 (2020: HK$1,246,000) mainly
to purchase USD (2020: purchase USD). The maximum notional principal
amount of the outstanding forward foreign exchange contract at 30th June

was as follows:

22

23

BEZRURRERRE @)
R-B-—FAA=tAAKEZ

M ARG 11,031,000 T(=F
Z T4 1 16,584,000 T ) B IR T &
HEZRRFRITUBRDIRE - F
B 55 RE b A R1T 2K (B
3£28) o

EER LT iﬁlﬁ% EI’JBEE{ETE
—E-FF AR RBETR

1TAREUIR & IR 1T R W EZES -
AEBTHEETAEARBENER

TTE€mIA

R-ZZE-—FA=+H KA&EE
(2= "E =) HE
23,0008 L (ZF ZZF : 246,000

BIT) 2 RRWHNERERBIE D EE L
BEXL(ZEZZEF - BXET) 1
ANAZTHRERIWINERBHE
Nz EEREASELOT :

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT T T

Sell HK$ for USD SHEBITUNEAZETT 78,000 507,000
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R SRR MR
24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24 RERBEEH
(a) Cash and cash equivalents () REREELZEH
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TAET
Cash on hand RE B 657 621
Bank balances RITHEER 205,922 125,473
206,579 126,094
Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following ReRBEeSBUTINER R
currencies: B -
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TATT
HK$ BT 22,725 9,653
RMB ARE 131,194 87,852
UsD =S 52,408 28,422
Others Hitp 252 167
206,579 126,094
Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank MITHEBBBEEARITFERL
deposit rates. F BN R BRERA R o
The Group’s cash and cash equivalents of HK$ 148,232,000 (2020: rEBE s ReRBASEHER
HK$94,546,000) are deposited with banks in Mainland China. The 148,232,000/ o(= T = =&
remittance of these funds out of Mainland China is subject to the F 1 94,546,000 7)) R B A
exchange control restrictions imposed by the Government of 2 IRITETF - BEBE SE
Mainland China. R B i & S BR A R B A 3

KIS B2 INEE I AR5 o

o b
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RS B A Rk aE

24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)
(b) Restricted bank deposits
As at 30th June 2021, RMB32,209,000 (equivalent to
HK$38,344,000) (2020: RMB31,932,000 (equivalent to
HK$34,898,000)) are restricted deposits held at bank as reserve for
serving of debt for revolving loans provided by the bank (Note 28).
The restricted bank deposits carry fixed interest rate at 1.75% (2020:
|.75%) per annum with remaining maturity less than twelve months

after the balance sheet date.

25 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

The ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables by invoice date is as

24 BeRBEEH#E)

(b)

ZIRFIRIIR 1T FZ5K
—_E-_—#HxXA=Z+8"
32,209,000 A & (% B 4
38,344,000 L J(Z T = &
F :31,932000A R ¥ (5 &
#934,898,0007 7T ) ) & X BR
RERTTIE R - FRRIRITIER
RITRHEBRERNEERE
(Pff5E28) o PR FIBVIRITIF K
WREBFES 2 —HER(Z
E-TF:-BHHhZ2—HtEHRH)
ZEEFE  WREEAMER
HEFERER AR+ =@A -

25 BZRNRRENRE
ESRARRANERREEAL

follows: BRECOMTANT -

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
Below 90 days 0-90 H 76,975 85,622
91 - 180 days 91-180 H 367 1,279
Over 180 days 3@ 180 H 910 356
78,252 87,257

The carrying values of trade and bills payables approximate their fair B RN RENRE 2 REEH

values, and are denominated in the following currencies:

AREERE  XATIEES

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T

RMB AR 28,126 20,284
usD ETT 50,126 66,973
78,252 87,257

4
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FEMIBHRRMEE

4

26 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM 26 BRARBRAGE

Share capital KRR
Number of
ordinary Share
shares of capital
HK$0.10 each nominal value
BREE IR A EE
0.10 T2 HK$’000
ZERHE FH&xT
Authorised: SRTEMA
At Ist July 2019, 30th June 2020, RZE—NEFELHA—H-
I'st July 2020 and 30th June 2021 ZE-TFEXRA=TH -
—E-TFEH—H
R=ZZE=—F,A=+H 800,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRBRRA
At Ist July 2019, 30th June 2020, RZZE—-NFE+tA—H "
I'st July 2020 and 30th June 2021 ZEZTFEARA=F+H-
—ETFEELEA-AR
—ZE-—F5XA=1+H 369,200,000 36,920
Share premium BREGZE
HK$’000
FET
At Ist July 2019, 30th June 2020, RZZT—-NFE+tHA—H -
I'st July 2020 and 30th June 2021 ZEZTFEARA=FH-
—E-EFELA—AR
—ZEZ—FXA=TH 62,466

o b
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At Ist July 2019 RZZ-NE+A-H 3.119) 9,640 1,077 29,704 37,302 352,031 389,333
Loss for the year KERE - - - - - (6212) (6.212)
Currency translation differences ERER - = = (17319) (17319) = (17319)
Fair value gain of BAREEGAEMZEKS

financial asset at FVOC MR BEE AR BERR — — 134 - 134 = 134
At 30th June 2020 RZZEZZF/ A=+H 3.119) 9,640 1211 12,385 2,117 345,819 365,936

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | FHRETERLT
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27 RESERVES (Continued)

FEMIBHRRMEE

27 REE)

Other reserves

HibE
Financial
asset at
FVOCI
reserve
Capital BAAER Exchange
reserve FIAEME  fluctuation
(Note) Revaluation 2HWEH reserve Retained
BRGEE reserve BBEE EX Sub-total earnings Total
(W) BftffE e NERE Mt REER 2%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TiEn TR TER TiEn TR
At Ist July 2020 RZZ-ZF+A-A (3,119 9,640 1,211 12,385 20,117 345,819 365,936
Profit for the year KERH — — — = — 89,865 89,865
Currency translation differences EXER — — - 40,353 40,353 - 40,353
Fair value gain of BAABEF AR MEAKR
financial asset at FYOC| WEBEEZ AR BERE - — 2| - 2| = 2
2020/202 interim dividends paid YR-E-%
ZEC-EEPERE — = = = = (7,384) (7,384)
At 30th June 2021 RZZZ—-ExA=+H (3,119) 9,640 1,472 52,738 60,731 428,300 489,031
Note: Pt 5T -
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FBT
Capital reserve from reorganisation (note (a)) BAREEBEH () 408 408
Changes of interests in subsidiaries without TEBUR A b BT
change of control (note (b)) NEE S (P (b)) (3,527) (3.527)
3,119) (3,119)
(@)  The capital reserve of the Group represents the aggregate amount of the (@) ANEEZEREETIRIERRE

non-voting deferred shares of Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials Limited and
the difference between the nominal amount of the share capital issued by the
Company in exchange for the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital
of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation in 1994 (the

“Reorganisation”).

(b)  The balance represents the net changes in capital reserve arising from the
change of interests in subsidiaries without change of control.

®)

BERARZERFERLERN BE
ER—NANAFARRREBEEEE
A(TEA D PET ZBAEERRZ
TP B I B A ) 2 BN T B 4 R
MEZEZH -

FBORTEFANB AR EREE
(PNREERIR)PTEENEARRER -
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28 BANK BORROWINGS

28 RITIEE

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TAET
Bank loans due for repayment within ER—FABEZRITER
one year - secured (Note 3.1(e)) —BEM (LS. 1(e)) 68,774 106,080
Trust receipt loans due for repayment FER—FABEZET
within one year - secured (Note 3.1(e)) YR E®R—
BEA(PFE3. |(e)) 239,903 242713
Bank advances for discounted bills (Note 22) RITANER |IR BN 11,031 16,584
319,708 365,377

The carrying amount of the Group's borrowings approximates their

fair values as the impact of discounting is not significant. The Group's

borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:

AEEBEZREES \ﬁ/ ~AEE

HE - WA T EB BN

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

THERT TET

HK$ BT 222,017 139,961
RMB AR 20,555 79,826
usD X 77,136 145,590
319,708 365,377
At 30th June 2021, all of the Group's bank borrowings are wholly RZEBEZ—F<A=+H ~&H

repayable within five years.

The amounts repayable based on the scheduled repayment date set out

in the loan agreements ignoring the effect of any repayment on demand

clause are as follows:

MIRTEFRIGFREFAERE -

AR B R 15 5% AR 1R B SO BUR
TERENFIEREZEEES

h

mr

X
#

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000

THExT T

Within | year —4ER 319,708 365377

4
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28 BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

The exposure of the Group's borrowings to interest rate changes and the

weighted average interest rates at the balance sheet date are as follows:

FEMIBHRRMEE

28 MITEE#)

KEEAERAASEEZ ERYF
ERBHEARRIETHFEMT :

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

F# T FHETT

— at fixed rates — [&EE FI = 319,708 365,377

2021 2020

HK$ RMB UsSD HKS RMB uUsD

BT AR® =T B ARE ETT

Trust receipt loans SRR B 2.22%  4.50%  2.11%  334%  450% = 235%

Short-term bank loans RMHRTTE X 1.78% 4.92% — 2.31% 5.69% —
Bank advances for SRITRRIR IR AR

discounted bills — 3.32% — — 3.00% —

Bank borrowings are secured by certain property, plant and equipment

(Note 15), leasehold land and land use rights (Note 16), investment
properties (Note |7) and restricted bank deposits (Note 24(b)) of the

Group.

Bank advances for discounted bills with recourse have been accounted

for as collateralised bank advances. The discounted bank’s acceptance

bills and the related proceeds of the same amount are included in the

Group's trade and bills receivables (Note 22) and short-term borrowings

respectively at the end of the reporting period.

RITERUAEREEITLDNDE - K
EREEMEIS)  HAELHREL
i A AE(KT aE 16) ~ & & W) % (M
i 17) KRR BRI EY R 17 7 (KT R
24(b)) BRI -

M e REZ R ZBAER TIRT
FERITERE S RSB IREMRTT
B RNEERBERALFEAR
THRLEREREH RBEMER
DHEBRERASREZE HRER R
FEU R (P 22) RAEHEE -
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29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against current
income tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to
the same taxation authority. The following amounts, determined after

appropriate offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance sheet:

29 EERIE
EHEEEARTENEREREEL
ERBARERGERY  BETH
BE KA — B - BT R
THEHEERABEEAEN - &
SHABEENE  THSERES
BEEEENFIE

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHEIT

Deferred income tax assets BERETIA A B 8,132 13,841
Deferred income tax liabilities EXEHRARE (4,496) (6,559)
3,636 7,282

The net movement on the deferred income tax is as follows: FRARERSHEENFEHUT -
2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHEIT

At beginning of the year, as restated FA(RET]) 7,282 3,295

(Charged)/credited to consolidated income TEERE MR (), FA

statement (Note 10) (PftzE 10) (4,210) 4,073
Currency translation differences e H Z5E 564 (86)
At end of the year FR 3,636 7,282

4
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29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the

year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the

same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

29

FEMIBHRRMEE

EIERIE ()
ERNECHERERAEY B8 (a
B — B R > R AT T -

Fair value gains on

Deferred income tax liabilities:

Accelerated tax

investment properties depreciation Total
BEHEEE RENEAAEBERE NEHBHRE B
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKF000
TR THET FER TET FErn TER
At beginning of the year F1 1,747 2,236 5,722 5920 7,469 8,156
Credited to consolidated ERalaERiTA
income statement (1,043) (404) (1,633) (59) (2,676) (463)
Currency translation differences [ X Z %8 156 (85) 336 (139) 492 (224)
At end of the year FR 860 1,747 4,425 5722 5,285 7469
Decelerated tax
Deferred income tax assets: Provisions Tax losses depreciation Total
BEEHEEE B BEER HEHRKRE aE
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
TRx TAET TR TET TER TET TFEn TEx
At beginning of the year E3) 7807 64l 4657 2522 2287 2518 14751  1145]
(Charged)/credited to Enekak
consolidated income statement (f08%) /FA @115 1564 = (4539) 2210 (232)  (l64)  (6886) 3610
Currency translation differences X EH 495 (168) 401 (75) 160 67) 1,056 (310)
At end of the year LS 6,187 7,807 519 4,657 2,215 2,287 8921 1475
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29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward
to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profits is probable. At 30th June 2021, the Group had unrecognised
tax losses to be carried forward against future taxable income amounted
to approximately HK$317,186,000 (2020: HK$316,007,000). These tax
losses have no expiry date except that approximately HK$ 11,222,000
(2020: HK$11,635,000) will expire from 2022 to 2026 (2020: 2021 to
2025). The potential deferred income tax assets in respect of these tax
losses which have not been recognised amounted to approximately
HK$53,290,000 (2020: HK$53,130,000).

As at 30th June 2021, deferred income tax has not been provided for in
the consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to unremitted profits earned by certain Mainland China
subsidiaries of the Group amounting to approximately HK$367,260,000
(2020: HK$303,734,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary

differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

’ NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | RREITHERLQF
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PEFER I (42)

BLAS AT T B 4 T T SR MU IR AE P
SHEEERRNEB MBS ESE
A BB % iR R 2R JE SR T B A B B ) 3D
Do RZZBEZ—FSA=1+H" K
5 B 30 4% Bt AT 45 83 LUK 8 oK R B AR
T W= /O B 7% 5 B 49 317,186,000 745
TL(ZZEZZFF 316,007,000 7T )
T R X BT 45 B 38 2= #953,290,000
B (= & = F 4 :53,130,000%
L) AT ZZFEZZT X
F(ZEZEZF: ZFTZ—FF
ZE A )BT EEBRLY
711,222,000 T(Z T ZF F:
11,635,00087C) °

R-_TE-_—FXA=1+8 ~&E
WABRETHEABHBRAZE
FRRER R BE 3R 4 A1) #£ 49 367,260,000 %8
(= Z = Z 4 : 303,734,000/ 7T )
ZEREBERTEHERE AR
EEEFZELREZE 2B LR
M ARRARZ B RZEERE
e RN 2



30 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash

generated from operations:

»
we

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMIBHRRMEE

30 MEBRERER

Br 5 B it FY SR A R E
ZRELHEE -

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Profit before income tax T B a1 121,597 3,390
Adjustments for: HEIEE
— Depreciation of property, —ME - BER
plant and equipment R E 18.041 16,562
— Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, —HEME  BER
plant and equipment B BB () | (72)
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets —FREEEITE 5,641 4811
— Fair value (gains)/losses on —INERBIEHZAR
forward exchange contracts BE (W) EiE (1,223) 1,172
— Unrealised fair value losses on —REREREMEZ
investment properties ~ABEEERE 2,677 3,564
— (Reversal of)/loss allowance — B I REBGREE
on trade receivables (Bm), #iE (430) 2,002
— (Reversal of)/provision for impairment —GFEREERE
of inventories, net (BE),/ B — F58 (6,793) 3,142
— Interest income —FEHA (1,137) (1,109)
— Interest expense —FEXZH 9,952 17,382
Changes in working capital: LEESHEE
— Inventories —-F8 79,725 14,741
— Trade and bills receivables, — B SR H L EW -
other receivables, SBRHEM YK
prepayments and deposits BNREZRS (65,834) 22,161
— Trade and bills payables, —BHENRRERN
other payables, FiE - AthENF KR
deposits received and accruals SWETe MTEIRE A 15,997 33,511
Cash generated from operations REEBEEXE 2R E 178,214 121,257
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erty, plant and equipment comprise:

ows, proceeds from

(b) HEHEBLTHREZXAN HE
W& BERREHAEH
a5

Net book amount (Note |5)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment (Note 8)

Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment

BREFE(KIFEIS) 61
HEVE. BEER

2 (E518) /W (M3E8) 72
HEME  BEKRE

Fri8 133

@ NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | FHRETERLT
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e BRI EE
30 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 30 MERERERME)
(Continued)
(c) The reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (c) BMEXBAEERAEK
activities is as follows: o
Bank borrowings Lease liabilities Total
RITEE HESE M
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TExT FTET THERT
At Ist July 2019 RZZE—NF+tHA—H 406,977 7,366 414343
Cash flow REMR
— Proceed from bank loans —EBRITER 211,045 = 211,045
— Repayment of bank loans —ERBITER (222,478) = (222,478)
— Increase in trust receipt loans —EREE E LM (26,118) — (26,118)
— Repayment of lease liabilities —EEHERE = (3,869) (3,869)
Non-cash changes R EH
— Addition of lease liabilities —HEAEEMN = 3,522 3,522
— Exchange differences —[EHER (4,049) = (4,049)
At 30th June 2020 RZZZFTFAA=1AH 365,377 7019 372,396
Cash flow BEm
— Proceed from bank loans —FIIRITER 591,701 — 591,701
— Repayment of bank loans —ERPITER (636,246) = (636,246)
— Decrease in trust receipt loans ~ — {5 WIEEFUR (6,771) — (6,771)
— Repayment of lease liabilities —ERMEEEE — (4,734) (4,734)
Non-cash changes FREeEH
— Addition of lease liabilities —HEAaBEEMN — 6,452 6,452
— Exchange differences —[EHERE 5,647 6l 5,708
At 30th June 202 | RZZE=Z—FA=+H 319,708 8,798 328,506
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31 COMMITMENTS
(a) Capital commitments

At 30th June 2021, the Group had the following capital commitments
for addition of property, plant and equipment:

31 A&IE
(a) ELRIE
RZBE-_—FA=1+H" ' &
EEEBEYE BERRKREBZ

BARAFEMT -
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TAET
Contracted but not provided for EELEREE 4,392 3,629

(b) Other commitments

On 15th June 2017, the Group entered into a non-cancellable
operating lease agreement with an agent of the Mainland China local
government authority to lease an industrial building premise for 5
years with a minimum lease payment of RMB8.5 per square meter.
During the non-cancellable lease period, the Group commits an
annual tax payment of RMB3,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$3,571,000), including the corporate income tax and value added
tax, from its business operation in the region to the Mainland China
local government authority. Any shortfall on the committed tax
payment would be paid in form of cash to the agent of the Mainland

China local government authority.

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group is controlled by Good Benefit Limited, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands, which owns 53.3% of the Company's shares.
The remaining 46.7% of the shares were widely held. Substantially all of
the shares of Good Benefit Limited are beneficially owned by certain

Directors of the Company.

4

& :’ NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | RREITHERLQF

(b) EftAME
RZE—+tFA+EHB &
SRR —TEREEEYWE—
HR B ) 3 b 77 IBROAT X B R
E-RHAFZTAREE
EHEAHN mBEHEEAE
F K85 AR o A A
HHESHERN ANEEE
RV MR 2 B ELE M Z
HE A i T BRI B
B {K3,000000 A RE(EELD
3,571,000 7T) 2 B IE (B iER
EMBREEER) - FAX
RREZAEBRETNESER
[A) 5% P B0 79 b 3t 7 BT A B
B

32 BEBALRS

AL [E H Good Benefit Limited (£
EEERREESAMA L ZAA])
TH HEEAAFTBE P Z2AT=
B BB 2T
R EZ#H A ° Good Benefit
Limited BB EREH RIEBHAR T
ZEDERERFEER ©
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 32

The Directors of the Company are regarded as key management of the

Group and details of compensation paid to them are disclosed in Note |4

to the consolidated financial statements.

(a) Transactions with related parties

In addition to those disclosed in Note 14 to the consolidated

financial statements, the following transactions were carried out with

FEMIBHRRMEE

AL R F ()

ARRIMBEFHERA/AEEL
EEEEAR  EFAFMCROER
B BRRME 458 -

(a) HHEHEALHIXZ
MRARE ISR M T 14 PTHEER
SN BB A LTSI

related parties: e
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Lease payment to related parties: TRAEEA T 2 HE R
— Build Fair Limited (Note (i)) —2BARAF(MEG) 1,034 1,074
— Shine Systems Plastic Materials - BRZBREHMERAA
Company Limited (Note (ii)) (B 3E (i) 976 1,013
— Mr. HUI Sai Chung — AR LA 151 176
2,161 2,263
Interest expense to related parties: TRBALZNEXE
— Build Fair Limited (Note (i)) —2BAERAF(MEFEG) 28 28
— Shine Systems Plastic Materials —AREBRHMERAQE
Company Limited (Note (ii)) GEIDY 17 42
— Mr. HUI Sai Chung — At ERE A 27 25
72 95
Addition of right-of-use assets: LA EEM :
— Build Fair Limited (Note (i)) —2BEAERAR(MEFEG) — 2,024
— Shine Systems Plastic Materials —AREBRHMERAQE
Company Limited (Note (ii)) GEIO) 1,246 665
— Mr. HUI Sai Chung — At ERE A = 833
1,246 3,522
Notes: MisE -

() Build Fair Limited is a company wholly owned by Mr. HUI Sai Chung, a

Director of the Company.

(i) Shine Systems Plastic Materials Company Limited is a company wholly

owned by Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong, a Director of the Company.

Lease payment made to related parties are on mutually agreed basis.

() BBRERAFEARRARES
PR AR EHER o

iy, BRZBRHMBRAFBHR
RABEETBN LAY
ﬁo

Xt TR A LT EMNEER
BiIRE TR EEWEI

¢
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(b)

Year-end balance arising from related party transactions

32 BEEANLERF (41)
(b) BIBANLXZEREGHE

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TAET
Lease labilities to related parties: TREBALTZHESE

— Build Fair Limited —RRARRA 843 1,860

— Shine Systems Plastic Materials —BRZBREBRAA
Company Limited 1,271 991
— Mr. HUI Sai Chung —Frtt B A4 447 681
2,561 3,532

33 ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY 33 BRARERAT

The Directors regard Good Benefit Limited, a company incorporated in

the British Virgin Islands, as being the ultimate holding company.

EERBARR Z&EZERRAAF A
Good Benefit Limited (fE KB 4R R~
BEAMKIIZRAT]) -

34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 34 TEMEAF
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2021 and RZEBEZ—FR-ZZF-_ZFFA
2020: =tHR ARBAZEEMBRAN
™
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
operation and paid up share capital/ Ownership interest
* kind of legal entity registered capital held by the Group
Name SRR CRITREE Principal activities KEBEEZ
=1 R E AR R, EME R TEER RS
2021 2020
Ngai Hing (International) British Virgin Islands US$100 Investment holding 100 100
Company Limited HEEBRES 1003 TT REER
(Note b) (FfzEb)
Dongguan Ngai Hing Plastic ~ Mainland China HK$93,200,000  Manufacture and sale of 100 100

Materials Limited 93,200,000 7T

.

*wholly foreign-owned

SRELEBRHMABBRDF  enterprise
REIA
*SNEBELE

& l’ NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | RREITHERLQF

colorants and
compounded plastic resins
BUERHERERER
&G AN
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e BRI EE
34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 34 FEMBLT &)
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2021 and RZEZ—FRZZTEZFFA
2020: (Continued) =+H ARRZEEZMEB QAWM
T (#)

Place of

incorporation/ Issued and fully

operation and paid up share capital/ Ownership interest

* kind of legal entity registered capital held by the Group

Name SR, R R CRITREE Principal activities KEBEEZ
=1 R+ EANER BRAEREL EX-3 38 AR
2021 2020
Hong Kong Colour Hong Kong 500,000 ordinary Manufacture and trading of 100 100
Technology Limited 5% shares of HK$ | each colorants and compounded
BEEEARAA] 500,000 X &R EE plastic resins
BT BB EREREEHR
& B AR
Ngai Hing Engineering Hong Kong 2,000,000 ordinary Manufacture of 76.2 762
Plastic Materials Limited B shares of HK$ | each engineering plastic products
BRETRBHFRAA 2,000,000 2 SRR E RETRPBBEM
BT BB
Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary Investment holding and 100 100
Materials Limited 5% shares of HK$ | each property holding
BREZBRHMBRAA] 1,000 B HE E REZBRREFENE
BT BB
500,000 non-voting
deferred shares of
HK$ | each (Note ¢)
500,000 B & ik E (B
| BT BT
B (T )
Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Hong Kong 500,000 ordinary Trading of plastic materials 100 100
Materials (Hong Kong) B shares of HK$ | each BEEERBRRH

Limited
BREBBRH(EB)
ARAF

500,000 i &R EE
| BT BB
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34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2021 and

2020: (Continued)

34 FEMELT(#E)
RZEBEZ—FR_T_FTF;
Z=tH ARAZEBHEBERQF

>l

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
operation and paid up share capital/

* kind of legal entity registered capital

Ownership interest
held by the Group

Name SR, R R CRITREE Principal activities KEBEEZ
=1 R+ EANER BRAEREL EX-3 38 AR
2021 2020
Shanghai Ngai Hing Plastic Mainland China HK$34,400,000 Manufacture and sale of 100 100
Materials Company Limited *wholly foreign-owned 34,400,000 7T colorants and compounded
FBREBRBRE enterprise plastic resins
BRAT FE A SUENHEREH R
*NEBELE & B AR
Tsing Tao Ngai Hing Plastic ~ Mainland China HK$10,500,000  Manufacture and sale of 100 100
Materials Company Limited *wholly foreign-owned 10,500,000 7T colorants and compounded
SEREBRRE enterprise plastic resins
BRAT B A SUENHEBRER R
SEBERE E==r= gl
NHH Coltec Limited Hong Kong 5,000 ordinary ~ Manufacture and sale of 100 100
REBEEER AR N shares of HK$ | each plastic products
5000 BHEE  RERKEZBEM
BT B
Ngai Hing Engineering Mainland China US$200,000 Manufacture of engineering 76.2 762
Plastic Materials (Shanghai)  *wholly foreign-owned 200,000 % 7T plastic products
Company Limited enterprise SETREBEM
RITREM(LE) B A
BRLDA SEBERE
Tsing Tao Ngai Hing Mainland China US$100,000  Trading of colorants and 100 100
Trading Company Limited  *wholly foreign-owned 100,000 7T compounded plastic resins
SERAEBEBRAT enterprise BEEZBENER
REI A ElELE
NEBERE

) NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | RREITHERLQF
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FEMIBHRRMEE

34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 34 FENMBLARE)
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2021 and RZEZ—FRZZTEZFFA
2020: (Continued) =+H ARRZEEZMEB QAWM
T (%&)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
operation and paid up share capital/ Ownership interest
* kind of legal entity registered capital held by the Group
Name SR, R R CRITREE Principal activities KEBEEZ
=1 R+ EANER R,/ EmE R EX-3 38 AR
2021 2020
Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic  Hong Kong 1,000,000 ordinary Trading of engineering 76.2 762
(Hong Kong) Limited 5% shares of HK$ | each plastic products
BETRIH(FE) 1,000,000 F& & AR I 1 BEETREBEM
BRIA BT BB
Xiamen Ngai Hing Hong Mainland China US$1,200000  Manufacture and sale of 100 100
Plastic Materials Company ~ *wholly foreign-owned 1,200,0002E 7T colorants and compounded
Limited enterprise plastic resins
EFIRETERBRE R A SUENHEERERER
BRLA SNEBELE &8 AR PE
Guangzhou Ngai Sog Hing Mainland China RMB 10,000,000 Trading of plastic materials 100 100
Trading Company Limited ~ *wholly foreign-owned 10,000,000 A R #& BEERRBRE
BEMNTRZEEZHERAG  enterprise
PEA
*SNEBELE
Shanghai Ngai Sog Hing Mainland China US$400,000 Trading of plastic materials 100 100
Trading Company Limited ~ *wholly foreign-owned 400,000 7T BEERRBRE
LEREEBBREEE enterprise
BRIA B A
*SNEBELE
NHH Biodegradable Plastics ~ Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary ~ Manufacture and sale of 100 100
Company Limited BB shares of HK$ | each biodegradable plastic
RERRERBR AR 10,000 X G AR E1E materials

| BT LA

 BUERHERRE B R
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34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2021 and
2020: (Continued)

34

—E - FRZFFTFA
=tH AREIZEBHBLE M

>l

Place of
incorporation/
operation and

* kind of legal entity

Issued and fully
paid up share capital/

registered capital

Ownership interest
held by the Group

Name SRR LR it B BRTRHR Principal activities rEEREZ
=1 R EANER R EmE R ITERK FrEkER
2021 2020
Ngai Hing Engineering Mainland China HK$8,000,000 Trading of engineering 76.2 762
Plastic (Dongguan) *wholly foreign-owned 8,000,000 % 7T plastic products
Company Limited enterprise BEEIRZREM
SRITRZEHMERARF PEAM
SEBERE
Shanghai Coltec Plastic Mainland China US$200,000  Trading of colorants and 100 100
Trading Company Limited ~ *wholly foreign-owned 200,000%JC compounded plastic resins
FHEEBRE5BRATR  enterprise BEZOERER
FE A AR
S EBELE
Dongguan Coltec Plastic Mainland China HK$3,000,000  Trading of colorants and 100 100
Trading Company Limited ~ *wholly foreign-owned 3,000,0007C  compounded plastic resins
RpREBRESERAR  enterprise BEEZGERER
FE A AR
SEBERE
Tianjin Ngai Hing Hong Mainland China US$400,000 Trading of plastic materials 100 100
Trading Company Limited ~ *wholly foreign-owned 400,000 7T ETBRBRE
RERBITHERRAT enterprise
B A
SEBERE
NHH Investment Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary Investment holding 100 100
REITIREBR AT e shares of HK$ | each REER
10,000 i & B {2
BT BB
Guangzhou Ngai Hing Hong ~ Mainland China RMB3,000,000 Trading of plastic materials 100 100
Plastic Materials Limited *wholly foreign-owned 3,000,000 A R EEBRER

BMmRETE R R
ARAT

enterprise
REA
*SNEBELE

’ NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | RREITHERLQF
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34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2021 and

2020: (Continued)

34

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
operation and paid up share capital/

* kind of legal entity registered capital

Ownership interest

held by the Group

Name SR, R R CRITREE Principal activities KEBEEZ
=1 R+ EANER R,/ EmE R EX-3 38 AR
2021 2020
Chongging Ngai Hing Hong ~ Mainland China RMB3,000,000 Trading of plastic materials 100 100
Plastic Materials Limited *wholly foreign-owned 3,000,000 A R EEBRBRER
EEMRETERRRH enterprise
BRLIA B A
SIEBALE
Shanghai Ngai Hing Hong Mainland China RMB3,000,000 Trading of plastic materials 100 100
Plastic Materials Limited *wholly foreign-owned 3,000,000 A R #& ETBRBRE
EERETERRE enterprise
BRLE REI A
SEBERE
NHH Technology Hong Kong 2,000,000 ordinary Manufacture and sale 38.9 38.9
Company Limited N shares of HK$| each of personal care products
BERRAR DA 2,000,000 A &% BEEBEAZEMm
EE BT
2 BB
Monceris (Shanghai) Materials Mainland China RMB 1,000,000  Trading of colorants and 84.5 —
Technology Company *wholly foreign-owned 1,000,000 AR compounded plastic resins
Limited enterprise EZERIkER
2EB(LE)MRRHR A A PR Be
ARAT IEBELE
Monceris Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary Investment holding 84.5 —
EEEERAT O shares of HK$ | each HEZER
10,000 iz & A
HE BT
BB

ANNUAL REPORT FEIRE 20/ 21 ‘ =
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34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

All the subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong and the British Virgin Islands
are limited liability companies. All subsidiaries established in Mainland China

are wholly foreign-owned enterprises.

Other than Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited, which is directly held
by the Company, all the principal subsidiaries listed above are indirectly held
by the Company.

The holders of the non-voting deferred shares in Ngai Hing Hong Plastic
Materials Limited (“NHHPML") shall not be entitled to any participation in
the profits or surplus assets of NHHPML and they are not entitled to receive
notice of or attend or vote at any general meeting of NHHPML in respect of

their holdings of such deferred shares.

Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited has been granted an option by
the holders of the non-voting deferred shares to acquire these shares for an

aggregate cash consideration of HK$4.

The above table includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results of the year or formed
a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.

‘v NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | RREITHERLQF

34 FEMBRT (&)

G

@

(b)

©

(d)

FIBERERRRBERRADEM
KRZzMERARER/REREER
A o PrAE R B A AR 7 2 BT
A RINEEERE

i 512 = BH B A 7B Nea
Hing (International) Company
Limited A AR FIEEF A * 1968
RARIEERA -

R ERBRERI AR DA ([RE])E
BRERRIERN 2 FHBEARESR
REHN KRR EED K > TRE
RERR B RF B 2 MR AE AR fy U B R B
RARGBERHERABZRAG K
Mg ERE -

Ngai Hing (International) Company
Limited AR S 48 (B 478 T E SR
SRR OFEARBATEEZ
FRO 2 BE -

ERIHEERREAFEXEER
REEZESENAEEEEFE
ZEBHD 2 ARRMBLRF - E
ERRIEI EAMME R R 21
FLEBNILE -
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35 TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING

INTERESTS

Capital injection from non-controlling shareholders

On 17th March 2020, NHEPML entered into an agreement with a third
party to incorporate NHH Technology Company Limited (“NHHT").
NHEPML subscribed 1,020,000 shares of NHHT at HK$1.00 each,
representing 51% equity interest of NHHT. The Group effectively owns
38.86% equity interest in NHHT upon the completion of incorporation of
NHHT and the non-controlling shareholders have injected HK$980,000
into NHHT. During the year ended 30th June 2021, the non-controlling
shareholders have further injected HK$2,694,000 into NHHT.

On |5th June 2020, the Group entered into an agreement with a third party
to incorporate Monceris Limited (“Monceris”). The Group subscribed
84,500 shares of Monceris at HK$1.00 each, representing 84.5% equity
interest of Monceris. During the year ended 30th June 2021, the non-
controlling shareholders have injected HK$2,000 into Monceris.

35

e B ERR I EE
EFEHMERNRS
HEHRE LR

RZZEZZEF=A++tH HFET
12 28R} B 88 = 5 43 K 1 ad K N 3R R
B BRAR(TZER K] - RE
IRBHUSRIBTABRAR
#1,020,000 Bz % fn - BNSR B B
AZAT—Z2EEEZ - RBER
REREMEIEASBEESFS
BREBMBEESZ=TN\EBNAARZE
BRaE s IR TR B IR R B R 3R R
A& 980,000 c REIZE T =—
FRNAZTHLEFE  EE %IJJ&%
A 3% BB B — 22 0F & 2,694,000 7%
=5

%

_7_$¢/\ﬂ+£a REH
EZFERBEXIEECERR
ﬁﬂ@%@%ﬂo$§@uﬁ%|
BRI E @B 4,500 kMK
%@%E ZJ\+@¥££Z,\BH%E
i —FXNA=FH
IEFE - #&%HI&%E@%@%/}
& 20008 7T °
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R M ERRMFE
36 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 36 SRITAEGRER)
2021 2020
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt ek FET FHIT
Financial assets — loans and receivables BKEE - BERREVRRK
Trade and bills receivables BEHRWHRREWEE 22 276,823 195,245
Other receivables and deposits HEmEREG RIES 7,862 5,542
Restricted bank deposits ZH AR IRITER 24 38,344 34,898
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEHE 24 206,579 126,094
529,608 361,779
Financial asset at FVOCI BEAREBEFAHEMEZE
WS EE
Financial asset at FVOCI BEARBETAEM
PEHBSNMBEEE 19 2,226 1,863
Financial liabilities — fair value through HEEE-ERAAEE
profit or loss EBRBRHRIIER
Derivative financial instruments PTESMTA 23 23 1,246
Financial liabilities — other financial liabilities ke E - HM®
at amortised cost 85 REBHERE
Trade and bills payables BORNAILENEE 25 78,252 87,257
Other payables Hih SR REWET€ 23,522 14,021
Lease liabilities HEAE 16 8,798 7,019
Bank borrowings RITEE 28 319,708 365,377
430,280 473,674

& :’ NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | RREITHERLQF



4
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AW RRM T
37 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 37 ARFNEERBREMR
THE COMPANY H2E
Balance sheet BEASMEX
2021 2020
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
{5 FTHET FHET
ASSETS &E
Non-current asset IRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries B ARIRE 62,711 62,711
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE M5 PR B 2 R K 119,958 106,113
Other receivables H o & Wk 356 115
Cash and cash equivalents ReMReER 258 84
120,572 106,312
Total assets HEE 183,283 169,023
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves attributable to ARRREERER FEE
the Company’s equity holders
Share capital N 36,920 36,920
Share premium IR A= (B 62,466 62,466
Other reserve HihfEE (@) 62,511 62,511
Retained earnings RE & A (a) 20,682 6,340
Total equity HRER 182,579 68,237
LIABILITY afE
Current liability =R
Accruals EIRE A 704 786
Total equity and liability BEZREE 183,283 169,023
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of RARRNEERABREHEEFERN
Directors on 28th September 2021 and were signed on its behalf ZEZ-FAAZTNBH#EZE I
RREFERE
HUI Sai Chung HUI Kwok Kwong
FRHER SRR
Chairman Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
FE B L EHREF R
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37 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 37 XRFIMNEEEBERRR
THE COMPANY (Continued) HEE (#)
Balance sheet (Continued) BEESEX (A
Note: (a) Reserve movement of the Company MizE © @ ANARIFEEE

Other reserve -
contributed

surplus
(Note)
Ht B — Retained
BERZRG earnings Total
(PRF=E) R EF FEk G
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET THERT FTHERT
At Ist July 2019 RZZE—hF+tA—H 62,511 7,305 69,816
Loss for the year REFBE — (965) (965)
At 30th June 2020 RZE-_ZTFA=+H 62,511 6,340 68,851
At Ist July 2020 RZE-_ZTF+HA—H 62,511 6,340 68,851
Profit for the year ARG — 21,726 21,726
2020/202 | interim dividends paid XH=FE=%/
—T-FERHEE = (7.384) (7.384)
At 30th June 2021 RZZE=Z—FA=+H 62,511 20,682 83,193
Note: B EE -
Contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference between the RRBZ2E#HEE - J)Ngai Hing
consolidated shareholders’ funds of Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited at (International) Company Limited iR E 404
the date on which the Reorganisation became effective and the nominal amount MAMBZEERREEARNGIREEMR
of the Company'’s shares issued under the Reorganisation. At Group level the FRIBTZROEEME 2 EZH - AEEZ
contributed surplus is reclassified into its components of reserves of the underlying EHRBARDIENBRABBINE AR 2 FHE
subsidiaries. HER -
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed surplus is distributable BIEBEABRE-NN—FRRE BHAR
to shareholders, subject to the condition that the Company cannot declare or pay BRAIDIERTRE - RIEFBEEEEHERE
a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if (i) it is, or after the () 2 B R R A AR B Sk A ] 99 TR 18 R
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due, or (ii) the realisable ek ESABEEREIBZAE (i) AT
value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its BEZAEREESHAMENREAE
issued share capital and share premium account. RECDBITRAER M RE 2 2E - 8

FZARMNRERIORM RSN E SR
BRPEE DI ©

4
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years are as follo

Results
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity

holders of the Company

Assets and liabilities
Total assets
Total liabilities

Non-controlling interests

Capital and reserves attributable to

the Company's equity holders

¥iE
NEIRREG

wmAL (E18) (6,212) 7,806 46,171 34,430
BEERAE
BAERE 994,839 1,019,873 1,049,595 953,013
BERE (504,318)  (507,280) (515,554) (469,816)
FEE G R (25,199)  (23874)  (24,826)  (23,065)
N AR R B IRAR

K 465322 488719 509,215 460,132

b
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As at 30th June 2021

i

hina (“Mainland =

—E--—Rp-F

R-B--FXA=1H

—F= —E-TFANA=F+H K
EEAUREERPERNLEZIRED
=

Industrial building
units — Hong Kong
TEREEM-FB

Industrial building

units — Mainland China
TEREEM—

R A

Car park units —

Hong Kong
BEL-FE

Commercial office units
and apartment —
Mainland China

EENAEEN —

A A3

Factory Unit 4 on 2nd Floor, Factory Unit 2 on 3rd
Floor, Factory Units 7 and 8 on 6th Floor, Factory
Unit 8 on 8th Floor, Factory Units I, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7
and 8 on |0th Floor, Factory Units | and 8 on | lth
Floor, Factory Unit 3 on [2th Floor and Roof 3,
Hopeful Factory Centre, Nos. 9-15 Fo Tan Road and
Nos. 10-16 Wo Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New
Territories, Hong Kong

BB B AR MK 9-155% R AR A 10-165%
BIETERPL2E4E 3B2E - 6B7R8E - 812
8BZE 1041234 56 7TR8E IR
8%F - NBIERKRAIM

Industrial premises situated in Chiling Village, Houjie
Zhen, Dongguan City, Guangdong Province, Mainland
China
NAPBEANEREREMETATENZTEAXR
E

Car Parks 3, 14 and 15, Hopeful Factory Centre, Nos.
9-15 Fo Tan Road and Nos. [0-16 Wo Shing Street,
Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
BRSO B NR AR I 9-15 5% MR B HT 10-16 5%
BEIEFL3  14K% I55EEL

Units 1612, 1613, 1614, 1615 and 1616, 16th Level,
Modo Nanjing Road Xintiandi Building, No. 349
Nanjing Road, Nankai District, Tianjin, Mainland China
o B 79 3 K% 1 R B 8 R AR B 349 5T MODO A B
AR KB 1611612 1613 1614 16151616

ES

Commercial

[GES

Industrial

I%

Commercial

[EES

Commercial

CES

Medium
H ]

Medium
]

Short
SRt

Medium
H ]

100%

100%

100%

100%
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As at 30th June 2020

Industrial building
units — Hong Kong
TEREEML-BA

Industrial building

units — Mainland China
ITEREEMN—

A A3

Car park units —

Hong Kong
BB -

Commercial office units
and apartment —
Mainland China

[SE S EFNES- XV
HR B A

Factory Unit 4 on 2nd Floor, Factory Unit 2 on 3rd

Floor, Factory Units 7 and 8 on 6th Floor, Factory
Unit 8 on 8th Floor, Factory Units |, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7
and 8 on 10th Floor, Factory Units | and 8 on Ilth
Floor, Factory Unit 3 on [2th Floor and Roof 3,
Hopeful Factory Centre, Nos. 9-15 Fo Tan Road and
Nos. 10-16 Wo Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New
Territories, Hong Kong

BB D B MR AR EE9-15 5% R AR B 10-16 5%
EETEFRLOEA4E 3BLE - ¢ETRSE - 818
8B - I0#1-2-3-4-5-6-7TR8E IR
8E - NEIERKRA3NR

Industrial premises situated in Chiling Village, Houjie
Zhen, Dongguan City, Guangdong Province, Mainland
China
URPEAEREREMETHRA BN Z TEX
=

Car Parks 3, 14 and 15, Hopeful Factory Centre, Nos.
9-15 Fo Tan Road and Nos. 10-16 Wo Shing Street,
Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong

BRI B IR AR 9-1558 R AR 10-165%
BT EAL3 S 14 R ISHEEM

Units 1612, 1613, 1614, 1615 and 1616, 16th Level,
Modo Nanjing Road Xintiandi Building, No. 349
Nanjing Road, Nankai District, Tianjin, Mainland China
o P9 3 2K 2 h R B [ R B 349 5 MODO R 2%
R KE 1611612 16131614~ 16151616
=

Commercial Medium
EES B
Industrial Medium
Iz H HR
Commercial Short
[EES EHA
Commercial Medium
[EES B

100%

100%

100%

100%
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3, Floor, Hopeful Factory Centre,
|0 Wo Shing Street,

Fo Tan, New Territories,

Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2693 1663

Fax: +852 2694 0877

Website: http://www.nhh.com.hk

E-mail address: info@nhh.com.hk

Hong Kong Factory:
No. 9 Dai Shun Street,
Tai Po Industrial Estate,
Tai Po, New Territories,
Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2660 0208
Fax: +852 2667 4831

Dongguan Factory:

Chiling Industrial Zone, Houjie Town,
Dongguan City,

Guangdong Province,

The People's Republic of China

Tel: +86 (0) 769 8558 8755

Zip: 523940

Fax: +86 (0) 769 8558 1756

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 3R#E1THRAR

(RERZZME L ZHRLA])

EENSRE

o

AR NR

REEHT 1055

BT ERNLCEIE

BRE © +852 2693 1663

& : +852 2694 0877

#94E : http://www.nhh.com.hk
BT EBHFHAE ¢ info@nhh.com.hk

BB

BB

R KA

AT
KNIEH9 5%

TiE 1 +852 2660 0208
fEE : +852 2667 4831

REERE
hEARKME
ERAE

R

EHERrETIER
EiE 1 +86 (0) 769 8558 8755
EEARGE - 523940
fEE : +86 (0) 769 8558 1756



A1806, Center Plaza,
No. 161 Linhe Road West,
Tianhe District,

Guangzhou,

The People's Republic of China
Tel: +86 (0) 20 3831 0226
Zip: 510620

Fax: +86 (0) 20 3831 0223

Shanghai Office:

Unit E, 6th Floor,

Zhao Feng Universe Building,

No. 1800 Zhongshan West Road,
Shanghai,

The People’s Republic of China
Tel: +86 (0) 21 6440 3351

Zip: 200235

Fax: +86 (0) 21 6440 0373

Shanghai Factory:

No. 8100, Songze Ave.

Qingpu Industrial Zone,
Shanghai,

The People’s Republic of China
Tel: +86 (0) 21 6921 3333
Zip: 201707

Fax: +86 (0) 21 6921 5555

Qingdao Factory:

Haier (Jiaozhou) International Industrial Zone,
Jiaozhou ECO & TECH Development Zone, Qingdao,
The People's Republic of China

Tel: +86 (0) 532 8727 3100

Zip: 266300

Fax: +86 (0) 532 8727 3110

MFNFEEE 161 5%
H ZRBURR E5 A 1806
BTRE © +86 (0) 20 3831 0226
FIRARSE : 510620

f5H : +86 (0) 20 3831 0223

EEMER
REARLFE

gm

AL 7S 1800 5%

JKEIRIR K=

|6 1L E 2

EE 0 +86 (0) 21 6440 3351
FIRARSE © 200235

fEH @ +86 (0) 21 6440 0373

EiEmgt

hE AR KFE

iabieni

SHIXER

FAE KB 81005

B:E 0 +86 (0) 21 6921 3333
ISR : 201707

fEH : +86 (0) 21 6921 5555

EE ML -

hE AR KFE
FEBMEBERMHRER
BR(BMN)ERIXER

TAE  +86 (0) 532 8727 3100
FIRARSE : 266300

fEH : +86 (0) 532 8727 3110
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engdu City, Sichuan Province,
The People's Republic of China
Tel: +86 (0) 28 8328 5026

Zip: 610051

Fax: +86 (0) 28 8328 5126

Xiamen Factory:

No.[6-4 Putou Road,

Haicang District,

Xiamen City, Fujian Province,
The People's Republic of China
Tel: +86 (0) 592 609 321 |

Zip: 361027

Fax: +86 (0) 592 609 3600

Tianjin Office:

Units 2204-2206, Tower A, Ronghui Plaza,

Nankai District,

Tianjin,

The People's Republic of China
Tel: +86 (0) 22 8752 8026
Zip: 300073

Fax: +86 (0) 22 8752 8109

Chonggqing Office:

Room 3601, Yingli International Financial Center,

No. 28 Minquan Road
Yuzhong District, Chongging,
The People's Republic of China
Tel: +86 (0) 23 6382 0020
Zip: 400010

Fax: +86 (0) 23 6382 0090

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 3R#E1THRAR

B
I A RAFIE
Pu)llE K ER T
f= 5t ol = e
BEM=TER
BEE2919 5%
TAE : +86 (0) 28 8328 5026
FIRARSE : 610051
f5H : +86 (0) 28 8328 5126

E ML

HEE A RAFIE
REAEMT

AR

ESHE 16-4 5%

TRE © +86 (0) 592 609 3211
FIRARSE : 361027

fEE : +86 (0) 592 609 3600

REWSE :
hEARKME
RAET

L]

BOEE I35 A BB 2204-2206 =
T % - +86 (0) 22 8752 8026
FIRAR 5% © 300073

fEHE : +86 (0) 22 8752 8109

EEWER

I AR AFE

EEM

AR R R AR 28 5%

EA R SR 0 3601 =
T +86 (0) 23 6382 0020
FIFARSE : 400010

f5HE : +86 (0) 23 6382 0090
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